TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED

v EEERNRARA D

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (KRB S8 EZMMR LA HER A )
< Stock Code IR £8% : 1986

Annual Report

12022




11

31

90

96

124

Corporate Information
NAEIER

Financial Highlights
BmE

Five-Year Financial Summary

hEPBHE

Chairman’s Report

FREHRE

Management Discussion and
Analysis

ERETHRA

Environment, Social and
Governance Report

RIE - g hEams

Directors and Senior Management
EERRREEE

Directors’ Report

EEERE

Report of Corporate Governance
hEERWmE

157

166

168

170

172

1%

295

Contents

H &%

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZE NS

Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income

e hEMEmEmlaX
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

e MERR K
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
IMEEREHR

Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

,T\ Iﬁi//wiﬁ
Notes to Financial Statements
BTSRRI 7T

Definitions

HEx



2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Mr. PAN Deyuan' (Appointed on 25 November 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. NG Ka Man? (Appointed on 25 March 2022)
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Mr. GE Yi
Ms. NG Ka Man? (Appointed on 25 March 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHU Lin (Chairman)
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. YU Miao

1. Mr. PAN Deyuan has been appointed as a non-executive

Director with effect from 25 November 2022. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 November
2022.

Ms. NG Ka Man has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company, an authorized representative of
the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules and an
authorized representative under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for acceptance of
service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong with effect from 25 March 2022. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 March 2022,
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Financial Highlights

I EE

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
For the year ended 31 December BZE+=-BA=+—HLEE (REZ) (&E:Z)
REVENUE ¢~ 2,122,318 1,781,106
GROSS PROFIT EA 568,453 540,296
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 254,232 227,238
Profit attributable to: JEMRR A -
Owners of the parent JRREAA 242,035 226,239
Earnings per Share attributable to ordinary BAREBE=ERA
equity holders of the parent: EIEBRAT
AR®%RMB ARBRMB
—Basic and diluted - BEARREE 0.24 7T 0.227¢

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,122.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB341.2 million or approximately
19.2% comparing with that in the same period of 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB568.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB28.2 million or approximately 5.2%
comparing with that in the same period of 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB254.2 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB27.0 million or approximately
11.9% comparing with that in the same period of 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, basic and diluted earnings
per Share attributable to ordinary equity owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMBO0.24, representing an increase
of approximately RMB0.02 or approximately 9.1% comparing with
that in the same period of 2021.

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.059 per ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December
2022, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.
Assuming the final dividend is approved at the AGM, together
with the interim dividend of RMB0.036 per ordinary Share for the
six months ended 30 June 2022, the dividends in aggregate for
the year ended 31 December 2022 will amount to RMBO0.095 per
ordinary Share.

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFE AEEK
BOEBARE21223A8B T BT - —F R HE
MEARKEI41 2BHEITHLI19.2% °

BE_Z-_—_F+_-_A=+—HBILFE KXEEE
M BAREESE8.5BET  B_F = —FRIHRE N
AR 28 2HETLHAIS5.2% °

BE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HULFE  A£B8
MO BARKE254 2B & W_T ——FRIHHEM
PARBE27 0B ETTHLI11.9%

BE_ZFT__F+-A=+t—HLFE BQ7FE
AREEEABLEREARBEIBINOAAR
#0247 BT —FRHENHARY0.027T
A9 1% ©

EFeRREREE-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HL
FERABR ST/ LBE/ARE0.0597T  HENK
RAFAKS FEREIE - BERPRERBREE
FRG HEMRE  BRBEE-_T-__F,A=1+H
LERNE AP R E TR @R ARK0.0367T « E#E
T+ A=+ BILEFENRBBESA
TR E B AREE0.0957T ©
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Five-Year Financial Summary

FFEIEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BL%E

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
=SB CF-F CTOTHE CF-NF CTNE
RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBTRT ARETr ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Operating results - Summary REEE HE
Revenue Iz 2,122,318 1,781,106 1275274 1818347 1515882
Gross profit EF 568,453 540,296 445335 1,040,957 524,093
Profit for the year FREF 254,232 227,238 144,599 518,284 222,817
Profit attributable to: iR H
Owners of the parent ISYNGIEZ=PN 242,035 226,239 144,875 517,927 222,901
Balance sheet — Summary EESELRHE
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,007,329 1,655,987 1695556 1724977 1,634,095
Current assets MEBEE 1,187,910 912,494 647,532 856,423 875,056
Total assets LEBE 3,195,239 2,568,481 2,343,088 2,581,400 2,509,151
Current liabilities mBAE 1,034,468 637,073 597,606 745,937 871,472
Non-current liabilities FRBAEE 60,812 39,982 66,190 69,022 317,794
Net assets BEFE 2,099,959 1891426 1,679,292 1,766,441 1,319,885
Financial ratio BiFgLL &
Gross profit margin M= 26.8% 30.3% 34.9% 57.3% 34.6%
Net profit margin R 12.0% 12.8% 11.3% 28.5% 14.7%
Return on equity(" RA R RO 12.7% 12.7% 8.4% 33.6% 18.1%
Current ratio® MENLL K@ 1.15 1.43 1.08 1.15 1.00
Net debt to equity ratio® EERBHEO 14.3% 16.7% 20.8% 17.8% 49.3%
Inventory turnover days® FEREXEY 62 64 98 112 59
Trade and notes receivables 2 5 WGIE R
turnover days® EREERAERHO 81 52 71 54 69
Trade and bills payables BHEAFER
turnover days® S EERS G 67 54 100 146 130

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]



Notes:

Return on equity is derived by dividing net profit by total
equity, where total equity is the average beginning and ending
balances of total equity for the given period.

Current ratio is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities at the end of a given period.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated at dividing interest-
bearing loans and other financial liabilities at the end of the
period by the total equity.

Inventory turnover days for a certain period is derived by
dividing the average inventory (the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of inventory of a given period)
by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days in the
relevant period.

Trade and notes receivables turnover days for a certain period
is derived by dividing the average trade and notes receivables
(the arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of
trade and notes receivables of a given period) by revenue and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.

Trade and bills payables turnover days for a certain period is
derived by dividing the average trade and bills payables (the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of trade
and bills payables of a given period) by cost of sales and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.

Five-Year Financial Summary
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby report the results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, with the rapid development of the new energy industry,
the market demand for lithium battery products has increased
significantly. The battery materials business segment of the Group
maintained a gratifying explosive growth momentum. However,
various traditional business segments were affected to varying
degrees by high inflation in developed countries and geopolitical
turmoil, resulting in decline in the revenue and profits of some
traditional segments. In the face of market changes, we seized
the development opportunities of the new energy market, quickly
adjusted our traditional business market strategy, kept risks under
control and continued deepening the diversified development
strategy, thus maintaining a sustainable, stable and healthy
development of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, under the complex economic situation where
opportunities and challenges coexisted, the Group achieved
positive growth in overall sales revenue, which increased by
approximately 19.2% or approximately RMB341.2 million as
compared with that in 2021. In particular, leveraging on the
industry leading “one-step” advanced production technology,
excellent product quality and growing production capacity, the
battery materials segment of the Group recorded an annual sales
revenue of approximately RMB689.5 million which represented
an increase of approximately 297.4% as compared with that
in 2021. The battery materials segment is starting to surpass
traditional business segment and becoming the business segment
contributing the highest profits to the Group.

As driven by the development of battery materials segment, as
well as the strict control over various expenses implemented
by the Group, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
RMB254.2 million in 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 11.9% or approximately RMB27.0 million as
compared with that in the same period in 2021.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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FOCUS ON INVESTMENT IN RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, AND CONTINUOUS RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PROCESSES AND NEW
PRODUCTS

The Group has always attached great importance to investment in
research and development. We constantly upgrade our existing
production processes and products, supplementing the results
of process transformation. In 2022, we successfully realized the
stable and large-scale mass production of the new process of
co-production of iron oxide red products with DSD Acid, and
continuously optimized the production process of iron phosphate
battery materials, which improved our production capacity and
lowered our production cost. We completed the trial operation of
the industrialization process of our new product, BPDA.

At the same time, we are also actively developing new products
and continuously enriching our product range to meet the diverse
needs of our customers and enhance customer engagement. In
2022, we completed the research and development of recycling
technology for lithium iron phosphate and such technology
would be industrialized in due course. In addition, we started the
research and development of lithium iron manganese phosphate
and sodium ion battery materials, so as to further expand the
Group’s product range and enhance the Group’s overall strength.

CAPITAL MARKET EXPANSION

In 2022, we successfully completed the quotation of the shares
of Tsaker Technology on NEEQ, and are considering the transfer
of the listing of Tsaker Technology to The Beijing Stock Exchange
(the “BSE”). The application for a pre-listing tutoring process in
connection with the proposed listing of Tsaker Technology on the
BSE was accepted by the Hebei Securities Regulatory Bureau of
China Securities Regulatory Commission on 30 September 2022.
In addition, we are considering a spin-off and separate listing of
Shandong TNM Group on a stock exchange recognized by the
PRC. In preparation of the proposed spin-off, we entered into a
capital increase agreement with 8 independent investors on 10
March 2023. It is expected that the independent investors will
be introduced to Shandong TNM Group by or before the end
of April 2023. At the same time, we are considering to continue
to introduce certain investors to Shandong TNM Group prior
to the completion of the spin-off. We believe that the transfer
of the listing of Tsaker Technology to the BSE and the spin-off
and separate listing of Shandong TNM Group are conductive
to increasing the Group's popularity in the capital market and
broadening its financing channels, thereby facilitating the long-
term and stable development of the Group.

Chairman’s Report
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OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2023, in the face of the complex and ever-changing market
environment, we will continue to adopt active and steady overall
strategy, actively respond to market changes, and maintain
steady financial strategy. We will focus on carrying out key fixed
asset investment projects such as the new iron phosphate project
of Shandong TNM with capacity of 80,000 tonnes/year and the
iron phosphate expansion project of Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium
Energy from capacity of 30,000 tonnes/year to 60,000 tonnes/year,
in order to achieve the Group’s goal of expanding production of
iron phosphate products. We will continue to focus on research
and development and continuously introduce new products
and processes to enhance the overall competitiveness of the
Group. We will strive to fully facilitate the transfer of the listing
of the shares of Tsaker Technology on the BSE and the spin-off
of Shandong TNM Group and continue to broaden the Group's
financing channels.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
support and trust in the management of the Group, and to the
management team and all staff members for their dedication and
efforts to achieve better results for the Group and create value for
the Shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ge Yi
24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR EN S

BUSINESS REVIEW E e
Operating segment results REDHEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_BE-_—_F+-A=+—HLEE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials intermediates materials Others Total
FHR B
BXtEm hEE
Bt sl R Rt Hitr A&t
Revenue (RMB'000) Weis (ARETFTT) 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 - 2,122,318
Cost of sales (RMB000) HERKAEEFT) 438,746 867,484 247,635 - 1,553,865
Sales volume (fons) HEHE (1) 33,722 61,679 9,675 = 105,076
Gross profit margin B P 36.4% 19.1% 31.3% - 26.8%
Average unit selling price  BEfiFgEB
(RMBYton) (AE¥T, 1) 20,447 17,384 37,268 - N/A
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-T-—F+-A=1+—HLFE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural  intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials  intermediates materials Others Total
ERR L
REER e
ERukvpet HfEE RFHH Hit Ch
Revenue (RMB000) Wi (AR TFT) 173,486 1,252,422 353,566 1,632 1,781,106
Cost of sales (RMB'000) BERK (AREFT) 163,043 846,661 230,496 610 1,240,810
Sales volume (fons) HEHE (1) 11,573 69,948 11,013 N/A 92,534
Gross profit margin EME 6.0% 32.4% 34.8% 62.6% 30.3%
Average unit selling price ~ EfIFHEE
(RMB/ton) (NEBTT /W) 14,991 17,905 32,104 N/A N/A

The Group is mainly engaged in the production and sales of ZAEEEFZHREEMWME LR EREEELZ2RFTM
products such as battery materials, dye and agricultural chemical 8 - EERFREERB RTINS ZEEMIOERE RIHE -
intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E 11
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The existing main operations of the Group remain stable. The
traditional business segments continue to enjoy a prominent
position in the market. During the Review Year, revenue from
the top five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 38.6% of the Group’s revenue for the year (2021:
approximately 33.8%).

The Group has a well-established sales network, which covers
areas including Asia, Europe, North America and South America.
For the Review Year, by regional distribution, revenue derived from
the Group’s sales in Mainland China accounted for approximately
81.1%; India accounted for approximately 6.0%; Brazil, Germany,
Indonesia, the United States of America and other regions
accounted for approximately 2.4%, 2.2%, 2.0%, 2.0% and 4.3%,
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Review Year, total revenue of the Group increased by
approximately 19.2% to approximately RMB2,122.3 million (2021:
approximately RMB1,781.1 million) as compared with that in the
same period of 2021. The increase in revenue was mainly due to
the increase in the sales volume and average sales unit price of
iron phosphate, the major product of the Group’s battery materials
segment, driven by the growth in market demand for lithium
battery products and upstream lithium battery materials.

In 2022, due to the combined effect of the significant increase
in the sales volume and average sales price of iron phosphate,
the battery material product of the Group, and the decrease in
the sales volume of DSD Acid, a dye intermediate product of the
Group, the gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
5.2% to approximately RMB568.5 million (2021: approximately
RMB540.3 million) as compared with that in 2021. The overall
gross profit margin of the Group decreased to approximately
26.8% in 2022 from approximately 30.3% in 2021. The net profit
of the Group for the year 2022 increased by approximately
11.9% to approximately RMB254.2 million (2021: approximately
RMB227.2 million); net profit margin was approximately 12.0%
(2021: approximately 12.8%); and basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB0.24 (2021: approximately RMB0.22).

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Battery materials — accounting for approximately 32.5% of
total revenue (2021: approximately 9.7%)

In 2022, the domestic and overseas market demand for lithium
battery products and upstream lithium battery materials grew
rapidly with the rapid development of new energy vehicle and
electrochemical energy storage industries, which,
tight supply of battery materials and provided strong support
for the sales price of iron phosphate. During the Review Year,
the unit sales price of the iron phosphate products of the Group
maintained at a high level.

resulted in a

During the Review Year, the Group maintained close cooperation
with lithium iron phosphate manufacturers such as Hefei
Guoxuan Battery Materials Co., Ltd.* (AIEREF S EHRATF),
Changzhou Liyuan New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (& M4$RJRF
BEREHE AR A 7)), Hefei Rongjie Energy Materials Co., Ltd.* (&
FERbEE AL R M LA R A A]) and Jiangxi Zhili Technology Co., Ltd.*
OIS BRI AR AF]), which provided strong support in
securing the supply chain for the Group'’s lithium iron phosphate
customers.

During the Review Year, benefiting from the increase in the
sales volume and average unit sales price of battery material
products, the revenue from the battery materials segment of the
Group increased by approximately 297.4% over that in 2021 to
approximately RMB689.5 million (2021: approximately RMB173.5
million), representing approximately 32.5% (2021: approximately
9.7%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the Review Year, the gross profit of this segment increased
by approximately 2,311.5% to approximately RMB250.8 million
(2021: approximately RMB10.4 million), and the gross profit
margin increased by approximately 30.4 percentage points to
approximately 36.4% (2021: approximately 6.0%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dye and agricultural chemical intermediates — accounting
for approximately 50.5% of total revenue (2021:
approximately 70.3%)

During the Review Year, as the dye intermediate products of the
Group were greatly affected by the sluggish end-user demand,
its product sales had declined, and revenue had decreased by
approximately 51.4% over that in 2021 to approximately RMB383.4
million (2021: approximately RMB789.3 million), representing
approximately 18.1% (2021: approximately 44.3%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

During the Review Year, the dominant market position of the
Group’s agricultural chemical intermediates products was further
consolidated, the sales volume and average unit sales price of the
products increased, resulting in an increase in product revenue by
approximately 48.7% over that in 2021 to approximately RMB688.8
million (2021: approximately RMB463.1 million), representing
approximately 32.4% (2021: approximately 26.0%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

During the Review Year, the total revenue of this
segment decreased by approximately RMB180.2 million or
approximately 14.4% as compared with that in 2021, representing
approximately 50.5% (2021: approximately 70.3%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

in general,

During the Review Year, the gross profit of this segment
decreased by approximately 49.5% to approximately RMB204.8
million (2021: approximately RMB405.8 million), and the
gross profit margin decreased by 13.3 percentage points to
approximately 19.1% (2021: approximately 32.4%). Among
which, the gross profit margin of dye intermediates decreased
by approximately 24.7 percentage points to approximately
14.8% (2021: approximately 39.5%). The gross profit margin of
agricultural chemical intermediates increased by approximately
1.2 percentage points to approximately 21.5% (2021:
approximately 20.3%).

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #eeREHEERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pigment intermediates and new materials — accounting for
approximately 17.0% of total revenue (2021: approximately
19.9%)

During the Review Year, the Group made huge progress in the
industrialization of the new material monomer BPDA. The first
phase construction of the BPDA production line with annual
production capacity of 300 tons was completed and successfully
put into trial operation. Given the gradual launch of the BPDA
products and its contribution to revenue, and the BPDA and
pigment intermediate products being managed by the same
operating team, the Group decided to rename the pigment
intermediates segment as the pigment intermediates and new
materials segment, to present the operating results of Dimethyl
succinate (DMS), DMSS, DATA, DMAS and other intermediate
products, as well as new material monomer BPDA. The scope of
presentation remains the same as that prior to the renaming.

During the Review Year, the market prices of bulk raw materials
fluctuated significantly, which affected the production costs
of products in the pigment intermediates and new materials
segment. In response to market changes, the Group made
flexible adjustments to the selling prices of its products based on
the purchase prices of raw materials and market demand. The
selling prices of products in this segment rose in the first half of
the year and then fell back in the second half of the year. During
the Review Year, the average selling prices of products in this
segment had rose as compared with that in 2021. However, the
sales volume of products in this segment was lower than that of
2021 due to the fluctuation in market demand. The combined
effect of the above factors led to an increase in segment revenue
by approximately 2.0% over that in 2021 to approximately
RMB360.6 million (2021: approximately RMB353.6 million).

During the Review Year, the gross profit of this segment
decreased by approximately 8.3% to approximately RMB112.9
million (2021: approximately RMB123.1 million), and the gross
profit margin decreased by approximately 3.5 percentage points
to approximately 31.3% (2021: approximately 34.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Others

Taking into account the overall economic environment, the Group
no longer focuses on environmental technology consultancy
services. The operating results of environmental technology
consultancy services were included in “Others”. In 2022, this
segment did not contribute any revenue to the Group (2021:
approximately RMB1.6 million).

EXPORT

In 2022, the export revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB401.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB169.8 million or approximately 29.7% as
compared with the export revenue of approximately RMB571.3
million in 2021. The decrease in export revenue of the Group
was mainly due to the decrease in export sales volume for dye
intermediate products.

In 2022, the export revenue accounted for approximately 18.9% of
the total revenue of the Group (2021: approximately 32.1%).

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has always regarded research and development and
technological innovation as the fundamental source of power for
the Group’s development. We continue to research and develop
new products, improve and enhance the production process and
product quality of existing products, and enhance the overall
competitiveness of our products in the market.

During the Review Year, we continuously optimized our production
process for iron phosphate battery materials, completed the
upgrade and transformation of the existing iron phosphate
production line, improved the production capacity of the existing
production line and reduced the production cost per unit of
product. In reliance on the industry-leading “one-step” process,
we continued to expand our production scale of iron phosphate
to meet the growing market demand. We have completed the
research and development of recycling technology for lithium iron
phosphate, and will commence industrialization in due course.
We kept up with the developing trend of cutting-edge technology
in the new energy market,
development of lithium iron manganese phosphate and sodium
ion battery materials to seize market opportunities and expand our
business categories.

and carried out research and

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, we continuously optimized our production
process for the new material polymerised monomer BPDA,
completed the construction of the first phase of the BPDA
production line, and successfully put the production line into trial
operation. During the Review Year, Tsaker Technology (a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company primarily engaging in the
production and sales of pigment intermediate and new material
products) invested in a new research and development centre
and established a technological innovation base to continuously
incubating new technologies and new processes, and constantly
injecting new momentum into the innovation and development of
Tsaker Technology.

During the Review Year, we successfully realized the stable and
large-scale mass production of the new process of co-production
of iron oxide red with DSD Acid. By converting the scrap iron
sludge generated during the original production process into a
co-product iron oxide red, we have achieved zero discharge of
solid waste from the production process of DSD Acid. Moreover,
through the sale of co-product iron oxide red, we have further
expanded the Group’s existing product range.

Adhering to the belief that technology is our core competence,
we will continue to invest in research and development and make
unremitting efforts to maintain the competitive edge of our existing
products in the market and actively explore new business growth
opportunities and direction.

BEERWR DT

CIEEFER - BAFEELCHM RS ERBPDAN
HEIE TR TEHBPDASXEFNER I
BRI ERBABET  REBFA » FERKR (K
REFREWMBRR - (EBERF hHEE R E
mAEENMEHE) REFMEMED L - FTERMAIF
i UERCHRN 18 TEHAYER
R BIFTEROE AFTBIRE

BIEEF A - RAIKIIEIR T DSDELE E S L BALH
TENRE  FRELEE BRELEREPEL
MERERYEEEEABEMRALEL  BRT
DSDEAEREBBEZEMTHN - WRBHER
EmEEL  E— P RRTEERFERME -

BB —BERARMREZOBRFINGES - £8%
RHMENRAMNMEL S REREEROTES
HEED WHEBRRAMAHEBIEREEETTF -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

2022 was an extraordinary year. Inflation in developed countries
remained high. The geopolitical situation was turbulent and
volatile. A series of intertwining factors have seriously impacted
the operation of the world’s major economies. China’s economic
growth rate has fallen to a historically low level. The growth
momentum of developed economies, such as the United States
and the European Union, has weakened significantly. Other
economies have also been severely affected. Hence, there was a
noticeable negative impact on the international terminal consumer
market and the development of the upstream related industries.
Meanwhile, with the announcement and implementation of carbon
neutrality policies by the world’s major economies, the deep-
rooted global consensus on combating climate change has had
a profound impact on energy structure and industrial layout,
creating historical development opportunities for the development
of the new energy industry. Markets and technologies such as
power lithium batteries, energy storage lithium batteries, advanced
energy saving and lithium resource recycling have ushered in
rapid development. Under the complex economic situation where
opportunities and challenges coexisted, we have adhered to a
proactive and prudent development strategy, actively responding
to market fluctuations and changes with diversified product mix
and flexible sales strategy.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, through continuous improvement of the
production process of the iron phosphate products, we have
successfully increased the production capacity of our existing
iron phosphate production line at the Dongguang Production
Plants from 20,000 tons per year to 30,000 tons per year, which
was put into full operation in the second quarter of 2022. At the
same time, the construction of our new iron phosphate production
line at the Dongying Production Plants with a production capacity
of 50,000 tons per year was completed. In October 2022, the
production line has commenced its trial production and achieved
a successful trial run. As of the end of October 2022, we had
two production bases with a total production capacity of iron
phosphate products of 80,000 tons per year. In order to meet the
rapid development needs of the downstream market continuously,
the Company is considering an addition of production capacity of
iron phosphate of 30,000 tons per year and 80,000 tons per year
at the Dongguang and Dongying Production Plants by the end of
2023, respectively. By then, the total production capacity of the
Group’s iron phosphate products will reach 190,000 tons per year,
laying a solid foundation for the Group’s long-term development in
the new energy field. During the Review Year, due to the drastic
increase in market demand for lithium battery products and the
shortage of upstream battery material supplies, the sales price
of iron phosphate products rose considerably and remained
high during the year. In the meantime, the purchase price of
raw materials demonstrated a steady downward trend, while the
expansion of production scale also had a positive impact on the
reduction of unit production cost. The above favourable factors
together have significantly improved the profitability of the Group’s
battery materials business segment during the Review Year. In
view of the vigorous development of new energy markets at home
and abroad, as well as our first-mover advantage and technology
advantage in the field of battery materials, we are confident in
the prospect of the long-term development of the battery material
segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, we considered a spin-off and separate
listing of Shandong TNM Group on a stock exchange recognized
by the PRC. In preparation of the proposed spin-off, on 10 March
2023, Shandong TNM Group entered into a capital increase
agreement with 8 independent investors. The independent
investors will make a cash capital contribution of RMB149 million
in aggregate to Shandong TNM in exchange for approximately
6.62% equity interest in the enlarged registered capital of
Shandong TNM in aggregate. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 10 March 2023 for details. We will continue
to pursue opportunities to introduce suitable investors to the
Shandong TNM Group prior to the completion of the spin-off. We
believe that introducing investors and a spin-off and separate
listing are conducive to diversifying the shareholder structure of
the Shandong TNM Group and expanding its capital strength,
promoting the expansion of the Group’s battery material business
on an independent platform and increasing the Group’s popularity
in the capital market, which is in line with the Company’s overall
development strategy. We will make further announcement(s)
as and when appropriate in accordance with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules.

During the Review Year, affected by fluctuations in the bulk raw
material market and changes in domestic and foreign end-user
demand, sales volume of the Group’s pigment intermediates and
new materials segment declined as compared with that in 2021.
However, benefiting from our reasonable market and pricing
strategies, sales revenue and profit of the segment achieved a
positive growth. At the end of the Review Year, we completed the
construction of the first phase of the BPDA production line with a
production capacity of 300 tons per year, and successfully put the
production line into trial operation, injecting new momentum into
Tsaker Technology.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, to further enhance the financing ability
of the Group in the capital market, we fully facilitated and
successfully completed the private placing of shares of Tsaker
Technology and the quotation of its shares on the NEEQ. A total
of 8,571,427 shares of Tsaker Technology were issued to 15
investors pursuant to the private placing, raising proceeds of
approximately RMB51.0 million in aggregate. The shares of Tsaker
Technology have been quoted on the NEEQ for public transfer
since 31 August 2022. Meanwhile, the Company considered
a transfer of the listing of Tsaker Technology to the BSE. The
application for a pre-listing tutoring process in connection with
the listing of Tsaker Technology on the BSE was accepted by the
Hebei Securities Regulatory Bureau of China Securities Regulatory
Commission on 30 September 2022. We believe that the transfer
of listing of Tsaker Technology to the BSE is conducive to
strengthening the liquidity of the shares of Tsaker Technology,
further enhancing the popularity of Tsaker Technology in the
capital market, improving Tsaker Technology’s efficiency in
capital market financing, and supporting the long-term and stable
development of the Group. We will make further announcement(s)
in connection with the listing progress of Tsaker Technology on
the BSE as and when appropriate in accordance with the relevant
Listing Rules requirements.

During the Review Year, our traditional dye chemical intermediates
segment was greatly affected by the sluggish end demand. The
sales volume, sales revenue and profit of the segment declined
as compared with that in the same period in 2021. We had
been adjusting our market and pricing strategies in response to
market changes. In the second half of 2022, the sales volume
of dye intermediates products has recovered as compared with
that in the first half of the year but yet to return to the normal
levels. We believe that such fluctuation was mainly attributable
to the global economic situation and geopolitics, and remain
optimistic about the long-term market development. Relying on
the reduction of DSD Acid unit production cost brought about by
the process of co-production of iron oxide red with DSD Acid, as
well as the revenue contribution of the co-produced iron oxide red
products, we believe that the sales volume and profit of the dye
intermediates segment will also recover to normal levels along
with economic recovery and geopolitical stability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the battery materials segment has
become the core business segment with the highest profit
contribution ratio of the Group. With the new iron phosphate
project and lithium iron phosphate resource recycling project
being put into production and expanding in scale, we believe
that the battery materials segment will further occupy a larger
proportion in the Group’s overall business and become the major
driving force for the Group’s future development. To enable the
Company’s name to better reflect the future development direction
of the Group, subsequent to the approval of the Shareholders by
passing a special resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 May 2022, the English name of the Company
has been changed from “Tsaker Chemical Group Limited” to
“Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited”, the Chinese name has
been changed from "¥EtFEBABRAR" to "HEIEREIRE
fR/2®)", and the change of the Company’s name took effect on
8 June 2022. The English stock short name of the Company was
changed from “TSAKER CHEM” to “TSAKER NE” and the Chinese
stock short name was changed from “F &L & to “FEHEER" for
trading in the Company’s issued shares on the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 12 July 2022.

Looking ahead, we will maintain an active and stable overall
strategy, actively adapt to market changes and maintain a
sound financial strategy. We will further invest in research and
development to develop new products and processes. We will
continue to expand product categories in the fields of new energy
and new materials as directions for the future development of the
Group. We will also continue to maintain and expand our industry-
leading technological advantages, cost advantages and market
competitive advantages in the traditional business segment. We
are confident in seizing opportunities, overcoming challenges, and
embracing a better future amid the complex and ever-changing
international political and economic situations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2022, the revenue and gross profit of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB2,122.3 million and approximately RMB568.5
million, respectively, representing an increase of approximately
RMB341.2 million and approximately RMB28.2 million or
approximately 19.2% and approximately 5.2% as compared with
approximately RMB1,781.1 million and approximately RMB540.3
million, respectively, in 2021. The increase in the revenue was
mainly due to the increase in the sales volume and average unit
sales price of iron phosphate, the major product of the Group’s
battery materials segment. In 2022, the Group’s gross profit
margin was approximately 26.8%, as compared with that of
approximately 30.3% in 2021. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the combined effect of the decline in the
average unit selling price of dye intermediate products resulting
in the decline in gross profit margin, as well as the increase in the
average unit selling price of battery material products resulting in
the increase in gross profit margin.

NET PROFIT AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

In 2022, the net profit of the Group was approximately RMB254.2
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB27.0
million or approximately 11.9% as compared with approximately
RMB227.2 million in 2021. In 2022, the Group’s net profit margin
was approximately 12.0%, as compared with that of approximately
12.8% in 2021.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

In 2022, selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately RMB50.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB7.6 million as compared with approximately
RMB58.2 million in 2021. The decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the combined effect of the decrease
in export sales volume and the decrease in the per average unit
freight cost.

In 2022, selling and distribution expenses represented
approximately 2.4% of the Group’s revenue (2021: approximately
3.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2022, administrative expenses were approximately RMB133.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB9.9 million
as compared with approximately RMB143.8 million in 2021. The
decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due to the proper
cost control measures exercised by the Group during the Review
Year.

In 2022, administrative expenses represented approximately 6.3%
of the Group’s revenue (2021: approximately 8.1%).

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In 2022, the Group provided impairment losses on property,
plants and equipment of approximately RMB7.2 million (2021:
approximately RMB6.3 million) and impairment losses on
intangible assets of approximately RMB9.0 million (2021: nil).
The impairment losses on property, plants and equipment for the
year were mainly attributed to the impairment provision for the
proposed removal of equipment in the sulfonation workshop under
the battery material segment. The impairment losses on intangible
assets were mainly attributed to the impairment provision for
discontinuation of the use of CNT technology acquired in prior
years. For more details, please refer to notes 13 and 17 to
financial statements of this annual report.

FINANCE COSTS

In 2022, finance costs amounted to approximately RMB15.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB12.4 million
as compared with approximately RMB28.3 million in 2021. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in interest in bank loans
and discounted bills as compared with that in 2021.

EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

In 2022, exchange loss amounted to approximately RMB18.8
million, as compared with exchange gains of approximately
RMB2.3 million in 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB against USD during the
Review Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are generally subject to
the Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 25%. Tsaker Technology is
subject to the enterprise income tax at a preferential rate of 15%
due to the possession of a high-tech enterprise certificate. One
of the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong is subject to
the two-tier tax regime, i.e., the first HK$2.0 million of assessable
profits earned will be taxed at half the current Hong Kong profits
tax rate (i.e., 8.25%), and the remaining assessable profits will
continue to be taxed at 16.5%. Other Hong Kong subsidiaries of
the Company are generally subject to the Hong Kong profits tax
at a rate of 16.5%. The Singapore subsidiary of the Company is
generally subject to the Singapore Enterprise Income Tax at a rate
of 17.0%. In 2022, income tax expense amounted to approximately
RMB80.5 million, which remained basically stable as compared
with approximately RMB80.4 million in 2021.

CASH FLOWS

In 2022, net cash inflows from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB371.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB136.1 million as compared with
approximately RMB235.4 million in 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales volume of iron phosphate, the
battery material product of the Group, resulting in the increase in
revenue.

In 2022, net cash outflows used in investing activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB285.2 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB207.4 million as compared with
approximately RMB77.8 million in 2021, which was mainly due
to the increase in capital expenses as a result of the investment
made by the Dongying production factories for the construction of
the new iron phosphate production line with an annual production
capacity of 50,000 tons during the Review Year.

In 2022, the Group’s net cash outflows used in financing activities
remained basically stable at approximately RMB79.4 million.

BEERWR DT

FREHMAX
RN B R B A 3 B B BB 1 RSB R AR 25 % B B K
BATBELCEMEHR  FEHMZAHESHRIMD

ERBE  RIS%NEEREHREEMEH - A2
ARBBHNESR —HHBARRE T _RABH - B
PRI & 2.0 8 BB T RRTUE M #5128.25%
(BIEBRITMEBRE—F) BB - HBRERTEH
HAEEIR16 5% NH T - ARARHEEFEN
HAh M E A RRTREK16.5%NTHEBMNTENG
B oo RRBRE KA KB R BB TEALR17.0%H
MEBNFIREERBR -R_F__F - A%
BEBRAHRARKB0BET B_Z=-—F4H5R
ARG 4BBTLERRIFIRIE °

RERE

RZZEZ—F  AEBEEEHMBESRATE
WEBAREITISEETL BT —FHAARE
235 4B &L W ARKAAEETL B2
EAAEBEDNHERBREHESWA EAZE
W ES I8 INATEK -

R-ZE- % AEERELZHIARSALFE
WRARK2852EETT BT - —FHRARK
77T8AEBT  BIMHARK2074BETT  TERRA
REBEFARRELEERFEIRENESBM /5
B A ERBUE E ARSI AR -

R-ZEBE_—F AEEREEFHIARER
HEBARBTIIABETT  EAGHEETE -

HEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

25



26

Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2022, the daily working capital of the Group was primarily
derived from cash flow from operations and bank borrowings.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had (i) cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB189.1 million, in which
approximately RMB173.6 million was denominated in RMB and
approximately RMB15.5 million in other currencies (USD, HKD
and SGD) (2021: approximately RMB180.1 million, in which
approximately RMB147.7 million was denominated in RMB and
approximately RMB32.4 million in other currencies (USD, HKD
and SGD)); (ii) restricted cash of approximately RMB7.1 million
denominated in RMB (2021: approximately RMB2.0 million
denominated in RMB); and (iii) interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB300.6 million with interest
rate of 3.2%-9.22% per annum, all denominated in RMB (2021:
approximately RMB315.7 million with interest rate of 4.5%-9.22%
per annum, all denominated in RMB), of which (a) approximately
RMB261.8 million shall be repayable within one year,
approximately RMB25.8 million shall be repayable in the second
year, and approximately RMB13.0 million shall be repayable in
the third to fifth years, inclusive (2021: approximately RMB302.1
million shall be repayable within one year, approximately RMB6.5
million shall be repayable in the second year, and approximately
RMB7.1 million shall be repayable in the third to fifth years,
inclusive); and (b) all bore fixed interest rates (2021: all bore fixed
interest rates). The Group’s unutilized banking facilities amounted
to approximately RMB110.7 million as at 31 December 2022
(2021: approximately RMB59.3 million).

In 2022, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument or
have any borrowing or hedge in its foreign currency investment.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position for the year ended 31 December 2022.
To manage the liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s gearing ratio was
approximately 14.3% as compared with approximately 16.7% as at
31 December 2021, which is calculated at interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings at the end of the year divided by the total
equity. The decrease was primarily due to the combined effect of
the decrease in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
the increase in total equity of the Group.

CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the total current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,187.9 million
(2021: approximately RMB912.5 million), primarily consisting
of inventories of approximately RMB272.8 million (2021:
approximately RMB260.9 million), trade receivables and
notes receivable of approximately RMB654.8 million (2021:
approximately RMB301.9 million), prepayments and other
receivables of approximately RMB59.6 million (2021:
approximately RMB139.1 million), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB189.1 million (2021: approximately RMB180.1
million) and restricted cash of approximately RMB7.1 million

(2021: approximately RMB2.0 million).

INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly consisted of raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished products. The inventory turnover days in
2022 remained basically stable at 62 days as compared with 64
days in 2021.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
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As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables and notes receivable
of the Group increased by approximately RMB352.9 million as
compared with that of 2021.

The turnover days for trade receivables and notes receivables
increased to 81 days for 2022 from 52 days for 2021, which was
mainly due to the significant increase in notes receivable as at
the end of the year as the payments for battery material segment,
which recorded a significant increase in sales revenue, was
mainly settled with bank acceptance notes.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2022, prepayments and other receivables
of the Group decreased by approximately RMB79.5 million from
approximately RMB139.1 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB59.6 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the decrease in prepayments for equipment and
construction and raw materials.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the total current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,034.5 million (2021:
approximately RMB637.1 million), primarily consisting of trade
and bills payables of approximately RMB384.1 million (2021:
approximately RMB195.7 million), other payables and accruals of
approximately RMB363.3 million (2021: approximately RMB84.6
million) and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB261.8 million (2021: approximately RMB302.1
million).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The turnover days for trade and bills payables increased to 67
days in 2022 from 54 days in 2021. The increase in the turnover
days was mainly due to the decrease in the purchase of some
raw materials with shorter credit periods by the Group during the
Review Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2022, other payables and accruals of the
Group increased by approximately RMB278.7 million from
approximately RMB84.6 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB363.3 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the increase in payables under the outstanding
endorsed notes.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and trade receivables with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB70.8 million (2021:
approximately RMB116.0 million) were pledged to secure bank
loans and other borrowings granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, or significant investment of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from the iron phosphate product expansion plan as
disclosed in the section headed “REVIEW AND OUTLOOK” in
this annual report which the Company will consider funding by
the Group’s internal resources, bank loan or equity financing, the
Group did not have other plans for material investments or capital
assets acquisition as at 31 December 2022 and the date of this
annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in the exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of
the Group is mainly related to its operating activities. Along with
the continuous expansion of the scale of its export business, the
Group’s operations may be affected by the future fluctuation in
exchange rates. The Group is closely monitoring the impact of
fluctuation in currency exchange rates on the foreign exchange
risk of the Group.

The Group currently does not have any hedging policy for foreign
currencies in place. The Board will remain alert to any relevant
risks and, consider to hedge any material potential
foreign exchange risk.

if necessary,

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established human resources policies and systems
with a view to achieving effective management in all aspects and
building a learning-oriented organization by providing motivational
rewards through a proper reward system and offering employees
various training programs including internal/external training and
public courses.

The remuneration package offered to the employees (including the
Directors) was in line with their duties and the prevailing market
terms. Staff benefits, including bonus, training schemes, pension
fund, medical coverage, provident funds etc., were also provided
to the employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 1,947 employees (2021:
1,581).

During the Review Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including salaries, bonuses, social insurances and provident
funds) amounted to approximately RMB197.7 million (2021:
approximately RMB143.4 million).

The Group did not have any share option scheme or other share
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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1.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT TSAKER NEW ENERGY
Introduction

Since its establishment in 1997, Tsaker New Energy has
been committed to integrating green technology into
research and development (“R&D”) and production of
fine chemicals such as dyes and pigment intermediates.
With its outstanding products and services, the Group is
well received by customers and was successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange in 2015. As one of the global
leading manufacturers of dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates and pigment intermediates, Tsaker New
Energy has many advanced production plants, including
the world’s largest production plant for DSD Acid, DMSS,
as well as one of the world’s three largest mononitrotoluene
production plants. In addition to consolidating its own
advantages in fine chemicals, Tsaker New Energy entered
the fields of lithium battery materials in 2017 by utilizing
its own technology and rich experience in environmental
protection with fine chemicals. Tsaker New Energy not only
pays attention to the quality and standard of products,
but also pays attention to the impacts of the company’s
operation on the environment and society. Going forward,
the Group will continue to expand the application of green
technology in the Company’s R&D and production to help
our country in achieving the goal of carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality. At the same time, we will strengthen our
corporate internal environmental and social management
systems and measures to achieve sustainability in the
Company’s operation.
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1.2

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Vision and Core Values

Tsaker New Energy continues to adhere to the corporate
philosophy of “Build a Better World with Green
Technology”, integrating the Group’s core goals and values
in leadership in industry and pursuit of excellence. In
addition to pledging to provide customers with high-quality
and reliable innovative products and services, the Group
also focuses on fulfilling corporate social responsibility to
ensure that the Group’s business abides by integrity and
environmental protection principles. The Group constantly
makes an effort to scale up its investment in environmental
protection and the R&D of green technologies, especially
in the market of upstream battery materials, leading
Tsaker New Energy and the society to drive sustainable
development.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Tsaker New Energy
Tech Co., Limited, | hereby present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report for the year 2022.
With the increase in awareness related to ESG issues, the
Group has devoted our resources and efforts to provide
high-quality, safe and environmentally friendly products
as well as fulfill our social responsibilities to achieve
sustainable development. This is in accord with the
Group’s philosophy to “Build a Better World with Green
Technology”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continues to
strive for improvement, devoting more time and effort on
sustainability issues and strengthening basic management
to be more resilient against uncertainties.

The Group has established the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee (“ESG Committee”) to
guide the Group towards a more sustainable future. The
ESG Committee, ‘together with the help from various
departments, has implemented the Group’'s ESG
approaches, policies and action plans. The Group will also
integrate the concepts of ESG into our daily operations to
align ourselves with the government’s carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality goals.
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3.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
stakeholders for your constant support. Looking forward,
we will continue to cultivate more resilient businesses and
communities to align ourselves with our vision of building a
sustainable future.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ge Yi
24 March 2023

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group hereby publishes its ESG Report and
presents its sustainability performance. To enhance our
stakeholders’ understanding of the Group’s operations,
management and working culture, this report aims to
disclose the Group’s sustainability strategy, practices,
performance and other relevant information.

Reporting Theme

To highlight the corporate value and development
strategy of Tsaker New Energy, the reporting theme of
this year is “Developing renewable energy with advanced
technology, responding to opportunities with proactivity
and sturdiness”™

Developing renewable energy with advanced technology

With the rapid development of electric vehicles and
electrochemical energy storage industry, the market
demand for lithium battery products and upstream lithium
battery materials has grown rapidly. Tsaker New Energy
has seized this opportunity and vigorously developed its
iron phosphate R&D and production to achieve its own
business growth. Meanwhile, it also helps the development
of the renewable energy industry and assists the country
in achieving the carbon peaking and carbon neutrality
targets.
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Responding to opportunities with proactivity and sturdiness

In addition to the opportunities brought by the rapid
growth of the renewable energy market, various industries
have also experienced challenges brought about by
macroeconomic instability caused by regional tensions,
and soaring energy prices this year. The Group continues
to maintain a positive and steady development strategy,
responding to opportunities with development, and
responding to challenges with timely adjustments to
maintain a persistent, stable, healthy, and innovative
development of the Group.

Reporting Standard and Scope

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The report adheres
to the reporting principles listed by the Guide, including
materiality, quantitative, balance, and consistency:

° Materiality: The Group regularly conducts
engagement and materiality
assessments to identify ESG issues material to the
Group’s business operation. Please see section
headed “Materiality Assessment” (pages 40-42 of
this annual report) for details.

stakeholder

. Quantitative: In order to present its impacts to the
environment and society, the Group monitors and
records relevant performance data and discloses
them in the corresponding sections of the report.

° Balance: To reflect its ESG management
approaches and performance properly and
unbiasedly, the Group reports both its positive and
negative impacts with mitigation measures. We
avoid selections, omissions, or presentation formats
that may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the report reader.
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3.3.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

. Consistency: The report adopts consistent
standards, tools, assumptions and sources of
conversion factors, as well as the explanation of any
inconsistencies from the previous report.

The report covers the environmental and social
performance of Tsaker Technology Development, the
Dongguang Production Plants (Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker
Technology and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy), the
Dongao Production Plant (Tsaker Dongao) and Dongying
Production Plant (Shandong TNM) from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).
on corporate governance has been separately presented
in the annual report in accordance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

Information

Sustainability Governance

The sustainable development goals of the Group are to
“Build a Better World with Green Technology”,
create long-term and sustainable value for all stakeholders.
Adhering to the core value, the Group has adopted a
strictly effective sustainable development governance
structure to ensure the implementation of sustainable
development runs through all levels of the Group. Before
the start of the 2020 reporting period, the Group has
established the ESG Committee to assist the Group in
managing its ESG-related issues.

and to

The Board

The Board, supported by the ESG Committee, will be
responsible for all sustainability strategies, management,
performance, and reporting related to the Group. The
Board also regularly reviews the Group's sustainable
development direction, goals and progress. The Group
will review the risks and opportunities for its sustainable
development.
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ESG Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee
are as follows:

1. to identify related issues that have a significant
impact on the Group’s operations and/or the
interests of other important stakeholders in relation
to environmental, social and governance aspects;

2. to provide guidance for and review the Group’s
environmental, social and governance vision, goals
and strategies, and make recommendations to the
Board to approve relevant environmental, social and
governance initiatives;

<) to monitor and review emerging environmental,
social and governance trends and issues, provide
guidance for the development of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance vision based
on relevant circumstances, and provide advisory
opinions on management of the current and
emerging issues that affect Group’s environmental,
social and governance;

4. to review and adopt risk assessment of the Group’s
impact on health, safety, environment and society;

5 to set the Group’s environmental, social and
governance goals, indicators, key performance
indicators and measures, monitor the
implementation of relevant measures, and evaluate
the effectiveness of relevant measures;

6. to adopt and update the policies on production
safety, environmental protection, social
responsibility management and corporate
governance of the Group when necessary;
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3.4.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

7. to assist the Board in preparing the annual
environmental, social and governance report in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (set forth in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules) for its consideration,
approval and disclosure;

8. to review and monitor the Group’s environmental,
social and governance policies and practices
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

9. to review and evaluate the performance and
terms of reference of the committee to ensure that
the committee operate at optimal efficacy and
recommend changes that it deems appropriate for
the approval of the Board; and

10. other matters authorized by the Board related to
health, safety, environment, social responsibility and
corporate governance.

Stakeholder Engagement and Communication
Channels

We believe that stakeholder engagement is an important
process deepening our understanding and enhancing
trustworthiness with stakeholders. Committed to
continuously enhancing sustainability performance, the
Group will provide a general situation of its environmental
and social performance to its internal and external
stakeholders. Meanwhile, opinions from stakeholders also
matter a lot to the Group in identifying material ESG issues
at the current stage. These opinions help the Group to
improve the quality of its products and services, and to
determine the goals and directions toward sustainable
development. The group regularly optimizes different
communication channels to maintain dialogue with different
stakeholders, collect feedback, analyze and develop long-
term green development plans. During the Reporting
Period, the Group interacted with stakeholders through the
following communication channels:
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Stakeholder Groups
BHE

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

Main Communication Channels

TRBERE

Local Community
=ik

Industry Association

E L E

Media
(RS

Suppliers
HERD

Customers

BP

Donation

B

Community Service

=R

Social Media

AR

Sponsored University Research
B e R

Interview

Hilla

Seminar

e

Annual Meeting

Fg

6S Management Advance Meeting
6S BIRHES

Interview

Hilg

Group’s Website
A
Social Media

MR e

Site Visits

EHER

Assessment and Performance Evaluation
Bz RKRBEM

Meeting

o
S

Customer Service

BERS

Group’s Website

1 E Ak

Social Media

AR

Customer Satisfaction Survey

BEFMEERE
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Stakeholder Groups
BHE

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

Main Communication Channels

TRBERE

Employees

=]

Investors

REE

Shareholders

PR

Government

BT

Electronic Communication

BB

Staff Meeting

BTXE

Team Building Activities
EREEE)

Seminar and Workshop
g RIS
Performance Appraisal
BREZ

Face-to-face Meeting and Teleconference

EHAREEGH

Investor Briefing

BEE W

Investor Relations Page in the Group’s Website
PEBUERNREERESE

Annual Report, Interim Report, Financial Reports and Announcements

FI - PHWRE  MBBRREAE

Annual General Meeting

BFERE

Annual Report, Interim Report, Financial Reports and Announcements
Filf - PHIWmE  MBHRREAE

Face-to-face Meeting and Teleconference

EHAREEGH

Group’s Website

ef=E i

Public Consultation
AR
Meeting

P
=
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BRI - 4 ERERERE

Materiality Assessment 3.5. EEHFIML
Identifying material ESG issues lays the foundation of BRI EENESCGEERTLERTEAIREERE
corporate sustainability principle setting. Material issues FHEBER SZRBATENERIESG
provide a clear direction for corporate development and FEfp BRI HARN T W AEENEFS
ESG risk management. The Group's Board of Directors EEAE=ZFREBEUFBEZERBERNAR - B
has appointed a third-party sustainability consulting TUBREEEEEBEBNIIRERREZ
company to identify and focus on sustainability issues B RE—TIRAEEHZFNEZRD
related to business management. In order to further IRARA C RAREE - NEETK T TE
strengthen the Group’s in-depth understanding of the MEZENE - BRESEEMNBTRBRFARRK
opinions of various stakeholders, the Group completed a BREY  URHERBRITENBRRR
full materiality assessment during the Reporting Period. MEBESK - BB T — RN EERT]
Based on the Group's past performance and future HETEAENZE BERABRMEZENNA
development priorities, as well as macroeconomic and INFEHE(BREEETEE 81 - #ER
industry policy trends and regulatory requirements, we Z)REEERAE  THEHSZEHEE
have identified a series of issues related to the Group’s FEMMEE  cERFAEER  BRMHEL
sustainable development. A questionnaire was then sent to HERRASE D& D AKX (HEE
material internal and external stakeholders (including the LR E) AN FNESS R/
management, employees, suppliers, etc.) to understand v (HEMBOENTE) BN EZHE
their views on the materiality of each issue to the P :
Group. Based on the survey results, we calculated and
summarized materiality matrix, in which the X-axis (impact
on Tsaker New Energy) reflected internal stakeholder
scores and the Y-axis (impact on other stakeholders)
reflected external stakeholder scores:
BEEMEE
Material Topics
[ )]
[
S5 a X
= (o]
S v
jo o u Y ® 335
K 0o o° Environmental
H#Ht S L
* 35 v-® © s
22 P —
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O
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Impact on Tsaker New Energy

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]



Environmental Material Issues

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

Social Material Issues

REEERE HEEERE
1. Air pollutants emissions 1. Business ethics and integrity
Z2SR5 R B EEICEYEAS
2. Compliance with environmental 2. Compliance with relevant local social laws and regulations

laws and regulations

NHARBAREERER

A B SRBAERER

<) Wastewater discharge and S Occupational health and safety
management BEERNZE
ARBER AN E 1B

5 g E 1=

No. Area Topics

A Environmental Compliance with environmental laws and regulations

RIE RHERBRBEOERER

B Air pollutants emissions
ZER5 RMBE R

@ Wastewater discharge and management
JIKEER AN E I8

D General waste management
—REEYER

E Hazardous waste handling
BEEEYRE

F Efficient use of materials
IR AR R

G Efficient use of resources
BAFAEIR

H Use of renewable resources
KA BEEIR
Greenhouse gas emissions and relevant targets
B EREEHEAIAEM B R

J Identify and mitigate climate-related physical risks
70 RS SRR AEL R £ 032 L B

K Identify and mitigate climate-related transition risks
R FORES R A A A S A R B

L Sustainable factory elements
AFEIMmITE

M Setting up sustainability framework and strategy

AR LT 45 4B B RAE R M SIS
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RIE - HLERERBE

19 gis &=E
No. Area Topics
N Social Compliance with relevant local social laws and regulations
e e @it S ERER
O Employment-related issues
EBIEEESEE
P Diversity and equal opportunities
Zlb M SR
Q Occupational health and safety
BEEENZE
R Development and training
R NI
S Supplier quality
HEBLES
T Selection process of vendor and tendering policy
4 A E B IR AL P SR BUR
u Procurement practices
BB
Vv Customer privacy
BEEEM
W Community involvement
o
X Business ethics and integrity
A EERAE
Y Proper channels for gathering stakeholders’ feedback and comment
WENRBEENRERERNEGHEEES
Z Whistle-blowing policy for employees, clients and suppliers

BT  EPRHEENSEERRER

Based on the result of materiality assessment, Tsaker New HERUAEMMBANENEZRE R
Energy will focus on the performance of relevant aspects, TR EEMBIEARE  BIERITERER
including establishing strategies and allocating resources SEERABAERR - URBEZHZER
to improve the performance of material issues, and YEH [ fE -

responding to material issues.
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Contact Details

If you have any comments or suggestions regarding this
report,
or the contact person of ESG Committee at the address
below:

please contact the investor relations department

Building No. 10, 109 Jinghaisanlu, Beijing Economic-
Technological Development Area, the PRC

Contact person of ESG Committee: Yang Fuguang
Telephone: (86) 0317-7750925

RIGOROUS PRODUCTION

Tsaker New Energy regards the provision of sustainable
products and services as the Group’s core value. We
require suppliers to uphold the same core value and work
together towards the same goal. Therefore, we do not only
manage our supply chain, product quality management and
customer service processes with strict quality control, but
also incorporate sustainable elements in all aspects. When
sourcing raw materials and selecting suppliers, the Group
gives priority to green products and business partner with
the awareness of sustainable development.
the Group maintains close cooperation with suppliers

In addition,

and adopts two-way and constructive communication to
optimize the sustainable supply chain.

Supply chain management

Tsaker New Energy has always been committed to
supplying sustainable raw material and reducing its
impact on society and the environment. We give priority
to suppliers with similar sustainable philosophies and
social responsibilities of the Group and strive to create a
sustainable supply chain.
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To ensure the quality of purchased materials and
supply stability, standardize procurement methods, we
have formulated a series of procurement and supplier
management systems, which can reduce costs, enhance
supplier interaction, and achieve a win-win situation:

° We will conduct market research and/or site visits
to shortlist suppliers. Suppliers with advanced
technical conditions, good corporate reputation, and
reasonable business systems will be given priority
for shortlisting.

o Review and selection of new suppliers is carried out
at any time, and relevant departments would start
scoring to evaluate the progress, quality, after-sales,
service attitude, capability and sustainability of their
supply/service. The Group will assist suppliers with
lower scores by providing feedback and wait for
improvement before conducting re-evaluation.

o The Group conducts field visits to suppliers’
production plants every year to accurately monitor
suppliers’ sustainable performance. The field visits
serve to investigate ESG performance ratings and
provide opportunities for suppliers to improve
themselves. The Group is willing to maintain close
contact with suppliers and practice the concept of
sustainable development together.

° All purchased materials entering the factory
must be inspected and accepted by the quality
inspection department in strict accordance with the
internal documents before going through storage
procedures. Unqualified materials will be replaced
or returned.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]

BRI - 4 ERERERE

RREBERBYELEERHERTEMN - REK
B RARSEMERKARE - AHRE
BEH  BRER - RAWET —RIKRE
R ERERSE -

. ﬁf?ﬁﬂ%?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ/iﬁi%ﬁﬂﬂ%
CERLVZABRERRE - &
m{lﬂ#%?ﬁ  ERREBERE - A
BERMEBESHNHERKEEE

NER

. BRFIRH R PER SRR E
MEBMRRITS - SHEEMRE R
BZEE BE B RBERE -
EORFENSE - RESH D BR
fEEB’JTﬁ“"FﬁVFﬁ“E&EE FEMEH
HEWHEITEH A o

. AEESFEIHERNEERDE
TEMER » AEREDA MR
FERI - ERTBRESGHEMR
WA EUERRIURRMRE
Zli’élmﬁ IHERREETNBE

AREEFEZRNED -

. IBERBYEERTB2EBE BB
P AR A B AR 1R PR BB S 4R TE B
BAPBAETFE  TABYWER
REHRIRE -



Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group attaches great importance to the safety of
materials, stability, and production efficiency. Meanwhile,
we pay particular attention to the environmental and
social impacts of our supply chain. Our procurement
department has established a sustainable supply
chain management system in accordance with the
ISO14001:2015 environmental management system. The
department selects suitable suppliers with reference to the
guidelines and ensures that the requirement is fulfilled.
The Group reviews the performance of suppliers in terms
of environmental and social responsibilities. New suppliers
are requested to fill in the “New Supplier Evaluation Form”,
which includes an assessment of their environmental and
social risks.

In addition, our procurement department considers
the products’ environmental requirements and energy
efficiency during procurement. The Group shall consider
environmental protection of the products when purchasing
energy related products. When the Group purchases
equipment motors, it selects corresponding equipment in
strict accordance with the national energy consumption
requirements for motors, and makes corresponding
descriptions in the contract terms. The Group has
formulated coal procurement guidelines to reduce air
pollution. Factories are required to purchase low-sulfur,
relatively clean coal as boiler fuel to reduce sulfur oxide
emissions. When purchasing hazardous chemicals, it is
mandatory for manufacturers to hold valid production and
operation licenses to ensure that the quality and source of
raw materials meet product and regulatory requirements.

Geographical Distribution of Suppliers

Number of Suppliers
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Proportion of Suppliers

HEFHE HE®EL
Category E=h) 2021 2022 2021
Local i 655 99.6% 99.7%
Overseas NSEN 2 0.4% 0.3%
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Quality Control

Ensuring product quality is the cornerstone of winning
the trust of customers and maintaining the long-term
development of the Group. Therefore, the Group strictly
implements product quality management to provide
customers with high-quality products and services.
To ensure that the procedures are accurate and well-
ordered, the Group strictly enforces quality control
requirements and conducts inspection and maintenance
regularly in accordance with 1SO9001:2015 quality
management system standards. The Group also maintains
the temperature, humidity, static protection and other
key elements and keeps records of the monitoring and
improvement measures to ensure optimum product quality.
Of all the detail management and high-quality products,
the Group set apart from other competitors.

With rigorous and professional quality control, the Group
has been recognized and affirmed by the local government
and professional organizations. During the Reporting
Period, the research and development and technology
of Tsaker New Energy obtained a total of 22 awards and
certifications as follows:

Name of Corporate Award

B LE
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Awarding Organization

mERHE

Technologically advanced “little giant” enterprise

BiREBHMINEAIRE

National intellectual property advantageous enterprises

BRAMAEREES TR

Hi-tech enterprises certificate

Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
RE ARKEMBETEMNE

BB R TE 80

State Intellectual Property Office
BRABEER

Hebei Provincial Department of Science and

SR EEESE

Industrial enterprise R&D institution in Hebei Province

AILE TREEFEME

R ARAT

Technology, Hebei Provincial Finance Department,
State Taxation Administration of Hebei Province of
Hebei Province

LB RERmE
BB R

LB A - BRMBERTIE

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Hebei Province

AL E TEMEBLE



Environment, Social and Governance Report

Name of Corporate Award

EXRIFHE

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Awarding Organization

mEHE

Ecology and environmental supervision positive list in
Hebei Province
b B ERRRIREE FEESE

Single champion enterprise in Hebei Province

AL BIEBELE

Zero waste plant in Hebei Province

A Ab A EERE TR

“Specialized, Sophisticated, Distinctive, and
New” SME in Hebei Province
LA TERE P/

Single champion product in manufacturing industry

HEXERREEM

Industry-university-research cooperation innovation
award in Hebei Province

AL ES2H A ERIFT R

Enterprise technology center in Hebei Province

AIEA RO

Maker in China-Solid waste source transformation
in DSD acid preparation and high value utilization
technology and industrialization

BIE B — DSD R 25 [E pF IR SR L R » B EF ARl 8
EXt

The first batch of “leaders” of county-level
characteristic industrial clusters in Hebei Province

AL EESEEEERER [ AlRE

“Specialized, Sophisticated, Distinctive, and
New” SME in Dongying
RET [ ERE RN

Department of Ecology and Environment of Hebei
Province

LA EREIRIREE

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Hebei Province

AdbE TERMEB{LEE

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Hebei Province

AILE TRMEBLEE

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Hebei Province
b TEAE R

Industry and Information Technology Department, China
Federation of Industrial Economics
REAREMBTEMESSMAN PRI ELEHRSS

Hebei Province Industry-University-Research
Cooperation Promotion Association
ML EESBREIERES

Development and Reform Commission of Hebei
Province
LB BERE

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Hebei Province

AibA TERMEB{LEE

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Hebei Province

AETERMEBLE

Dongying Municipal Bureau of Industry and
Information Technology
REMILER
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Name of Corporate Award

EXRIFHE

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Awarding Organization

mEHE

Enterprise technology center in Dongying

RETEERMH L

“One enterprise, one techonology” R&D center in
Dongying
RET [ — 1 — i | B3O

Science and technology enterprise in Dongying

REMRHRBBE

Key laboratory of pesticides and pharmaceutical
intermediates in Dongying
RETRERBENHBERERE

The second prize of the 3rd Qil, Land and University
Integration Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Competition

FZERRBA R RAE_F&

2022 Innovative SME of Shandong Province

IR E 2022 F EAIFT A AR/ EE

Excellence prize of the 3rd Advanced Materials
Industrial Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Competition

FEZEMMHEXATAEAEES K

Single champion product in manufacturing industry in
Shandong Province

WREREXEREELE

Dongying Development and Reform Commission
REMBRE

Dongying Municipal Bureau of Industry and
Information Technology
REMIER

Dongying Science and Technology Bureau

REMREB

Dongying Science and Technology Bureau

REMRER

Dongying Science and Technology Bureau,
Organizing Committee of the 3rd Qil, Land
and University Integration Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Competition of Dongying
BEMEEE - REMEZERREEAIFAIEAEE
BEae

Industry and Information Technology Department of
Shandong Province

RS TEME R

Shandong Advanced Materials Industry Association

WREMMBEE RS

Industry and Information Technology Department
of Shandong Province, Federation of Industrial
Economics of Shandong Province

IWRETEMERLE  WRETITERERAS

E
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RIE - HERERRE

(Technologically advanced ‘“little giant” enterprise)
(BRI NEAIRE)

(“One enterprise, one techonology” R&D center in Dongying)

(R&W [ ——5iy | HEh o)

(Science and technology enterprise in Dongying)

(REMHRAEE)
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4.3. Fulfilling Product Responsibility

To handle customer inquiries in an effective manner, the
Group has established a quality control department and
formulated a comprehensive complaint and product recall
mechanism.

1. The sales department checks the relevant situation
of the customer’s complaint product in detail,
understands the reason of the customer’s complaint,
confirms the customer’s complaint request, assists
the customer to solve the difficult problem or
provides the necessary reference materials, and
quickly communicates the processing result.

2. When the business personnel of the sales
department receive the customer’s report of
product abnormality, they should immediately find
out the specific situation of the abnormality and
the customer’s request, and send the relevant
text records together with the abnormal sample
to the person in charge of the sales department
for processing. Send it to the after-sales service
department and copy it to the general manager’s
office, etc.

38 The after-sales service department will coordinate
with relevant departments to trace and analyze the
reasons, formulate countermeasures, and feedback
the relevant results to the sales department.

4, The person in charge of the sales department
communicates and negotiates with the customer
according to the handling opinions made by the
company, forms a scientific and proper handling
plan and implements it. Records should be kept of
the processing results.

o) In order to avoid repeated mistakes, the Group
will also share the complaints handled in the past
as individual cases, so as to raise the awareness
of other employees, and discuss the improvement
of production and inspection procedures and
countermeasures together.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents requiring product recalls due to safety and
health issues.

The development of Tsaker New Energy could not be
sustained without the customers’ trust and support. We
are committed to establishing a good relationship with
customers and maintain product satisfaction. We regularly
conduct customer satisfaction surveys in order to gather
customer opinions and further improve the quality of
products and services. During the Reporting Period, no
complaints were received regarding any dissatisfaction
with any of the Groups’ products and services.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights protection is the basis of
our ongoing innovation and maintenance of market
competition. By the end of 2022, the Group has a total of
82 proprietary intellectual property rights. In the Reporting
Period, the Group have applied for 36 intellectual property
rights. The Group has formulated relevant policies and
codes in accordance with local laws and regulations, and
strictly requires employees to follow relevant regulations.
We attach great importance to protecting the patented
technologies and commercial rights of the Group and other
partners, handling their intellectual property rights carefully
and properly.

Safeguarding Customer Privacy

The Group strives to protect the data privacy of
stakeholders. For instance, the Group articulates that
a confidentiality agreement must be signed when
negotiating with suppliers, customers or partners in a bid
to fully protect the interests of all parties. To prevent the
leakage of customer information, the Group has issued
clear guidelines to all employees on the collection and
processing of customers’ personal or business information,
to ensure the security of private data.

4.4.

4.5.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

FEREHIRE - AL BT E 2 R
2R RE M A B W E mE) EF o

FEMERNAIHEERBETHEFNER
X - RABIRBEFREILRINAE
MR YEBEFOMEE - RTHEFE
RUAFBERSERNRRBORE - RAKE
HETETREERE - RBEHR - A%
B ERE A HEEMERRRBTRE
HIR AR ©

REAHERE

HMBERRESANKETEHA  RIETS
BREHER  HIL2022FRAEEHESR
B2t EBMBERE - Ho - EAREH &
B3I AR S6 T MM EE - ARERIEE
ERERBIE T HEBRER MR - WERE
KETETHARE - LI RENEE R
Hitp B ERHNFEN M AMEEENRES
MEZNNVE  FEXEREEMBEE -

REEFLRE

FRMERBNINRESTRHOENEER
Fhoo Pl REBEREEEER FPHA
ERHHARBERERERE  UESR
ERTINE o W R LEEFERINE
AEBERRERRIEEPEARERER
M8 THNARES - UHERLAZRIE
MLz -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

51



52

5.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

SAFE AND ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY
WORKPLACE

The Group is devoted to safeguarding the health and
safety of employees, and has established safety and
environmental protection (“S&E”) department at each
production unit to comply the local regulations during the
production progress. The department conducts weekly
meetings with production managers and representatives
to provide feedback, safety and environmental protection-
related opinions and suggestions, as well as the promotion
and explanation of the latest relevant policies. The
establishment of the S&E department strengthens the
communication and scientific and technological knowledge
among departments, as well as minimizes the operational
risks of the employees and environment impacts while
exhibits the Group’'s responsibility on its staff and
environment.

Safety Management

As a manufacturer of chemical materials, Tsaker New
Energy’s employees require to handle and mix chemicals
during work. The Group adheres to the principle of
“prevention for safety” and is committed to creating a safe
working environment for its employees. In accordance with
the local fire protection and 1SO45001:2018 occupational
health and safety framework, the Group strictly implements
fire safety measures to ensure workplace safety.

Use and Storage of Dangerous Chemicals

To minimize safety risks, the Group has set up a rigorous
safety management system for the storage, loading
and unloading, transportation and usage of hazardous
chemicals. The personnel in charge of transport, loading
and unloading of hazardous chemicals must be trained
and possess the relevant certifications. Production units
storing hazardous chemicals must comply with the relevant
standards and regulations and meet the requirements
of the National “Building Design Fire Protection Code”.
Beyond that, regular training about chemical management
has been provided for employees to diminish the risks
caused by mishandling.
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Raising Safety Awareness

Raising the safety awareness of our employees is the
responsibility of Tsaker New Energy. Each new employee
must pass a three-month probationary period under the
guidance of qualified personnel before being formally
hired. During the probation, new employees must abide by
the rules and work under the guidance of the senior staff,
learn the proper chemical handling procedures to avoid
mistakes. After probation, employees are also required
to participate in safety courses and take examinations
regularly organized by the Group to consolidate their
knowledge. The Group provides physical examinations
annually to ensure employees’ physical health is sufficient
to cope with work arrangements and occupational safety.

To cultivate employees’ safety awareness, the Group
encourages employees to participate in occupational
safety-related activities. Meanwhile, we invited internal
and external speakers to conduct occupational health and
safety trainings, including special training on safety culture
and hazardous chemical industry, basic knowledge training
on safe use of electricity and equipment, fire protection,
emergency knowledge, first aid and self-rescue training,
etc. During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s production
bases have conducted a total of 23 employee accident
prevention and safety trainings to improve the overall
safety measures of the Group.
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RIE - HERERRE

(Spill prevention emergency drill)
(F7R R e =R AR )

(Fire drill)
CEPE®R)
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Promoting Automated Production

As automated manufacturing has become the current
production development trend, it also enhances the
product stability and operation safety to reduce human
errors and work injuries. The Group has adapted the latest
automatic system to monitor the production process and
detect any mechanical failure. The Group will continue to
promote automated production at all the production units to
boost production safety and efficiency.

To maintain energy use in a good manner, real-time energy
monitoring system has been installed, including five
networked systems for water, electricity, coal (consumed
coal, purchased coal), and natural gas. Platform-based
management is implemented for automatic monitoring and
analysis, the data is real-time and reliable. Using intelligent
metering can cover and collect the data comprehensively,
predict energy consumption trends, and improve economic
benefits.

For the online monitoring of pollution sources, operation
supervision and data application, video surveillances are
installed in the online monitoring stations and sampling
locations, the operating parameters of online monitoring
equipment are monitored at the same time. Face
recognition is used for authentication when entering the
monitoring stations, the activity personnel is recorded.
To achieve full monitoring of the operation process
and parameters of pollution emissions and improve the
reliability of online pollution monitoring data application,
comprehensive analysis and judgment are conducted
through the monitoring data, operation status, emission
characteristics of pollution sources, operation and
maintenance events, and video monitoring (commonly
known as “Dynamic management and control system or
intelligent management and control system”).
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Equipped with Safety Facilities

Tsaker New Energy implements a series of measures
to protect its workers from occupational injuries. For
instance, the Group has installed accident prevention
and control facilities such as alarm systems for pressure,
temperature and liquid levels, as well as detecting systems
for combustible gases, harmful gases and oxygen.
The equipment maintenance department of the Group
is responsible for the maintenance and rectification of
problems detected with these facilities at least once a
month, subsequently reporting to the Ministry of Safety for
record purposes.

The Group has equipped each production unit with
fire prevention, firefighting and emergency escape
facilities. This includes the installation of firewalls, fire
extinguishers and escape routes, configured by the
Group’s safety department. The Group strictly implements
the safety production responsibility system and defines
safety management responsibilities at all levels. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has carried out 473
investigations on safety hazards and has found and
rectified 1,443 hidden hazards. The Group has also invited
the emergency management departments, law enforcement
brigades and environmental law enforcement departments
of different provinces, cities, ports and districts for a total
of 107 times, and has completely rectified 627 items. In
order to ensure the execution of safety measures during
project construction periods, the Group has strengthened
the safety management of the third-party construction
personnels, to which 24 hazards were found and rectified,
and the relevant personnel punished accordingly. With
complete safety measures, the Group did not have any
work-related fatalities and lost workdays due to work-
related injuries during the Reporting Period, achieving the
safety goal of zero work-related fatalities in the last three
years including the Reporting Period.
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Environmental Protection

Tsaker New Energy actively respond to our national
green development planning, incorporating environmental
protection into each stage of its production and operation.
Beyond complying with all environmental laws and
regulations, the Group also embeds green technologies
into emission and waste reduction and resource efficiency
improvement, to reduce the environmental impact.

Environmental Policy

In order to further strengthen the environmental
performance management of business operations, the
Group has obtained the 1SO14001:2015 environmental
management system, and according to this international
standard, each subsidiary formulated the Environmental
Protection Management System according to their own
actual conditions, explaining the Group’s promotion of
sustainable development Relevant policies and measures:

o Setting up an environmental protection committee,
mobilizing members from various departments of the
group, and clarifying the environmental protection
responsibilities of members.

o The Group strictly complies with the requirements
of the national environmental protection standards
to apply for a pollutant discharge permit, formulates
a monitoring plan in accordance with the
requirements of the pollutant discharge permit, and
conducts data testing according to the plan. Once
data abnormalities occur, relevant personnel are
immediately organized to analyze the abnormalities
and find out the reasons for active maintenance
rectification.
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. Strengthening environmental protection training
for company employees, enhancing environmental
protection awareness, and improving environmental
protection technical quality.

o Strengthening the checking, monitoring and
implementation of supervision and management of
environmental factors, establishing a risk prevention
system for environmental factors, and improving
the ability to prevent and deal with sudden
environmental pollution incidents.

o Following the principles of impartiality, fairness,
convenience, and timeliness to disclose corporate
environmental information.

° Punishing the persons responsible for environmental
pollution accidents, and setting up environmental
protection target responsibility assessment.

Operational Environment Management

The Group has identified the environmental footprints
of its daily operations, including air emissions, energy
consumption, greenhouse gas emissions, water
consumption, sewage discharge, hazardous and non-
hazardous waste production and the use of packaging
materials.

Climate Change and Countermeasures

As climate change intensifies, we must realize how it
impacts the future development of the Group and respond
accordingly. The Group has adopted various measures
to strategically address the consequences of climate
change. In this Reporting Period, Tsaker New Energy
analyzed and explained the existing and future challenges
and opportunities brought about by climate change with
reference to past experience. This shall strengthen Tsaker
New Energy’s resilience to climate change.
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Both the Board of Directors and ESG Committee of Tsaker
New Energy take climate change seriously and have
discussed and provided various recommendations, to
address the risks and opportunities brought by climate
change.

The production plants of Tsaker New Energy are in North
China, which are susceptible to drought and hot weather.
Research institutions found that extreme weather, such
as extreme droughts and heat waves, will become more
frequent as a result of climate change and may even occur
in areas which have never experienced such situations
before. Tsaker New Energy has experienced the disasters
caused by extreme weather, daily operations have been
affected, including direct economic losses caused by
production stoppage and machine damage. The suppliers
might also be affected by climate change, leading to
fluctuations in the supply chain, thereby affecting the
Group’s production operations.

One of the risks brought about by climate change is the
stringent policy induced by Government for the control of
greenhouse gas emissions from production. Customers
would pay more attention to their carbon footprint, and
competitors in the industry will upgrade their technology in
response to market changes.

The climate transition also brings huge opportunities to
Tsaker New Energy. The national goal of carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality not only points out the direction
and expands the space for the development of the new
energy industry, but also brings important opportunities. At
present, the transportation mode and energy consumption
structure are undergoing profound changes. With the
new round of scientific and technological revolution and
industrial transformation, the lithium battery new energy
industry is growing in line with the market. Lithium iron
phosphate, as a widely used positive electrode raw
material in lithium-ion batteries, currently has a very broad
market space, and iron phosphate, as an upstream product
of lithium iron phosphate, has a very considerable market
space.
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In the Reporting Period, the Group has continued to work
toward its five-year (2021-2025) short-term goal with the
theme of “To tackle severe pollution weather, helping
to reach carbon neutrality”. In this Reporting Period,
the Group reduced carbon emissions constantly, by
conducting several transformations of production intelligent
measures. For instance, real-time energy monitoring system
has been installed, including five networked systems for
water, electricity, coal (consumed coal, purchased coal),
and natural gas to better manage and monitor the energy
usage and predict the trend of energy consumption.
Improvement of energy utilization efficiency and production
efficiency could be made, and power consumption could
be reduced, thereby reducing greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions. Tsaker New Energy has always been adhering
to the principle of environmental friendliness, strictly
abiding by all applicable laws and regulations, and has
established several internal initiatives to achieve emission
reduction and carbon reduction, as well as actively
responded to the implementation of relevant national
documents to raise awareness of the climate crisis. In
order to better respond to the national goal of “carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality”, the Group arranged
special personnel to study the carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality policies, set up a national and provincial data
reporting platform, and completed the carbon emission
report through learning. During the performance period, it
became the first enterprise in Cangzhou to complete the
performance of the contract.

Management of Air Pollutant Emissions

The major sources of Tsaker New Energy’'s air pollutant
emission are the coal from Dongguang Production Plants,
natural gas in each production plant, the incinerators that
handle hazardous waste and fuel usage for transportation.
The air pollutants emitted mainly include nitrogen oxide
(“NOx”), sulfur oxide (“SOx”"), and Particulate Matters. In
this regard, the Group pays great attention to the impact
caused by atmospheric pollutants generated during
production on the surrounding environment and the health
of our employees.
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The Group has formulated coal procurement guidelines
to reduce the negative impact of air pollutants, stipulating
that the related premises shall purchase low-sulfur and
relatively clean coal as fuel of boilers to lower the sulfur
oxide emission. Up to 90% of air pollutants has been
removed from emitted smoke by the denitrification,
desulfurization and dust removal facilities in each
production unit. To fulfill the commitment to air quality,
the factory is equipped with real-time flue gas air quality
monitoring equipment to ensure that the air pollutants
emitted are controlled at levels far below the emission
standards.

“Green production” is the essential principle that Tsaker
New Energy attaches great importance to and is committed
to incorporating clean energy into the production process.
In Dongguang Production Plant, coal has been consistently
replaced by natural gas and purchased steam to reduce
the air pollutant emission and impact to the air quality.
Besides, the Group takes sufficient emission reduction
measures, such as ultra-low emissions, plume management
and Volatile Organic Compound (“VOC”") management,
to reduce the carbon footprint in the production process.
During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out a
number of research and development projects to reduce
air pollutant emissions during production. For example, in
accordance with the national energy saving and emission
reduction policy, Dongao Production Plant has carried
out research and development on the incineration and
transportation of toluidine vacuum tail gas to recover the
materials entrained in the vacuum tail gas and reduce the
emission of VOCs during the production process. Tsaker
Huayu has also launched a clean production project, which
has successfully achieved zero iron sludge discharge by
adding value to the iron sludge waste produced during
the production process of DSD Acid (55,000 tonnes per
year), consequently increasing the industrial value of the
products.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

AEBHE TRREBERES - LB KRS
AYMHERNBETE - HEAREEZRBE
FERBBETT - HEBEOKRAERREN
£ AR EREICHTR - REEER
BHW BRRRBENORE  EHRTRE
%M ARISRY - RABREEMEREZE
REENAH HEREERERZREX
ERIRE - AR A RIS RYIESE
EERPBARERKFE

(HEEE| RLENERNESNRE
BB BREFMAEEBREFR - FREXAE
ERE BRERBEAARMEBEZR LS
KR ERSAEDEREHERIRERN
S o BN REEFEEE AR BEEE
BB IEHERR ~ BPEBFIEREBE RS
¥ ([VOC]) BB - LR A A A B2 v iR
T o EAREH - EEEBITZIERENRE
BHE R EEBRTNERREEYN
EE-flin RBAEREHRRETHRERR
HETERERBXERNETEMTEMEEE -
EUWEZERRFRENYE - RO EERE
FERVOCsHIBER - & Bl K &0 RS R HE A I
Ko RNEERARBREEERB @ Kifka
FEHTE  BDSDEEEBREFEEMNE
SEERE (EL S8 F)BELAE &
RECEZTHER - #REMIGMT TEEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

61



Environment, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Group has continued to
work toward its air emission target to reduce air pollutant
emissions intensity (by formula: various air pollutant
emissions data usage/M’ RMB Revenue). Tsaker New
Energy endeavors to minimize the emission during the
production process through upgrading and optimizing
the facilities and technologies, as well as explore feasible
emission reduction measures to consistently reduce
impacts on the environment.

BRI - 4 ERERERE

MARER  NEBEE TR LR
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Air Pollutant Emissions BER B 2022 2021
NOx emissions (tonnes) A&y (H8) 18 34
NOx emissions intensity (NOx emissions/ — @E/cWHERZE (BELWEER

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARERAN) 0.008 0.017
SOx emissions (tonnes) wmE by () 8 9
SOx emissions intensity (SOx emissions/ BREMEEREE (FRaEtmiin,/

M’ RMB Revenue) BEAREEA) 0.004 0.005
Particulate Matter emissions (tonnes) FERY) (ME) 1 5
Particulate Matter emissions intensity BRI BER T (BRI BEm

(Particulate Matter emissions/ BEARBIA)

M’ RMB Revenue) 0.0006 0.002

Air pollutant emissions breakdowns:

EiEREER AR

2022 2021

Emissions Emissions

per unit per unit
Emission product Emission product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)’ change
B2 BWER P E B @ B o
Tsaker Huayu KEER (W) HEkE (WE) (Bg) k= (WE) BERRTBEE%
NOx emissions REtY 15.60 0.0003 22.15 0.0006 50.00
SOx emissions ety 6.67 0.00015 7.24 0.00018 16.67
Particulate Matter EE ) 0.84 0.00002 2.23 0.00006 66.67
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2022 2021

Emissions Emissions

per unit per unit
Emission product Emission product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)’ Change
B2 BWER PR E T m FEMiE m
Tsaker Dongao FERR (Wg) BepE (W) (WE)  BEpE (ME) BERUTPEE%
NOx emissions RELY 0.6161 0.00001 1.1457 0.00002 50.00
SOx emissions may 0.0297 0.0000005 0.046  0.0000006 16.67
Particulate Matter FERLY) 0.0302 0.0000005 0.0772 0.000001 50.00

2022 2021

Emissions Emissions

per unit per unit
Emission product Emission product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)’ Change
g BMER P E FMAE m B f
Tsaker Technology EENE (Wg) HEkE (WE) (W) BERRE (W) ' BERRTPREE%
NOx emissions REY 1.29 0.00009 10.216 0.0005 82.00
SOx emissions ety 0.83 0.00006 1.923 0.0001 40.00
Particulate Matter EER kY| 0.32 0.00002 2.564 0.0001 80.00

1 Air pollutant emissions per unit product of 2021 are 1 2021 FEEREMERENEHETG

restated.

Improving Energy Efficiency and Reducing Carbon
Emissions

The major GHG emissions of Tsaker New Energy come
from electricity, natural gas, coal and purchased steam
consumption. GHG emissions control becomes one of
the core issues among countries in response of climate
change. During the Reporting Period, Tsaker New Energy
continues to take efforts towards our 5-year short-term goal
(from 2021 to 2025), to reduce the energy usage intensity
(by formula: energy usage/M’ RMB revenue).

CRIEFNHEREIZERANEN - TR
R BREINEEROER - RRIEE(LE
—Bg  EHAEREIAKASEERMN
FRAREY HREFEREEHRM
RSFERHBZ (2021-20254 ) & H - BNfE
BeeRFEAZENEE (EAXA  g2REA
2/ HEARBRA) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

63



64

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Tsaker New Energy pays attention to energy conservation
and efficiency improvement, its energy management
system is certified with ISO 50001:2018 energy
management system, and established its internal
“Energy Management Policy”, which standardizes energy
management procedures and encourages energy saving
actions following national energy strategies to reduce
carbon emissions. This policy comprehensively stipulates
the division of responsibilities, principles, and specific
operations during energy management:

o Clarifies the specific responsibilities of relevant
departments and positions in energy conservation
and relevant assessment management, so as to
improve the work efficiency of energy management.

° Defines energy data reporting process,
measurement tool management measures, and
energy technology file management system
to accurately provide testing-related energy
consumption data, make informed arrangements in
a timely manner and carry out energy-saving and
emission-reduction work based on data analysis
results.

o Formulates relevant operation and management
manuals for the company’s main energy equipment
to ensure its safe, economical and efficient
operation, and achieve energy conservation while
meeting the production needs.

o Formulates subdivided energy management

systems according to the nature of each production
workshop.
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. Clarifies the energy assessment and management
system and formulates reward and punishment
rules, analyzes various consumption indicators
on a regular basis to encourage energy-using
departments to effectively control internal
consumption. Individuals and departments that
consume energy exceeding the predetermined level
are subject to appropriate penalties and required
timely rectification. Individuals with outstanding
achievements in energy conservation will be
commended and rewarded.

For the production site aspect, the Group have completed
the retrofitting process to reduce waste and greenhouse
gas emissions effectively. The Group also regularly
conducts facilities inspections, repairs, or upgrades
the production facilities for energy saving and better
efficiency. In addition, the Group has formulated electricity
consumption guidelines for employees to practice energy
saving actions in their daily work in order to implement
high-efficiency electricity consumption.

The Group also incorporates sustainable elements into
its daily operations to have environmental protection
practices in the workplace. Adhering to the concept of
“green, energy saving, and environmental protection”, the
Group has increased its investment in building a new full-
featured technology research and development centre and
a technology office building, which has improved the ability
of research and development and the office environment,
increased the intensity of natural lighting, and reduced
office electricity consumption.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE
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The Group conducted several retrofitting projects to reduce
energy consumption in the Reporting Period, including:

° There is a motor overload in the synthetic post
reactor of the iron phosphate workshop, as the
equipment need to run for long periods of time
along with rising temperatures in the approaching
summer to meet increased production demands.
This has resulted in frequent motor overheating
and tripping, frequent burns of the gearbox motor,
frequent damage to gearbox gears, affecting
material uniformity and disrupted normal production.
After the modification was implemented, an annual
electricity cost savings of approximately 200,000
yuan were achieved.

° Renovate the reactor for the second stage of
nitrification, increase the heat exchange area,

$’$.E¥&iﬁ§q§ & BEREITS
- filn

BRI - 4 ERERERE

THHUET

HEBMBREERAKEREZEFES
BBHETRR  BROEFTRET
B BTN ANERESEMNER
BRERETT  ERBRBAEM
MR8y —1t BRI EREE
B BURMERIASEIRE - BRIE
FHE - HERBKR  FHOEED

e —

2087T °

ETHC - HduE R ERs - IBABRA
[ER Eﬁftiﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂt“ KD E

change the nitrification pot to a nitrifier, renovate RBNE - R =ENMRAERERRANR
the water washing stratifier, and renovate the gas i o E&ﬁ?éuﬁﬁ? G )T NP#0.35MF -
phase system of the third and fifth rectification RERZK 732570 B - Hi& B 568
towers. After the transformation, the steam per ton F%T_EEE
of product is reduced by 0.35 tons, and the steam
is 325 yuan/ton, saving about 5.68 million yuan in
costs.
Energy Consumption BEIR A 2022 2021
Electricity consumption (MWh) B (JLEE) 83,473 73,817
Coal consumption (tonnes) Bk (W) 52,543 72,333
Energy consumption of coal (MWh) B (JEFLRRE) 350,284 396,353
Natural gas consumption (‘000 m?3) RAR (FILFHAK) 10,457 15,436
Energy consumption of natural gas (MWh) KRR (JKELBE) 113,282 166,931
Steam consumption (tonnes)? 755 (Mg )2 349,689 170,351
Energy consumption of steam (MWh) 17?/ (JKEFLE) 271,544 132,282
Total energy consumption (MWh) marlR A E OKRE) 818,924 769,383
Total energy intensity (MWh/M’ RMB revenue) 42 ﬁé REE (JREE
ABEAREEA) 386 393
Comprehensive energy consumption per BALE MR A BT (WEIZEE 18 )
unit product (tonnes standard coal/tonnes) 0.84 0.79

2 Due to the addition of the newly operated Dongying
Production Plant in 2022, which underwent testing
phase and resulted in unstable energy consumption,
steam consumption increased significantly during the
Reporting Period.
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RIE - HLERERBE

Energy consumption breakdown by site: BHEEEMENE DAL SRR
2022 2021
Energy Energy
consumption consumption
per unit product per unit product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) Change
BWEM B E M B AR
Site Hit FREHFE FABE B FE TREE%
Tsaker Huayu HRESR 1.09 1.478 35.6
Tsaker Dongao HERE 0.342 0.370 4.43
Tsaker Technology KRB 0.70 0.599 -4.43°
3 Energy consumption per unit product of Tsaker 3 FRBBWEMA LRRERNE
Technology increased because its new product mBPDAR R AREER - AETIETE -

BPDA was undergoing testing, for which the energy
consumption was unstable.

GHG Emissions BERBHER 2022 2021
Direct GHG emission (tCO2e) ERRERBHR (M_atkg=s) 152,177 148,877
Direct GHG emission intensity (direct GHG ERRERBHERTE (ERAERE
emission/M’ RMB revenue) B BBARBEA) 72 76
Indirect GHG emission (tCO2e)* MEAEREHN(BE_StiRE=E)! 149,942 69,585
Indirect GHG emission intensity (indirect HEAEREHNEE (BEAERE
GHG emission/M’ RMB revenue) B BBAREWRA) 71 36
Total GHG emission (tCO2e) BREREHEM(B_S/{REE) 302,119 218,462
GHG emission intensity (total GHG emission/ BEREHEREE BEETEER
M’ RMB revenue) BEARBIA) 142 112
4 Due to the addition of the newly operated Dongying 4 HR2022F MBRELERFELR
Production Plant that increased purchased steam in BRABREIRN  AREHEERE
2022, indirect GHG emission and total GHG emission RPN iR ER B IR A0 -

increased significantly accordingly during the Reporting

Period.
Water Saving and Wastewater Treatment B AKR EKEE
The group is always aware of the water conservation EF—BHUK SEEREHKEEBII/E B
and strictly implements the water saving measures. By SRENVITENKIENE - B2 EKERGE -
developing a comprehensive water saving management LEHESKELS - BIKEHBFEAAL ©
system, the awareness of water saving can be promoted it - %2@%&@5;‘}%2%)%*&5?&@7 BiZ
to the society and deeply rooted in people’s hearts. The HEEERREAKERE (HAX A K
Group is aware that water is a valuable resource for the 2/ BEARBIA) -

Group and its impact on production and operations.
Consequently, Tsaker New Energy has set targets for water
efficiency to reduce water intensity (by formula: water
consumption/M" RMB revenue).
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To make better use of water resources, the Group has
formulated strict water use guidelines and implemented
them in various operating sites in order to effectively use
water resources. Relevant water saving measures are as
follows:

1. Optimize the water-saving process, use the
Yangtze River water for production at the source,
and achieve the purpose of water saving from the
aspect of process optimization, and reduce water
consumption by adopting new technologies and
improving processes. The battery materials segment
and the key processes of the main products
in traditional segments have all achieved zero
discharge of water.

2. Strengthen internal management, establish and
improve various water management systems
and water assessments, resolutely put an end to
running, leaking, dripping, and leaking, and strictly
implement water-saving systems and measures.

£k Do a good job in water recycling, starting from every
link, and constantly exploring new ways to save
water. For example, the recovery and utilization
of boiler steam heat exchange condensate after
collection, the reduction of splash loss in cooling
towers, the increase in the concentration of cooling
water, the optimization of recycling of cooling water
and sewage, and the use of boiler waste heat
secondary water for office heating, etc.

4. Intensify publicity, improve the professional quality
and water-saving awareness of all employees, and
make water conservation a conscious action of all
employees.

5 Strengthen rainwater recovery, collect rainwater in
the factory area in different areas, and use them
for landscaping, process production or recycling
after treatment, so as to achieve zero discharge of
rainwater.
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As the water supply was mainly provided by the relevant
departments of the municipal government, the Group did
not encounter any problems in water supply during the
Reporting Period.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

RAKEERMBAEBEPIRE - FAUE
SERHERARLREEKRERE T HES
EAAIFERE -

Water Consumption Ji:P3 2022 2021°
Water consumption (m?) K& (SZF5K) 868,929 1,335,751
Water intensity RK=E

(water consumption/M’ RMB revenue) OUKkBEE /BBEARERA) 409 750
5 Water consumption and water intensity in 2021 are 5 2021 FAKERAKEEHEINHE -

restated.

The two major types of wastewaters discharged by the
Group are industrial sewage and domestic wastewater.
Tsaker New Energy, as a responsible manufacturer,
takes seriously to the environmental impacts caused by
wastewater discharge. Despite obtaining the wastewater
discharge permits approved by the government, the
Group has set up wastewater discharging facilities and
online monitoring facilities to ensure complying to the local
discharge standards.

To effectively manage water resources, the Group has
set a target to reduce wastewater discharge intensity
from 2021 to 2025 (by formula: wastewater discharge/
M’ RMB revenue). The Group shall monitor the emission
intensity annually and illustrate the performance. In 2025,
a summary will be made to review the effectiveness and
performance of this 5-year target.

AEBMAYPRANBEKREED BT REKMAE
EIEK  REHBERIERAEEINEES -
T ERMBERET KB RORETZE
R BRRALFKER IR R I N B AR BE R AR A
I BR1S 30 77 BT 38 AT O R K BETRRT AT 78 - Hi
RETFERE R R EE M HE IS A -

AEBMAETEREEKER - AT 77
2021 F EZ 2025 F MR EBEKEREENE
Z(EARNAE  BEKERE BEARBI
AN AEEEBFETHAERERE - I
SHERGENRI - Bl2025F S E— R4k
ERULSF BIZRIKRAMTIER -

Wastewater BEX 2022 20216
Wastewater quantity (md) REKE (L F7K) 355,896 597,080
Wastewater intensity (wastewater quantity/

M' RMB revenue) BEKEE (BEKE/BBAREEA) 168 335

6 Wastewater quantity in 2021 is restated.

6 2021 FEEKEWEHATHE ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

69



70

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Waste Management

“Utilizing resources wisely and reducing waste at source”
is the principle of Tsaker New Energy during operation.
We continuously improve the use efficiency of resources,
endeavor to reduce waste from source, increase the
recycling of general waste and handle hazardous waste
properly. The waste incurred from the Group are mainly
industrial waste, hazardous waste and domestic waste.

Hazardous Waste

As a chemical manufacturer, the Group inevitably produces
hazardous wastes during operation and production, such
as industrial waste oil and sludge. We value environmental
health and safety as we understand the severe biodiversity
impacts caused by hazardous waste mishandling. Hence,
Tsaker New Energy adopts a rigorous management to
ensure the aforementioned wastes are safely treated and
the risk of leakage is diminished. At the same time, we
strengthen the training for personnel related to hazardous
waste, stipulate labor protection standards for relevant
posts, and carry out internal supervisions regularly.

In order to facilitate the separate collection of hazardous
wastes, the Group divides designated areas at each
production unit and set up storage warehouses for
hazardous and dangerous wastes with different labels
according to the types of hazardous wastes. Waterproof
and rainproof measures are also adopted to prevent the
leakage and pollution of hazardous wastes and protect the
safety of employees at the same time. The Group recruits
qualified third-party contractors and hazardous handling
companies to collect and manage hazardous wastes.
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Non-hazardous Waste

During the operation, the Group has produced non-
hazardous wastes such as general waste, food waste,
office wastepaper, packaging boxes, scrap iron, coal
cinder, waste plastic and waste trays. The Group actively
responds to the national policy and implements the internal
waste segregation, reduce waste from the source and
recycles paper, wood, metal and plastics to practice
its promise on reducing waste from sources. During the
Reporting Period, the Group is committed to leading its
employees to make good use of resources and strengthen
waste management. The implementation of non-hazardous
waste recycling measures has achieved remarkable
results, which have nearly 100% recycling rate. Tsaker
New Energy shall seek for feasible waste reduction and
recycling solutions constantly and take the responsibility
of environmental protection as an enterprise. In addition,
durable supporting tools for products transportation are
also used to reduce damage consumption and waste
generation. The following is the waste produced for this
Reporting Period:

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BEBERY

FEEBRRT  AEEMEENESEEY
BEEENER  REFH WAEEE B
®o - BEE BT BEMMBERERE - X
SEERMEEEREE  TAFRNHBER
BEEW DI WRBEMRE RS EK
kAWM @BREMFETER - AEE
RFERRNTEEETZAER - MAERE
WER  BITHWEEEEDEREEIRE
E BEEFEVRKEEILA/100% - ¥
e RS A S KA TR R R R B T &R
FIECERERIBORE o 1IN - E IR
AmARNERKREAFETE  DURDEFER
MEBEEMHESE - L TEAFREHPEEY
HE -

Waste B 2022 2021
Hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EELENEEEEY (W) 364 419
Hazardous waste intensity per unit product EMIERELBEREZY (F)

(tonnes) 0.0030 0.0029
Non-hazardous waste Produced (tonnes) EEAMEEEEY (M) 7,631 8,699
Non-hazardous waste intensity per B EmMEEERETEEY ()

unit product (tonnes) 0.0634 0.0607
Non-hazardous waste recycled (tonnes) BRI rEEREEY) (1F) 7,559 8,624
Non-hazardous waste recycled Percentage EZEREZEYRIWE 5t 99% 99%
Hazardous waste disposal intensity EEEEVMEEETE

(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (EEWEEBE / BEARERAN) 0.04 0.21
Non-hazardous waste disposal intensity MEEEVEEETE

(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (EEDZEEs BBEARBIRA) 0.03 0.04

Packaging Materials

BEME

While the Group highly emphases on eco-friendly-and safe
packaging materials choosing, the requirements from the
clients and the industry and the sturdiness of materials are
also important considerations. The former helps reducing
the impacts on environmental and human health, the latter
helps preventing the chemical leakage effectively. The
Group seeks for different packaging materials to meet the
needs.

RARBERFNNAERERANER &%%%
AEBMEENEE R TATMBAZRI

FHEEANERLARBE M?HE’]WIEJ**@
EEBNREEK - A1E A RUB D IRFEMA
BRENTE RENEARNLEELEDR
EO$§%IEXTHE’J“”¢MHM R E e

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

71



72

Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group’s Dongguang Production Plant mainly uses
paper-based materials, plastics, wood and rattan as
packaging materials. In addition, the Group provides
reusable packaging materials for short-distance
transportation within the plant. For instance, the production
units have reused a total of 1,992 iron drums carrying
its chemical product DMAS during the Reporting Period,
thereby avoiding wastage of resources as well as waste
generation.

BRI - 4 ERERERE

AEENRALERFTECRAERY
KB AMHMBESRME - B4 K
SETRERHATEANBEMIERERK
EAEEREGNER SINBERRE
HANEMERELBERDMASHHERE H
1,992 - e R ERRE  WHDER
WIEE o

Packaging Material BEMH 2022 2021
Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMERE (1) 1,243 1,807
Amount of recycled and Bl & B AR B EM R EE (1)

reused package material (tonnes) 76 73
Recycled and reused percentage BB AE DL 6% 4%
PEOPLE-ORIENTED OPERATION 6. BEIATHELEN
Employment and Labor Policies 6.1. ERERHIEX

Employees are the foundation for the long-term
development of Tsaker New Energy. We are committed
to ensuring fair practices when recruiting talents,
respecting and safeguard the rights and interests of
employees, promoting a harmonious and inclusive working
environment, and providing them with opportunities for
continuous learning and development. Besides, we will also
enhance employees’ sense of belonging to the company
through the provision of employee benefits and activities.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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Human Resource Data

The Group values human resources and emphasizes on
good talent management. The Group has complied with
national laws and regulations relating to employment
and has formulated a human resources system which
clarifies policies such as talent recruitment, promotion,
remuneration, benefits, training, and labor contracts.
The Group adopts a fair and impartial talent recruitment
and promotion mechanism and strives to ensure fair
employment and treatment of employees. The Group
recruits and promotes employees based on the employees’
suitability for the position and their abilities, as well as
the current and future development needs of the Group.
In order to maintain fair opportunities, the Group has
established a standard performance management system
to continuously review and evaluate the performance
appraisal of employees. Our performance goal setting
follows the SMART (Specific, Measurable, Attainable &
Aligned, Realistic & Relevant and Time-bound) principle,
which adjusts salary packages based on performance and
formulates performance improvement action plans with
employees through performance dialogues.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

AT EER
REBZBAABERIIEASERE - &F
ATHETERBEERER  LAEEE
WERZL T ANERGIE - HZ /50 R A
AT REE - BT HB - =R Bl BT
BREREK - ARERBAFAENRARN
AEREMEAGE - BHBFETHERERE
FTEHNEEME - AANBEMES - BURR
BEARTBESEEZBAL - ZEAEN RE
EREENMARNTR - REEEEAR
FHFNAE  FEAEE TR TIEREM
TERRE  AEBRTBREERERHE
FEEREENERERZ - HMNERE R
REGESMART (REE - AJHE - AERI R
—HRENEE - BELEHRN) RA
RERRABHFHE  WEBEWHFHAR
B THRIBEARBCETEIRTE -
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Tsaker New Energy understands that treating employees
equally and respecting their rights are the basis for
building a harmonious working environment. We prohibit
any forms of discriminatory acts based on gender, race,
region or age, and provide equal opportunities to current

BRI - 4 ERERERE

FEMERAATEHFET BEBTH
MERZRMFE TIERFOER - LA
Rl - Bk - RHAFREFERTR B
ERETIMEMERHTERE - UTEAR
SEHEEBR

employees and applicants. The following is an overview of
the employees of the Group:

Number of Employees’

% of Employees

EEA® EEBES L

Employee Category EEER 2022 2021 2022 2021
By gender RIERE D
Male 3 1,392 1,117 72% 72%
Female z 537 441 28% 28%
By employment type REFERE S
Management BIEE 127 118 7% 8%
Senior FE MR 159 165 8% 10%
Junior YIRET 1,643 1,275 85% 82%
By age REWRE D
18-30 years old 18-307%% 247 146 13% 9%
31-50 years old 31-507% 1,316 1,203 68% 77%
51 years old and above 513 A £ 366 209 19% 14%
By geographical region ZiEE o
Beijing b= 10 32 1% 2%
Hebei dE 1680 1,332 87% 85%
Heilongjiang B 12 7 1% 0%
Henan A 4 0 0% 0%
Anhui 2 153 2 8% 0%
Shandong T 30 155 1% 10%
Others HAth 40 30 2% 3%
Total FEPN 1,929 1,558
7 The employment data has included the production sites EEEIRR BIEEEEN

only.
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Apart from recruiting talents through a fair and impartial
talent recruitment and promotion mechanism, the Group
spares no effort to retain talents. To reward employees
for their dedication to the company and enhance their
sense of belonging, we offer our employees competitive
remuneration package and welfare, including overtime pay,
five insurances and one housing fund, holiday benefits,
education allowances, certificate allowances, seniority
allowances and various vacations. To fully mobilise
employees’ enthusiasm, the Group also has a complete
incentive plan to reward outstanding employees and teams.
Through the various HR management channels, the Group
strives to keep the turnover rate at a similar or lower level.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BRTEAAFRENREHERAASIN
AEBERE AZ‘EEJTTLE%?J # AR
HATS|I AW FHMMEN - BEMAE - B

ThlR—%  BERERN SEMR - EFHE
M TREMMESERRGTET  HHER

ITHRAMMNHLMRMEPANEBR - [
i B -—EXBNHEBTERE  HRES
BTMEBETER TOABHETRES
o BBAERBATEREERE A%
EEERTARRENEEREEAKF -

Turnover rate® Wk e 2022 2021
Total turnover rate RPN 10% 18%
By gender ZIERIE D

Male £ 12% 14%
Female z 7% 8%
By age BFERE D

18-30 years old 18-307% 34% 50%
31-50 years old 31-50%% 8% 9%
51 years old and above 513 A E 1% 4%
By geographical region e E D

Mainland China HR B A 10% 10%
Hong Kong or other region BB SRE MR 5% N/A
8 The employment data has included the production sites 8 EEHBRIABFEEEREM -

only.

Employee’s Welfare Protection

Tsaker New Energy has formulated a set of policies and
guidelines to protect the rights and interests of employees,
including ensuring that employees are free from any form
of discrimination, harassment, and defamation at work.
The Group also abides by all labor standards and laws
and regulations related to employment, remuneration,
employment benefits and dismissal.

RIEE TR

FRHBEIRGIAT T —ERER TREMNBE

MER BREFRFEFEIEIFERFIIER -
BRE - HeE- ZK%IJTL@EEH - 1B A7
MR F BT - RIERA— )4 TERBIRE
BRI o
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The Group complies strictly with relevant employment and
labor policies, prohibits forced labor within the Group,
and strongly opposes the employment of child labor.
This requirement also applies to the Group’s suppliers.
Meanwhile, we also ensure that valid documents are
submitted by applicants during the recruitment process to
ensure that their age meets legal requirements. In case of
misuse of child labor, the Group will immediately terminate
the employment contract and assist them in returning to
school. We are also willing to accept the children’s adult
relatives to substitute their positions in order to help relieve
the financial pressure on their families.

We also attach great importance to the work-life balance of
our employees and strictly prohibit forced labor. Any forced
labor-related activities will be immediately terminated by
the HR department and compensation will be provided to
the employees. The Group was not aware of any cases
involving child or forced labor during the Reporting Period.

Emphasis on Talent Development

The establishment of a learning organization is one of
the development priorities of the Group and is regarded
as an important way to enhance the overall competitive
advantage of the Group. The Group has established a
targeted, systematic, diverse, practical and forward-
looking employee training system by coordinating with HR
department and various business departments to carry out
training development, support and evaluation. This was to
assist in improving employee skills and establishes a good
corporate culture.

The complete training process is as follows:

° The HR department is responsible for conducting
regular surveys on the training needs of each
business department, understanding the training
needs, and formulating the corresponding annual,
quarterly and monthly training plans according to
the company’s requirements.

R ARAT

6.2.

BRI - 4 ERERERE

REBERATEENERARSBBR - &
SEANREFRALE  VRIRHERE
I UHZEREARAEENHER - R
B BMESREEVEBET  REAL
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ERATEE
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RIE - HLERERBE

. After obtaining the training needs, the Group will . BEEREIIFRIE - 'EIH"IE“’TXIT%
find and assist the corresponding internal/external BYAEFE RSN EBEBED - FINER
lecturers in improving training materials, building a %é%l&%ﬂﬂﬁ*&@ﬁmmﬂm
training course system based on the characteristics R HEARBEITR -

of the Group and business, and formulating specific
training plans.

. Employees will participate in training and share it . BT WETAEHE - B8
internally, as well as compile training materials and AIEHIER - BIE A R RE(E A
formulate operable plans that can transform theory BT AE BV AT R MEIE BV ET 2 -
into relevant skills.

. Investigation and assessment of training effects will . N BT IR AE T - BB
be conducted in a timely manner to continuously SV TIELFHE
improve training work, which will then be archived.

The Group adheres to the principle of “demand- REBER[UAFEHEIMRA - BRI

based training”, which sets up different training BHF - ABEBRRERBEIERESBOTR

themes according to functional departments, personnel BIlERE - WRENEFHKHEAEEEE
management processes and employee levels, as well as 2 AR RESTEER -

formulates corresponding training objectives, content and

performance evaluation indicators according to different

needs.

Overall Training B Ed 2022 2021

Topics ESS 35 34

Total hours of topics AR R A B B 185.5 352

FHZIIGE ZIEEE

Category Rl 2022 2021 2022 2021

By gender RIERIE 5

Male 3 7 32 74% 74%

Female z 5 30 26% 26%

By employment type REFERE S

Management EIRfE 3 8 3% 4%

Senior FE MR 4 18 9% 10%

Junior YIRET 4 35 88% 86%
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Business Integrity

The Group understands the importance of integrity to
corporate reputation. We comply with all applicable laws
and regulations and have zero tolerance for employee
corruption. Our internal policy stipulates the procedures for
serious dereliction of duty, malpractice, corruption or other
serious misconduct. The Group also requires employees to
abide by the relevant business ethics in the workplace and
avoid any conflict of interest at work.

The Group has established a comprehensive reporting
mechanism for employees to anonymously report or
complain about any illegal acts involving fraud, bribery,
money laundering, etc. If a suspicious case is received,
the Group shall ensure that the opinions received are
resolved fairly and referred to the internal audit department
and the HR department promptly. The relevant records
will be properly kept to prevent information leakage. If the
case is substantiated, the Group may call the relevant
persons involved into account via legal channels and take
appropriate sanctions. During the Reporting Period, there
were no legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group and its employees.

Building a Harmonious Working Environment

The group is people-oriented and is committed to
creating a good and harmonious working environment for
employees, so as to strengthen the company’s cohesion
and improve work efficiency. We organized a wealth of
team building activities to strengthen the bond between
employees, provide healthy working conditions, and
provide timely care for employees who need special care.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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Team Building Activities

During the Reporting Period, Tsaker New Energy organized
the 16th employee sports games, which fully demonstrated
the vigor and positive spirit of the company. This also
promotes a positive company culture and passes on the
fine traditions of the company to every employee. With this
sports games, we have successfully enriched the cultural
life of employees, enhance team building and stimulated
their enthusiasm for work. This event has also improved
employees’ understanding and recognition of the company.

In order to further strengthen the Group’s organization and
trade union, improve the quality of our personnel, enhance
the unity and competitiveness of the organization and act
as a pioneer role model, the Group has organized the “First
of July” commendation and cultural exhibition to enrich
corporate cultural life, create a positive, colorful, healthy
and civilized corporate culture atmosphere, strengthen the
company’s spiritual civilization, and demonstrate the high-
spiritedness of Tsaker New Energy’'s employees.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BRI

EREHE  CEFERERTE T NER
TEHE  AORRTELEIARED  EE
[ EHE - EEEEMARE - A E5h
E—TABEEX  BREERERER
BREFNECEMREIEEET - 8%
BIXb4E - BRI ME L
hRRBIFEEELR - HEBETHITIEE
Bl REEIHCXNRBENNRRA

(16" Staff Sports Games)

i3

(FTARERTEDS)

RE-—TNEEMEEBNIERR  RB5

BRE  RHBEEABOREN - B
NMBEEHEBRBEHIER  FEREHAR
[E— ] REMXEBERELE @ 7 EEHR
B BEAENeAE  EEBEALE A
FEBER - REXANEEERE - RA
AR AER RTEEMAERETIER
B ZRBHBHRER -

(“First of July” Cultural Performance)

(Blt—IXZRRE)
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Besides, the Group also participated the county trade
union “Chinese Dream, Beauty of Labor” sports games,
county welder skills competition, etc. in the Reporting
Period to promote communication among employees.

Employees’ Welfare

In order to fully implement the Group’s principle of
“common prosperity, starting from the employees around
you”, the Group’s labor union continued to extend its work
on the basis of the work in 2021. In 2022, the following
substantive work was done for the employees of the Group
and the community:

1. In January, 23 employees and 72 family members
applied for the Jihuibao insurance, so that the
employees in difficulties can feel the warmth of the
corporate family.

2. Completed the declaration of the staff health living
room in April.
£} Extended regards to 3 children from poor families

during the Children’s Day.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Btz sh - ERERE - AEBE2MT &
TEHEZ  S5BHX|EHE  FETHREE
REE - RS T 2 MR -

ETI@Eu
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Organized employees to carry out legal publicity:
trade union law, legal knowledge training, safety
production law and employee health training.

Carried out “First of July” commendation and
cultural performances, establish advanced models,
enrich corporate cultural life, create a positive,
uplifting, elegant, healthy and civilized corporate
cultural atmosphere, strengthen the company’s
spiritual civilization, and demonstrate the pursuit
of excellence by Tsaker New Energy’'s employees,
colorful high-spirited spirit.

Organized the 16th employee sports meeting of the
Group, and encouraged employees to participate
in the badminton competition and online sports
meeting organized by the county trade union.

Organized 573 employees to participate in the one-
day mutual assistance among employees to solve
their worries and apply for assistance for employees
in need.

Successfully applied for the National Women'’s
Civilization Post for the Tsaker Technology’s quality
inspection department.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

ABETIRRTEEME  I8% &
BHMBIEI - REEEEARBIR
BEIEF -

MR- I RENXERELTE
IR BEMEEANE -
EEBEEBALE BEER RAS
- REXHANEERVERE - R
RABHXARR  BRILEEHEE
RETERFH - ZXDHNEHE
5 o

BREEE+AERTEDHE B
ETI2NMETSEBNPERLER
mLEse -

HBS73RE I NMBIER —H
B ARIBAEECE  WARE
BIRFEK-
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CARING FOR COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, Tsaker New Energy
actively mobilizes its own strength to contribute to the
well-being of the community. In response to the call
for pandemic prevention and control, we continuously
organized employees to cooperate with communities in
conducting nucleic acid testing and reporting, reducing the
work pressure of the local pandemic prevention and control
department, and sending fruits to the medical personnel
and traffic police.

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking forward, Tsaker New Energy will continue to
integrate green technology into our operations, production
and product research and development while upholding
our principle to “Build a Better World with Green
Technology”. The Group will strengthen energy efficiency
and work towards carbon peaking and carbon neutrality
through carbon emission management and implementing
carbon reduction synergies. The Group will also strive to
power common prosperity through community building.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& R BR A 7]
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STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE

CONTENT INDEX

Aspect
B

Al

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

BREMEE Hl

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT
A1: EMISSIONS
BEA1 : BB

General
Disclosure

—REE

Al.1

(a) The policies; and
R M
(b) Compliance.

HEEENER -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

B iE R AR BE R -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (SE1) MeeREZ (BE2) RER
BN (AMEEE) & (@A) B E (1A
BESEM  FHERWTEHE) °

Total hazardous waste produced

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FESAEREEYHES (BEETE) & (10
WA BE (NS ESEM - §ARMET
#)o

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEAEEEEYDES (UETE) & (10
WA BE (NS ESEM - §IARMET

) o
Ean

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

R R P E BV I S TS AR -

9.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BMX(RE - HERERREESD
=5

Statement/Section
B EH
AR

(a) 5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2IRIBRHE

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WERAAREEETHEBAER RS
Bl WREREHEREREMN -

5.2 Environmental Protection

5.2 IRIGRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 RIGIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 RIGRE
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Aspect KPI
i3] BREMER
Al6
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Description
it

Description of how hazardous and
nonhazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
HEREERBEEEMN A - RIE
EESNHBBERTEKRE -

A2: USE OF RESOURCES

EmA2 : ERER

A2 General
Disclosure
— R EE
A2 1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO.

BUR
Policies

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or ail) in total (kWh in ’* 000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RENESWEER SEERR (0
B mooh) BEE (ATETRREAHE)
REE (WASER B - SHERIH
) o

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BRKENZE (MASESSEMN - 518
R -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

e R AR B TSR -
Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
HHCSREGER KR LRI A ERRERE - ARk
RA AR B R PTISRR -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

X mATABEMBNEE (UNEE) &
(@R ) BEEEMGE -

I

, LIMITED (& e RAHEBRA A

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

BH EH

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIGRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 RIFIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 RIER#E



Aspect
EmE

EBHA3 : BRERRRER

A3

A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

MREMER
A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

General
Disclosure
—R 5=
A3. 1

EHEAS : RIRE(L

A4

General

Disclosure
—IR 5=

A4.1

Policies

R

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HMEBRBHIRIBRRAERNEKRZ
ZRERMEREBTZENTE -

Policies

R

Description of the significant
climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

B R AR H BT AELELENE
ARIREESE - RELHTH o

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B1: EMPLOYMENT
BEB1 : EfE

B1

—AR IR EE
General
Disclosure

B1.2

(a) The policies; and
BE: Rk
(b) Compliance.

REEENER -

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

BRI BEER - FiRER MR E S
BE B AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

IR - FiAR Rt E B DEIEBRRK
L o

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

By EH

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 IRIRIRHE
5.2 Environmental Protection

B.i &

(a) 6.1 Employment and Labour Policies
6. 11EMNE THE :

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
BEHANREEETAEBEERENR
Bl - SRR EREREM -

6.1 Employment and Labour Policies

6.1 BB &S TR

6.1 Employment and Labour Policies

6.1 BIERS THER
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Aspect
BmE

B2

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

MREMER
B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
BHEB2 : RREZZ

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B2.1

B22

B2.3

(a) The policies; and
R M
(b) Compliance.

MREARIOER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the Reporting
Period.

BEZF (BREERFE) BFEITHRE
N2 953

Lost days due to work injury.
EIBEAIEAR-

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
HIFTER AN B R @ R e 26 0 - AKX
HEARITRERTE -

B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
EEB3 : #REKE

B3

General

Disclosure
— IR EE

B3.1

B3.2

Policies

R

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BRERREERMN (NERERE - P&
BERES)IASNXIEEBDL -

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

U RESERIED - B8R
ElEORS]:E e

X

m
alt
i3

\
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BRI - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

By EH

(a) 5.1 Safety Management
512 ERE

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
s AR E B ETHEBEER RS
Bl WREHRABHEREREMN -

5.1 Safety Management

51 X2 ER

5.1 Safety Management
51 Z2ER
5.1 Safety Management
51 R2ER

6.2 Emphasis on Talent Development

6.2 ERAAEE

6.2 Emphasis on Talent Development
6.2 BRASIER

6.2 Emphasis on Talent Development
6.2 ERATEER



Aspect
EmE

B4

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

MREMER
B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
fEEB4 : 55 T2A

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B4.1

B4.2

(a) The policies; and
R M
(b) Compliance.

MREARIOER -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

HiR ST BRI B IS EA R R E T R
BT -

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
BT E R B RROER A BB AR
HE 2P E -

B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
FEEBS5 : HiAEEEE

B5

General

Disclosure
—R 5=

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

Policies

BUR

Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

mwREONHEHHE -

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are

being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Hit BB HERNED - MERTE
BEMNHEREE - U RBBENHNH
TRERERE-

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

e BB R S T (AR SR Y IR 95 et
SRBNEL - ARBRERITRERTE -

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

By EH

6.1 Employment and Labour Policies
6.1 RS ITHRK

There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WEHNAREEETAEBEEEIR
Bl - SRR IBAEREREM -

6.1 Employment and Labour Policies
6.1 E M8 THR

6.1 Employment and Labour Policies
6.11R 1% M5 THER

4.1 Supply Chain Management
4.1 fHERER

4.1 Supply Chain Management
4.1 frEEER

4.1 Supply Chain Management
4.1 HEGEER

4.1 Supply Chain Management
41 HERER
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Aspect KPI
i3] BREMER
B5.4

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description
it

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.
MMEBREHERRREEZARRER X
RRFSEVEDI - ARMBBITRERE A -

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

[EHEmB6 : EmMER

B6 —MR R EE
General
Disclosure

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

(a) The policies; and
B &
Compliance.

ERERMER -

(b)

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EENEEXEmERPEL 2 REERFE
mmARKNE DT -

Number of products and service-related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
EEMNERRRBIRFE B AR S
Tk e

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

fat B R RIE AN ERERIED -
Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.

S ST BE REMBIKIER -
Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies,

and how they are implemented and
monitored.

FUUE B B BURIRIE RALBEBOR -
BT MBI -

A KR
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RIR - HERERRE

Statement/Section
BH EH

4.1 Supply Chain Management
4.1 HEEER

(a) 4.2 Quality Control and 4.3 Fulfilling
Product Responsibility
A2REERRAIBITEREMT
There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
HEHAARE B ETHEBEERZ RS
Bl - SWRERIBAEREREM -

4.3 Fulfilling Product Responsibility

43 BITEREME

4.3 Fulfilling Product Responsibility
43 BITEREE

4.4 Protecting Intellectual Property Rights
4.4 REMBERE

4.2 Quality Control

4.2 AR

4.5 Safeguarding Customer Privacy
4.5 RIELFILE



Environment, Social and Governance Report

Aspect KPI Description
Em BAREMER #Hl
B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

EBEB7 : RESS
B7 — R EE (a)  The policies; and
General B &

Disclosure  (b) Compliance.

ERERER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the Reporting Period and the

outcomes of the cases.

REBZBHAANHBETAREEERETER

BEVEDS AR ATV B R

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
Ly B4 b R R ERAE - AR ENAT

MEEERTTE -

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
MlmERERE TIRHOHREFET -

B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
[EmEBS8 : HERE

B8 —RIFE Policies
General R
Disclosure
B8. 1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g.

education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

TIEMIE (NHE  BHEE BT

Tk 2R XU 8B ©

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or

time) to the focus area.

EZIBREMBAER (MSEXRFH) -

RIR - HERERRE

Statement/Section

By EH

(a) 6.3 Business Integrity
6.3 BRZNEE

(b) There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.
WERAAREEETHEBANER RS
Bl WRERAEHERNEREMN -

6.3 Business Integrity

6.3 RN

6.3 Business Integrity
6.3 RN

6.3 Business Integrity
6.3 BB

7 Caring for Community

7 B E

7 Caring for Community
7 Az

7 Caring for Community

7 BEtE
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Directors and Senior Management

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors and senior management are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi (former name: GE Yuanyuan), aged 41, is an
executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman
of our Company, responsible for overall business strategy and
major business decisions of our Group. Mr. GE joined us in
February 2007 and was promoted to vice-president and president
in December 2011 and August 2012, respectively.

Mr. GE obtained a master's degree in International Business
Management from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom in
February 2007 and completed studies in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University in the PRC in July 2004.

The discloseable interests of Mr. GE in the Shares and underlying
Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Sharers and Debentures”
under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Mr. BAI Kun, aged 46, is an executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and Joint Company Secretary,
being responsible for the financial operations and management
of the Group. Mr. BAI has been an executive Director since 25
August 2016. Mr. BAI joined the Group in September 2014 as the
Chief Financial Officer, and was appointed as a joint company
secretary on 11 December 2020. Mr. BAI is also a director of
Tsaker Hong Kong. He has been a director of Tsaker Technology
(shares of which are quoted on NEEQ, stock code: 873772) since
November 2022, and an independent non-executive director of
Archosaur Games Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9990) since September 2021. Mr. BAI has extensive
experience in accounting and financial management. His work
experience includes acting as manager for the Tianjin branch of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (L ZEXEBERRETAIEHAMBR A AKX
S FT) from September 2002 to February 2010 and the financial
controller of Tianjin Walkman Biomaterial Co., Ltd. from February
2010 to August 2014. Mr. BAI obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Technoeconomics in July 1999 from Tianjin University and a
master's degree in Technoeconomics and Management from
Tianjin University in March 2002. Mr. BAI has been a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. ZHANG Nan, aged 40, is an executive Director of the
Company since 10 January 2019 and the investment development
director of the Group since September 2022, being responsible for
the strategic development planning and investment development
of the Group. Ms. ZHANG joined the Group in January 2013.
Ms ZHANG is also a director of Tsaker Hong Kong. Her work
experience includes serving as the human resources manager of
Beijing Touqu Technology Co., Ltd. (It REBEEHEARAF]) from
August 2008 to July 2010. She was a director of human resources
of Chexun Internet Co., Ltd. (BE:EBEERMH AR AE) from
September 2010 to January 2013. Ms. ZHANG graduated from
Inner Mongolia University of Finance and Economics in July 2007,
majoring in business administration.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, aged 68, is a non-executive
Director since April 2015. He is responsible for providing advice
on corporate governance and internal control matters. He has
been the chairman of the board of directors of Clover Leaf
Capital Corp. (a Canadian capital pool company listed on the TSX
Ventures Exchange in Canada, stock code: CLVR.P) since March
2022. He has also been a member of the advisory board of Ocean
Equity Partners Fund L.P. (the entity which controls Wider Pacific)
since September 2012. Mr. FONTAINE serves as an executive
director and vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and
Private Equity Association. In 2000, he founded Investel Asia, a
venture capital and private equity firm and served as its managing
director from January 2004 to December 2006. He was the chief
executive officer of Newcom LLC from January 2007 to September
2008. Prior to joining our Group in April 2015, Mr. FONTAINE
served various positions within the BCE Inc. group, the largest
communications company in Canada, including Bell Canada, Bell
Ardis and Tata Cellular, for approximately 16 years of his career.
Mr. FONTAINE has also been acting as a non-executive director
of D&G Technology Holding Company Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1301) since August 2016
and as an independent director of China Lending Corporation,
a company listed on NASDAQ (ticker: CLDC) from July 2016 to
December 2017.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. FONTAINE obtained a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Sherbrooke in Canada in
June 1979. He has been a member of the Order of Engineers of
Québec since January 1980.

Mr. PAN Deyuan, aged 42, is a non-executive Director since
November 2022. He is responsible for providing advice on the
Group's strategic planning and investment and financing strategy
matters. He has over 15 years of experience in investment
management, computer science and technology. Since January
2022, Mr. PAN has been a director of Sanya Xuancai Private
Equity Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Z R AE
BIXEESEEHRAR) (“Sanya Xuancai’) where he engages
in the decision-making process of the board of directors, as well
as daily operation and management of Sanya Xuancai. Since
December 2020, he has been a director of Fujian Guoguang
Xinye Sci-tec Co., Ltd. (fBEBFERHEBRHERAR]) (“Fujian
Guoguang Xinye”), a subsidiary of Fujian Guoguang Electronic
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. ({8iZBIXEFEHIFERAR)
(“Fujian Guoguang Electronic”), where he is responsible for
considering the annual operation plan of Fujian Guoguang Xinye
and major issues such as investment plans. Since April 2005, he
has been a director of Fujian Guoguang Electronic, where he is
responsible for considering the annual operation plan of Fujian
Guoguang Electronic and major issues such as investment plans.

Mr. PAN graduated with major in computer science and

technology from Wuhan University (RJ2XZ) in the People’s
Republic of China in July 2004.

The discloseable interests of Mr. PAN in the Shares and
underlying Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 57, is an independent non-
executive Director since March 2015, being responsible for
overseeing the management of our Group independently. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. HO served as a managing director of
Munsun Asset Management (Asia) Ltd. between January 2014
and March 2015. From November 2013 to December 2019, Mr.
HO became an independent non-executive director of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and an independent non-
executive director of BBI Life Sciences Corporation (stock code:
1035) from October 2014 to June 2020. From August 2015 to
August 2018, Mr. HO became the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (stock
code: 2869). Mr. HO has served as the Investment consultant of
Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. since August 2018. Mr. HO
previously worked in various international financial institutions,
such as a senior research analyst of Credit Lyonnais Securities
(Asia) Limited from September 1996 to February 1999, and a vice
president in the Research Department of Institutional Equities, Asia
Pacific Department of JP Morgan from February 1999 to October
2004. Mr. HO served various positions in HSBC, such as the Head
of China Value and Growth Research in CIBM Research Asia of
HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited in September 2004, Head of China
Research of HSBC (Securities Business) Beijing Representative
Office in June 2008, and Hong Kong China equity sales director
of HSBC in January 2011.

Mr. HO obtained a master’s degree in Commerce, specialising
in Finance, from the University of New South Wales in Australia
in April 1991, and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the
University of Sydney in Australia in May 1988. He was awarded as
Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered Financial
Analysts in September 1998, and has been a CFA charter holder
and a member of the Association for Investment Management and
Research since January 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZHU Lin (former name: ZHU Xiaolin), aged 49, is an
independent non-executive Director since March 2015, being
responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. ZHU is also a partner of Beijing Legendhouse
CPAs (dbFBE&:HEMEFT) and a director of Beijing Run Qin
Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t REEFERER A F]). Since October 2020,
Mr. ZHU has been serving as a director of Jiangsu Changshu
Automotive Trim Group Co., Ltd. (IE&E R IMEBRHER R
A]), formerly known as Changshu Automotive Trim Co., Ltd. (&
ATAEMIADER AR, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 603035). Since June 2020, Mr. ZHU
has been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Archosaur Games Inc. (#H3EIREZGRAF]), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9990). From November 2020 to
August 2022, Mr. ZHU was an independent non-executive director
of Sino-Ocean Service Holding Limited (&FRIGIZEEARAQR),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6677).
Mr. ZHU was a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun Internet
Company Limited (At FREMEHERKBERAE), a company
whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ in the PRC, from July 2016
to April 2021. Prior to joining our Group in March 2015, Mr. ZHU
was a senior manager at the mergers and acquisitions department
of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(Beijing Branch) (EZEXEHA ORI AR ARIERD AF]) from
October 2003 to November 2005. Mr. ZHU obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Overseas Financial Accounting (&€&t RN BF 75 &5+
{E) from Central Institute of Finance and Banking (currently known
as Central University of Finance and Economics) in the PRC in
June 1995. Mr. ZHU has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2000.

Mr. YU Miao, aged 46, is an independent non-executive
Director since March 2015, being responsible for overseeing
the management of our Group independently. Mr. YU is also a
partner of Global Law Office. Mr. YU has been a non-executive
director of Beijing Chexun Internet Company Limited (1t REzE
#EAS Y BPR A R]), a company whose shares are quoted on the
NEEQ in the PRC, from July 2016 to April 2021. Prior to joining
our Group in March 2015, Mr. YU was a partner of Global Law
Office from March 2006 to June 2010, and subsequently a partner
of Norton Rose (Asia) LLP from June 2010 to June 2011. Mr. YU
returned to Global Law Office as a partner in July 2011 and has
been a partner there since then. Mr. YU obtained a postgraduate
diploma in International Law from The University of Nottingham in
the United Kingdom in December 2001, and a bachelor’'s degree
in Economic Law from Heilongjiang University in the PRC in July
1999. Mr. YU was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in March 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of our Company. For details about Mr. GE's
background, see “Directors” under this section.

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Joint Company Secretary of our Company. For details about
Mr. BAI's background, see “Directors” under this section.

Ms. ZHANG Nan is an executive Director and investment
development director of our Company. For details about Ms.
ZHANG’s background, see “Directors” under this section.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Joint Company Secretary of our Company. For details about
Mr. BAl's background, see “Directors” under this section.

Ms. NG Ka Man has been appointed as the Joint Company
Secretary with effect from 25 March 2022. Ms. NG is a manager
of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited
and is responsible for the provision of corporate secretarial and
compliance services to listed company clients. She has over 15
years of experience in the company secretarial field. She is a
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.
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The Board hereby announces the Directors’ Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 29 October 2014. The Shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
products such as battery materials, dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials. Analysis
on the principal business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 166 and 167 of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.059 per ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December
2022, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.
Assuming the final dividend is approved at the AGM, together
with the interim dividend of RMB0.036 per ordinary Share for the
six months ended 30 June 2022, the dividends in aggregate for
the year ended 31 December 2022 will amount to RMBO0.095 per
ordinary Share (for the year ended 31 December 2021: RMB0.107
per ordinary Share). The dividend is expected to be paid on
30 June 2023 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members”)
on 18 May 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report for details.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

We focus on environmental, health and safety protection. As a
manufacturer of battery materials, dye intermediates, agricultural
chemical intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials,
we have developed production processes that comply with all
applicable national and local standards in environmental, health
and safety protection in all material respects. We also believe
that implementing and maintaining advanced development in our
environmental, health and safety protection measures serve as
a competitive strength. Manufacturers that do not meet the local
environmental, health and safety protection standards may incur
losses and fines imposed by the local government.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, we were subject to
inspections organized by the local government from time to time
and we had not been subject to any material fines or penalties
in relation to any material breach of applicable environmental,
health and safety laws or regulations that could have a material
adverse effect on our operation. For the year ended 31 December
2022, we had not lost any order from our customers due to
environmental, health and safety concerns. We believe that our
awareness of the environmental, health and safety issues and
dedication to their protection makes us a leader in this area from
an early stage.

Integrating environmental protection is a part of our operating
philosophy. Our technological improvements were made with a
view towards complying with or strengthening our environmental,
health and safety protection measures. Manufacturers that are
unable to meet the environmental, health and safety standards
of the local government and the downstream customers would
incur a higher cost for fines and remediation and might not be
competitive in the industry in the long run.

The Group has set up the “Environmental Protection Administrative
System” to implement the discharge of the duties of the person in
charge and staff of every level and every department, and confirm
the disposal treatments and standards of sewage, waste gas
and solid waste. We have also set up the “Accountability system
for Tsaker New Energy” to enhance the safety and environment
awareness of all our employees and mitigate and root out any
negligent acts, leading employees to fulfil their responsibility with
lofty professionalism and to ensure the quality of work, so that a
standardized management can be implemented.
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The Group attaches great importance to the corporate social
responsibilities, focusing on environmental protection, safety
and health, and continues to be committed to ensuring that
the business activities of the Group are in line with the relevant
environmental and safety supervisory requirements. We have
already obtained Quality Management System [1S0O9001,
Environmental Management System ISO14001 and Occupational
Health Safety Management System GB/T 28001-2011 for our
management system.

Compliance with Related Laws and Regulations

The Group always pays attention to strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in all material aspects, including
the non-compliance incidents as disclosed in the Prospectus,
setting up and improving the existing administrative system,
enhancing daily operation and supervision, and adopting effective
measures to avoid and reduce risks and violation of rules. The
following are some of the primary laws and regulations applicable
to the Group in the PRC.

Laws on Work Safety

The Group has a comprehensive safety production management
system and detailed operation procedures in place. In addition
to the daily production safety inspection, routine comprehensive
safety production inspection on Dongguang Production Plants,
Dongao Production Plants and Dongying Production Plants are
conducted weekly to thoroughly investigate any safety loopholes.
Control on safety production is strengthened by adopting feasible
preventive measures. We ensure various safety production
systems, measures and responsibilities as well as the relevant
contingency plans are put in place.

The Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the Prevention
and Treatment of Water Pollution and the Law on the
Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste Pollution

Voluntarily abiding by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, enhancing environmental
awareness and achieving green production management is
not only the common opportunities and challenges faced by
enterprises, but also the foundation of their ongoing operations.
The Group strictly abides by the above laws and regulations and
adopts effective environmental protection measures to minimize
the impacts of our operations on the environment.
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Our production facilities have already been equipped with
pollution control equipment to control and record the gas
pollutants and the emission level of sewage and solid waste.
We have also set up a series of internal policies and plans
for environmental risks avoidance to ensure the compliance
with the applicable state, industrial and local standard laws,
regulations and policy requirements. We constantly strengthen
the development of clean production technologies to satisfy
the increasing standard of environmental protection. When
there is deviation from any applicable emission standards, we
will investigate the cause and adopt corresponding corrective
measures. Furthermore, our emission of sewage and solid waste
and air pollutants is subject to monitoring by the safety and
environmental departments.

The Regulations on the Control of Foreign Exchange

The exporting business of the Group is denominated and settled
in USD. Along with the constant promotion of internationalizing
RMB, we do not only closely monitor the fluctuation of foreign
currency, but also strictly comply with the regulations on the
control of foreign exchange in foreign exchange filing registration,
foreign exchange settlement, foreign exchange operating activities
and foreign exchange investing activities.
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The Foreign Trade Law

The Group has corresponding internal export business
management system and operation procedures in place, and
promptly conducts filing registration to export department. We
engage in trade activities that are in compliance with relevant
laws and abide by the trade order. In order to maintain fair
market competition, we do not engage in improper competition
behaviours, such as selling at an improperly low price, bid-
rigging, issuing false advertisement and bribery. For exporting, the
Group also seriously studies and strictly complies with the laws
and regulations of the export destination countries, such as the
anti-dumping law in India, product liability laws and regulations in
Germany and product safety and liability laws and regulations in
the United States of America.

The Labour Law

The Group developed and improved its existing internal
management system to safeguard the rights of its employees,
including the Safety Education Training System, the Identification
and Treatment Management System for Hidden Safety Perils, and
Management Regulations on On-site Sanitation and Cleaning. The
Group stringently implements national protocols and standards on
labour safety and health and conducts labour safety and health
education for workers to prevent labour accidents and reduce
occupational hazards.

Social Insurance and Housing Provident Funds

The Group complied with the PRC laws, rules and regulations,
including the Social Insurance Law, the Regulations on
Unemployment Insurance, the Regulations on Work Injury
Insurance and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund. We make contributions to social insurance in
full and on time including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group did not receive any penalty from
the relevant administrative department.
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In light of, including but not limited to, the above-mentioned
primary laws and regulations, our internal control department is
responsible for monitoring from time to time our compliance with
and abidance by the applicable laws and regulations and other
relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as supervising the
implementation of necessary measures. In addition, we plan to
provide our Directors, senior management and employees with
continuing training development programs and updates regarding
the relevant PRC laws and regulations on a regular basis to
proactively identify any concerns and issues relating to potential
non-compliance in order to reduce the Group's risk of deviating
from them.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships
with our major customers, established a strong customer base
and have become the key supplier to our major customers. We
have passed a number of stringent qualification and certification
processes required by our customers to establish our stable
customer base.

During the Review Year, we attended industry conferences to
solicit new potential customers and maintain relationships with
existing customers. To further enhance our business relationship
with our customers, our sales team visited our major customers
from time to time to conduct customer surveys to understand
their evolving needs and obtained feedback on the quality of our
products. We are dedicated to providing quality customer services
and after-sales services. We endeavour to supply our products to
our customers in a timely manner.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically on a
monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and specifications
of the products to be purchased, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, we were able to obtain
raw materials from our suppliers on terms and quality acceptable
to us and we had not experienced any material disruption to
the supply of any raw materials required for our production
or experienced any difficulty in sourcing alternative suppliers
for such raw materials. In addition, we believe the relationship
between us and our major suppliers has been and will continue to
be good and stable.

Employees: In addition to competitive salaries, we provide
employees with supplementary compensation benefits, such as
free shift dormitories, free shuttle bus transportation, and meal
allowance. In addition, we value our employees and provide them
with continuing education, on-the-job training and encourage their
career development through accumulating on-the-job experience.
For the employees of our subsidiaries that operate in the PRC,
we are required to make contributions to various government
sponsored employee benefit funds, including basic pension
insurance fund, unemployment, maternity, medical, work injury
insurance fund and housing provident fund in accordance with
applicable PRC laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there have been no
significant labour disputes or strikes at any of our production
facilities. Our current relationship with our employees and the
labour unions are good and are based on mutual support and
respect.

RISK FACTORS

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses,
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects,
leading to a divergence from the expected or historical results.
Key risk factors affecting the Group are outlined below. In
dealing with these risk factors, the Group keeps in touch with our
stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.
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Global Economy and Macroeconomic Conditions

Any adverse change in the global economic downturn, geopolitical
tensions, the PRC’s economic, political and social conditions,
as well as governmental policies may affect our sales, which will
result in pressure on the prices, volume and margins achieved or
achievable in the future. A decline in demand or a shift to lower
value end products with a lower demand for our products resulting
from deteriorating economic condition may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In this regard, the Group will actively gain understanding of the
changes in domestic and overseas markets to promptly grasp
information of industries in the upper and lower stream in relation
to our products and adopt strategies to ensure steady growth in
our profits. We will maintain good cooperative relationships with
major clients by providing them with products highly functional
and of consistent quality. In addition, we will establish an enriched
product structure and portfolio to diversify the risk of concentration
of products. Our products are sold all over the world to avoid
risk of regional economy fluctuations. We keep developing new
customers to lower the dependence on one single customer.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group is mainly related to its exporting activities. The operation of
the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate.

In view of this, the Group resets the export price every month
or quarter to avoid the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation, and
concentrates purchase in China to lower the foreign exchange
risk. The Group will actively monitor the impact of change in
currency exchange rates on the Group and, while taking into
account the nature of its business, adopt measures based on
scientific identification and effective balance to control relevant
risk in order to avoid material loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group neither drew up
any hedging policy, nor adopted any hedging instruments.

We Are Exposed to Risks Associated with Fluctuations in
Prices of Raw Materials and Supply

The prices of raw materials on which we depend may be affected
by a number of factors, including market supply and demand,
changes in PRC import duties, PRC and global economic
conditions and changes to the PRC or international environmental
and regulatory requirements. Any significant increases in the
cost of the raw materials may increase our cost of production
and negatively affect our profit margin and, more generally, our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
A reduction in, or lack of availability of, raw materials or
interruptions in the supply chain, may also impact our profitability
to the extent that we are required to pay higher prices for, or
are unable to secure adequate supplies of the necessary raw
materials.

In this regard, we choose our suppliers of raw materials based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
qualified suppliers. We purchase critical raw materials from
several suppliers to avoid possible risk of relying on one single
supplier. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically
on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and
specifications of products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. Furthermore, we attach importance to maintaining good
relationships with major suppliers to ensure we can secure
sufficient supply of raw materials of stable quality in a timely
manner and avoid any adverse effect of reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain. In
response to price changes of raw materials, we seek to adjust the
prices at which we sell our products to shift any increase in our
costs to our customers so as to maintain our profit margins.
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Expansion into New Markets Presents Increased Risks

The competitive conditions and customer preferences of new
markets may be different from our existing markets. Customers in
these new markets might not be familiar with our brand and we
may need to build up brand awareness with greater effort than we
originally planned. We may find it more difficult in new market to
hire, train and retain qualified employees. This may have material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

In this regard, we will strengthen preliminary research and
commercial feasibility analysis in relation to new markets, increase
research and development of new products, technologies and
techniques and hire experienced staff to fulfil our development
plan for the future.

We Experience Seasonal Fluctuations

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our business and results
of operations. Sales of our products and our production activities
are generally slower during the first quarter of each year as a
result of the Chinese New Year holidays in the first quarter, where
many of the consumer product manufacturers stop production.
Furthermore, large quantity of herbicide is typically produced
ahead of the farming seasons for use during the farming seasons.
As a result, demand for agricultural chemical intermediates
such as ONT and OT, a raw material of certain herbicide, also
correspond to this seasonal trend. Failure to manage seasonality
in our business may cause our revenue and financial condition to
be adversely affected.

In this regard, we make reasonable arrangements for the
production and sales of products based on their respective
market demand to cope with our exposure to seasonal fluctuation.
For agricultural chemical intermediates such as ONT and OT,
we conduct meticulous analysis and research on the seasonal
demand for our products in various regions or countries and make
active moves in developing domestic and overseas markets to
mitigate the impact of seasonal factors. In addition, we carefully
monitor and control the fluctuation in our working capital arising
from seasonal movements of revenue so as to take timely
and effective action and provide our business with stable and
adequate cash for operations.
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 23 to 29 of this annual report for details.

OUTLOOK

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report for details.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the Reporting Period are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The highlight of results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years are set out on pages 6 to 7 of
this annual report. This highlight does not constitute part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue from the top
five customers of the Group accounted for approximately 38.6%
(2021: approximately 33.8%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the turnover attributable to its largest single customer accounted
for approximately 12.7% of its total revenue (2021: approximately
12.6%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from the
top five suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
37.2% (2021: approximately 43.5%) of its total purchases, and the
turnover attributable to its largest single supplier accounted for
approximately 16.4% of its total purchases (2021: approximately
18.6%).
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During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital in issue)
had interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 170 to 171.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB228.9 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan' (Appointed on 25 November 2022)

Note:

1. Mr. PAN Deyuan has been appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 25 November 2022. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 November
2022.
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible
for re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Thus, Mr. BAI Kun, Ms. ZHANG Nan and
Mr. ZHU Lin will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment. Accordingly, Mr. PAN Deyuan
will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election as a Director.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM will be despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND/OR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
of information of Directors and/or senior management of the
Company subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2022 are set out
below:

Name of Directors/Senior Management Details of Change
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BEERES -

RBEEBERMANE 16215  ERHEEFSEEMN
HAREER > KEAMEAENESTTHSES
HEZETRARB TREBRRBFAG /L - Bt
BEEBREEBNEERRAFAGRE  ATEE
BREEERETRES -

HERENRBFARS LEREENEFFENR
BRI 7 A PR TR A SR 27 3

EER SR EEBERNZEE
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Mr. GE Yi Ceased to act as the chairman of the board of directors of Tsaker Huayu
(formerly known as Hebei Tsaker) with effect from January 2023.

XEE BT =F-ARTHECREEE AIBATILYE) NESELR -

Ms. ZHANG Nan

R L

Mr. BAI Kun

RELE

Ceased to act as the director of human resources and the director of
strategic development of the Group with effect from September 2022,
and appointed as the investment development director of the Group and
a director of Tsaker Hong Kong with effect from September 2022 and
October 2022, respectively.
B_ZFNARTHEETRASEANEREEREBERAE  RoO5E
TR CFANARCE I CETAREECRSEREERAERYEEENE
=

Serving as a director of Tsaker Technology (shares of which are quoted on
NEEQ, stock code: 873772) since November 2022.
BEZZ_F+-ARREERXERE (AROMPNEEQEM - BRH R -
B73772)MNES -
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Saved as disclosed above and in the section headed ‘Directors
and Senior Management’ in this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any other changes which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 90 to 95 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration
exceeding three years or which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER IN MAJOR TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, save for the Director’s
service contracts and letters of appointment entered into between
the Company and the respective Directors, (i) no contracts of
significance (including contracts of significance for the provision
of services) had been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries; and (ii) none of
the Directors and their connected entities (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance) either directly or indirectly, have a
material interest in any transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial
year to which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party which is material to
the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the businesses of the Company were entered into or
existed.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group'’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, with regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the Reporting Period are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Group are set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
are set out as follows:

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHE AR A 7
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Interest in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the (i) RAERAR R REBERGHERS
Company

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®

EEEB REtE HEZERHEEM BRESNES L

GE Vi Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.08%
XX RRAEHEE s (FR)®

Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)® 39.25%

required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO/Interest of
children under 18/Interest of spouse
BIREF LB ERMNE317 R (FR)®
BYHRERGREMA T ER
185RA T F s/ TR

PAN Deyuan Beneficial owner 22,374,000 (L) 2.20%

EEIR EmEBA (5 %)

Notes: Wizt -

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [iFE 1 fEZ R P aFE -

(2) As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued (2) RZTZ=ZF+=ZA=+—8 " B%1T
Shares was 1,019,132,500 Shares. B&1n 2 #8805 1,019,132,500% -

(3) These Shares represent Shares held by Cavalli which (3) ZERKR M B CavallifsF - fCavalliz
is wholly-owned by Mr. GE Yi, and Mr. GE Yi is deemed XKREELERE - WULIREES KH
to be interested in the same pursuant to the SFO. BAED) - REEWGIENR Cavallidh #

B o
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On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting
right transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited. Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the
voting rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
As such, Mr. GE Yi is deemed to be interested in
133,337,750 Shares (long position) which each of Hero
Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited
and Star Path Ventures Limited is interested in (i.e.,
in aggregate 400,013,250 Shares) as at 31 December
2022 pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

Mr. GE Vi, as the spouse of Ms. QI Lin, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which Ms. QI Lin is interested
or deemed to be interested in under the SFO. For
details of Ms. Ql’s interests, please refer to notes 3, 4
and 5 in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interest and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” of the Director’s Report in this annual report.

Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is a
child under the age of 18 of Mr. GE Yi. Mr. GE Yi is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which each of
Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is interested
in or deemed to be interested in under the SFO. For
details of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui’s
interests, please refer to notes 6, 7, 8 and 9 in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” of the
Director’s Report in this annual report.
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(i) Interest in the Associated Corporations of the
Company

Directors’ Report

EEERE

(i) RAEDQTEEEE RS

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of the associated
Name of Director Name of associated corporations Nature of interest Shares held corporations
1R B R R
ExEE HEEE A ERiHE BFREROEE BAED L
PAN Deyuan Hebei Tsaker New Materials Beneficial owner 2,521,008 3.97%
Technology Company Limited
EER AEF BB RO AR R E ERBEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No arrangement has been made by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries for any Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate during the year ended and as at
31 December 2022, and no rights to any share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate were
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised during
the Review Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register of the
Company maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report

EEERE

TERRRBORAEBRODNERRKXR

R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H REARAEEFFHN
M THAL(FHEERARAERTHRAE)R
RRATIRMDBIABAR D P HEERBE(ES LBE K
BIYEXVEF 2R 35D EBAR AR R EL B EL RN
RAGIRB(GES RIS KD ) FE336KBETHETZ
TRtz gmsiAR

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held™ shareholding®
BRREHE B REEME BEZERHAO RESHNED L
Cavalli Beneficial owner 138,337,750 (L) 13.08%
E=mBEAA (478)
Ql Lin Interest of spouse 133,337,750 (L)® 13.08%
E=S7) iR g (HFR)®
Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)@ 13.08%
RRAEHEE R (IFE)@®
Interest of children under 18 266,675,500 (L)® 26.17%
AR 18R F X H o (#FE)®
GE Chengyu Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.08%
XEE RRAEHEE R (iFE)®
GE Chenghui Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L) 13.08%
X R R EE (FR)™
Hero Time Corporate Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.08%
Management Pte. Ltd. REEGEERER (iFE)®
Star Path Corporate Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)@ 13.08%

Management Pte. Ltd.

REZEGEEE S
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Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held™ shareholding®
REERE B EnttE HEZREREED REMOBT DL
Hero Time Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 13.08%
HEREIR AR AT EmlEA (78)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)"@ 39.25%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO
RIEFE 77 R B RPI 2317 & (&)
BTWE 2 N E M7 P s
Star Path Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 13.08%
ERERBRAA EmfiEA (F&)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)1" 39.25%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO
BIEES KB BKRMNEIT7IE (gFE) ™

Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited
AR AR AR

ATREZ N &M T s 2 s

Beneficial owner
EmiEAA

Interest of other parties to an agreement
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO

RIEES R EGRAIEI17 15
BTWE 2N BEE M PR s

133,337,750 (L)

(#FE) 13.08%
400,013,250 (L)1 39.25%
(27 &) 02

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1)

(2) As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares  (2)
was 1,019,132,500 Shares.

(3) Ms. QI Lin, as the spouse of Mr. GE Yi, is deemed to be (3)
interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Mr. GE Yi is
interested or deemed to be interested in under the SFO.

[FR | BEZBR DR RR

RIE-_—_F+_-_A=+—8  2%ITKR®
B8 51,019,132,5000% °

RigEHREHRY - XCREZERBEML

THBRERK LA HE RN EHEER
#133,337, 750X A% 10 R A #E2s ©
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(4) Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. QI Lin,
and Ms. QI Lin is deemed to be interested in the 133,337,750
Shares which Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is interested in

pursuant to the SFO.

(5) Pursuant to certain declarations of trust dated 17 June 2019
(the “Trust Arrangement”), Ms. QI Lin held all the interests in
Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited as
trustee (Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui, who both are
children under the age of 18 of Ms. QI Lin, are beneficiaries
of the trusts of Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path
Ventures Limited, respectively). On 22 December 2022, Ms. Ql
Lin terminated the Trust Arrangement, and since then, Mr. GE
Chengyu has been holding his shares in Hero Time Ventures
Limited through his wholly-owned company Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Ms. GE Chenghui has
been holding her shares in Star Path Ventures Limited through
her wholly-owned company Star Path Corporate Management
Pte. Ltd. In addition, each of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE
Chenghui is a child under the age of 18 of Ms. QI Lin. Each
of them is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited,
respectively. As such, Ms. QI Lin is deemed to be interested in
the 133,337,750 Shares owned by each of Hero Time Ventures
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited (i.e., in aggregate

266,675,500 Shares).

(6) Hero Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. holds 100%
interest in Hero Time Ventures Limited, and Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Mr. GE
Chengyu. Hence, Mr. GE Chengyu is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Hero Time Ventures Limited is interested

in pursuant to the SFO.

(7) Star Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. holds 100%
interest in Star Path Ventures Limited, and Star Path Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Ms. GE Chenghui.
Hence, Ms. GE Chenghui is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Star Path Ventures Limited is interested in

pursuant to the SFO.

(8) Hero Time Ventures Limited is wholly-owned by Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Hero Time Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
133,337,750 Shares which Hero Time Ventures Limited is

interested in under the SFO.
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Star Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd.
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(11)

(12)

Star Path Ventures Limited is wholly-owned by Star Path
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Star Path Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
133,337,750 Shares which Star Path Ventures Limited is
interested in under the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Vi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Pursuant to the voting
right transfer deed, the voting rights of each of Hero Time
Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path
Ventures Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
Hence, Hero Time Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested
in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares
which Mr. GE Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path
Ventures Limited are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of
the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Vi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Pursuant to the voting
right transfer deed, the voting rights of each of Hero Time
Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path
Ventures Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
Hence, Star Path Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested
in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares
which Mr. GE Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Hero
Time Ventures Limited are interested in, pursuant to section
317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Vi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Pursuant to the voting
right transfer deed, the voting rights of each of Hero Time
Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star
Path Ventures Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr.
GE Yi. Hence, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the
sum of Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Hero Time Ventures Limited
and Star Path Ventures Limited are interested in, pursuant to
section 317 of the SFO.

(10)

(11)

(12)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors
have not been aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would be required to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the
register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE SCHEME

The Group did not have any share scheme for the year ended 31
December 2022.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company or subsisted as at the end of the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company for the
Review Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, as the Board considered
that the price of the Company’s Shares did not reflect their
intrinsic value, and the share repurchase program could reflect
the Board’s confidence in the Company’s development prospects,
thus the Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange a total
number of 5,966,000 Shares at a total consideration (before
deduction of expenses) of HK$7,837,750. The repurchased
2,095,000 Shares and 3,871,000 Shares were subsequently
cancelled by the Company on 4 August 2022 and 17 January
2023, respectively.
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Details of the repurchase are as follows:

Number of Shares Highest purchase

Directors’ Report

BOFBOT

Lowest purchase

EEERE

Total consideration
(before deduction of

Month repurchased price per Share price per Share expenses)
HK$ HK$ HK$

R EEERHEE ERESBEE ERBEEBEE #BAE (NBRBAR AT
BT BT BT

April 2022 600,000 .37 1.33 811,800

—E-—4mA

May 2022 850,000 .40 1.29 1,135,290

—T-—FFA

June 2022 645,000 .45 1.34 902,745

—ETZFXA

August 2022 585,000 41 1.39 820,360

—EF)N\A

September 2022 1,674,000 .35 1.16 2,082,285

—E-—FhHA

October 2022 204,500 A7 1.13 236,935

—E__F+R

November 2022 715,500 .34 1.20 922,445

T F+—AR

December 2022 692,000 .35 1.33 925,890

—E-_F+-H1

Total: 5,966,000 7,837,750

att

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its B EXPTHEEEIN - AR A SKHE R E A 7 &

subsidiaries had purchased, sold, redeemed or cancelled any of
the Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.
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UNDERTAKINGS OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. GE Yi and Cavalli had entered into the Deed of Non-
competition in favour of our Company (for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of each of its subsidiaries), under which Mr. GE
Yi and Cavalli had undertaken to our Company that they will not,
and will procure that none of their respective associates (other
than members of our Group) will, directly or indirectly (including
through anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement) or as principal or agent, either on any
of their own account or with each other or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company or through any entities
(except in or through any members of our Group):

° carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, with
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with
our business, whether as a Shareholder, Director, senior
officer, partner, agent, lender, employee, consultant or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise; and

o take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may
interfere with or disrupt our business (as defined in the
Prospectus) including, but not limited to, solicitation of any
of the then current customers, suppliers or employees from
any members of our Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the Deed of Non-
competition.

In 2022, Mr. GE Yi personally controlled more than 30% of the
voting rights of the Company’s Shares, so he was still regarded
as a controlling shareholder and subject to the Deed of Non-
competition.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from Mr. GE Vi
in respect of his compliance during the Reporting Period with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
issued to the Company in 2022.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the
Reporting Period based on data and the confirmation provided or
given by Mr. GE Yi and are satisfied that he had complied with the
Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, no Directors or any of their associates
had any interests in any business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the Review Year, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, and details of which are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report. Such related party transactions fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of Listing Rules).
The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
and other requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not
been involved in any material litigation or arbitration. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material litigation or claim
pending or threatened against the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred
or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. The Group has
taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout
the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
Every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company is therefore
entitled to be indemnified subject to the Company Law or other
relevant regulations for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2022 for the benefit of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
section headed “Report of Corporate Governance” on pages 124
to 156 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued Shares, being the minimum percentage of public float
as prescribed by the Stock Exchange and under the Listing Rules,
was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as at the date of this annual report.

DONATION

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make donations
for- charitable or other purposes amounting to not less than
HK$10,000.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Ernst & Young has audited
the accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young is required to retire in the forthcoming AGM, and
is eligible and offers itself for re-election. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the AGM.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 5 May
2023 to Wednesday, 10 May 2023, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend the AGM, during which period no share transfers will
be registered. To be eligible to attend the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 4 May 2023.

The Register of Members will also be closed from Tuesday, 16
May 2023 to Thursday, 18 May 2023, both days inclusive, in
order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive
the final dividend, during which period no share transfers will be
registered. To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 15 May 2023.

By order of the Board
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi

Dongying, Shandong, the PRC, 24 March 2023
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Report of Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents the corporate governance report of
the Company for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own corporate governance code. The Company has been in
compliance with all applicable code provisions under the CG
Code throughout the Reporting Period, except for code provision
C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to ensure the
compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. The Board has delegated to
the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

The board is responsible for the management of the Company and
is accountable to the Shareholders for their entrusted assets and
resources.

All Directors shall ensure_that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of liability arising from legal action against its Directors,
and will conduct annual review on such insurance cover.
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Board Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, as set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Kun (Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company Secretary)
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan (Appointed on 25 November 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the corporate governance code provision requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to
the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are
also provided with regular updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the joint company secretaries of the
Company update and provide the Directors with written training
materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.
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A summary of training received by the Directors for the Reporting RIFEZBRHEMLE - RH{EHA EFEXHEH
Period according to the records provided by the Directors is as a0 :

follows:
Nature of Continuous

Professional Development
Name of Directors EERE BESXRRFAEME
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE Yi RCEE B
Mr. BAI Kun HEE A B, C
Ms. Zhang Nan SR+ B C
Non-executive Directors kHITES
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentst 4 B, C
Mr. PAN Deyuan EERSE B, C
Independent non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung IR R E B C
Mr. ZHU Lin RIREE B C
Mr. YU Miao FEEE B
Notes: Kzt -
A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or A : HEWSeR ezl SHmEk e

briefings we

B: reading materials on various topics, including corporate B: BEZRENZENME  SEBRELES

governance matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities,
Listing Rules and other relevant laws

C: participating in training provided by law/accounting firms and  C:
that relating to the business of the Company

B EBFRBRBLBE  LHRMREMERE
1

SINEM, SETAATREMNED - BAATE
BABHNE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company deviates from the code provision C.2.1
because Mr. GE Yi performs both the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Since Mr. GE
Yi has been with the Group for many years, he has a thorough
understanding in our business, management, customers and
products. With his extensive experience in business operation and
management, the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the
same person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates effective implementation and execution
of our business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company.

Under the leadership of Mr. GE Yi, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between the Board and the management of the Company. To
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, the Board shall nevertheless review the effectiveness
of the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in
light of prevailing circumstances.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. GE Yi, being the executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 15 June 2021, which is subject to renewal upon mutual
agreement.

Mr. BAI Kun, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 23 August 2022, which is subject to renewal upon
mutual agreement.
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Ms. ZHANG Nan, being the executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 10 January 2022, which is subject to renewal
upon mutual agreement.

Mr. PAN Deyuan, being the non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 25 November 2022, which is subject to
renewal upon mutual agreement.

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, being the non-executive Director,
and each of the independent non-executive Directors have
entered into letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 15 June 2021, renewable upon
mutual agreement.

No Director has entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Therefore, Mr. BAl Kun, Ms. ZHANG Nan and
Mr. ZHU Lin will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Director at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition will hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.
Therefore, Mr. PAN Deyuan will retire and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election as the Director at the forthcoming AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The
agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the Board meetings or Board Committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings shall be
kept by the joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings and one annual R¥IREHIR > EFeHBFNAEEESEL—NX

general meeting were held, and the attendance of the individual BRREFAE  FANESEHEBREHNTE
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Meeting Attended/ Meeting Attended/
Number of Board Number of General
meetings meetings

Directors BE HESE EE8R8 LHEEF BREAGRE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. GE Yi XREE 4/4 1/1

Mr. BAI Kun HESXE 4/4 11

Ms. ZHANG Nan SR+ 4/4 1/1

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentst 4 4/4 0/1

Mr. PAN Deyuan" EEREED N/A N/A

TER TiEMA

Independent non-executive Directors BV FEHITES

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AR R & 4/4 11

Mr. ZHU Lin KREE 4/4 1/1

Mr. YU Miao TS 4/4 1/1

Note: B3 -

(1) Mr. PAN Deyuan was appointed as a non-executive Director on (1) EEREENR-_ZE__F+—A=-+HA Zgi
25 November 2022 and no Board meeting had been held after ERINTESE  EEZEERAEHESZSE
his appointment. He was appointed after the annual general FoBIRZZE_—_FRATHREITARARK
meeting of the Company held on 10 May 2022. RAFRSBREZT -

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ETRZRZNEESTH

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of  ZN/A A2 FRANZEAE #E\J{’Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ§$
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific #X W74 - A2 EEEELA gﬁéﬁ
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the & ' SEFCHER  BENR t‘:HﬂW HBTIE%E
Directors has confirmed that he/she complied with the Model  =F8l e

Code throughout the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also adopted its own RIREHA © KA TN HEM —EHERTBERIZ
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions #SFBIFfETIZEMRE BA X HNE HTATE] -
on terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model = LAERTAEZBAR RN AR AFANEE S EE R
Code for the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely #HEEBEARRQAIES °

to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the

Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

D

>H>

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

131



132

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to access and
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors, their corporate governance
duties include:

(a) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and to make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board on
matters;

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report; and

(f) to review and monitor the Company's compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.
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MISSIONS, VALUES AND STRATEGIES OF THE
COMPANY AND CORPORATE CULTURE

During the Review Year, to ensure the missions, values and
strategies of the Company are in line with its corporate culture,
the Board has formulated the Statement on Missions, Values and
Strategies of the Company. The Statement has set out the vision
and values of the Company, as well as various strategies adopted
for the realization of its missions and values.

PURPOSE

It is the Company’s vision to become a world-renowned
manufacturer of fine chemicals, including battery materials, dye
and agricultural chemical intermediates, pigment intermediates
and new materials etc.

VALUE

Philosophy

The Company is well-versed in chemistry and understands the
essence of chemistry.

Support

Mutual support with partners — the Company is a trustworthy
partner, which is where the value of the Company’s brand and
customers lies. The Company and its customers are in mutual
reliance.

Vision

The Company adds color to the world.

Knowledge

The Company has professional knowledge and constantly
innovates technology.

Steadfast

The Company’s pursuit of technical perfection never ceases.

Responsibility

The Company will always insist on changing the world and
human life with green technology, focusing on people and the
environment.
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STRATEGY

The Company aims to realize its purpose and value through the
following strategies:

Providing a full range of solutions to meet the development
needs of the chemical industry in the future

Continuing to invest in the innovation and development of
green technology

Successfully expanding and strengthening its influence in
China and other overseas markets

The Company is committed to fostering a work culture that
encourages innovation, experimentation, excellence and
sustainability:

Offering employees training opportunities from internal or
external management, technology, supervision and other
consultants:

(1) Encouraging employees to participate in external
training on creativity, corporate leadership and
management.

(2) Hosting internal cultural events to achieve shared
strategic goals and live out the Company’s values,
mission and vision.

Long-term sustainable development:

The Company has always insisted on changing the
world and human life with green technology focusing on
people and the environment. The Company continues
to invest in the innovation and development of green
technology, promote “green production”, and reduce
emissions generated during the production process.
Through continuous equipment upgrades and technology
optimization, the Company will continue to explore feasible
emission reduction measures to reduce the impact on our
environment.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Board has reviewed the Anti-Corruption Policy in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022, and is of the view that the
current Anti-Corruption Policy has been effectively implemented.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND SYSTEM

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Company’s
whistleblowing policy and system in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022, and are of the view that the current
Whistleblowing Policy has been effectively implemented.

POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT ADVICE AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

During the Review Year, the Board had formulated and
adopted the Policy on Obtaining Independent Advice and
Recommendations (the “Policy”), reflecting the Company’s
commitment to high corporate governance standard, and making
good corporate governance as an essential component of our
corporate culture. According to the Policy, a summary of the
mechanism for ensuring the Board can obtain independent view
and advice is set out below:

° When making decisions in furtherance of performing his/her
Director duties, a Director can seek independent advice,
views and recommendations which he/she considers
necessary for the purpose of performing his/her duties and
making independent judgment. Relevant expenses incurred
will be borne by the Company (the “Mechanism”).

° In respect of seeking independent professional advice,
Directors should communicate with the Chief Financial
Officer and raise questions, enquires, concerns or
specific opinions, if any. Subsequently, the Chief Financial
Officer will contact professional advisors of the Company
(including solicitors, accountants, external auditors
and internal control advisors) or other independent
professionals in order to obtain independent professional
advice within a reasonable timeframe.

. Any recommendation obtained through the Mechanism
should be properly recorded and provided to other
Directors of the Board.
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. The Board can have full access to all information provided
by senior management of the Company which the relevant
Board member considers appropriate for the purpose of
performing his/her duties.

° The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of the Policy on Obtaining Independent Advice and
Recommendations annually.

The Board has reviewed the Policy on Obtaining Independent
Advice and Recommendations in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022, and is of the view that such policy has been
effectively implemented.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. ZHU
Lin (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. YU Miao, all
of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

1. to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
deal with any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

2. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if the prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting

judgments contained in them;

38 in reviewing these reports mentioned above before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the Group’s going concern assumption and any
qualifications;
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(V) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

4. to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to audit any significant
connected transaction, so as to ensure that management
has performed its duty to establish an effective internal
control system;

58 to discuss the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

6. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

7. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

8. to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for inspection.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a total of 2
meetings to discuss and consider the following:

o it reviewed the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 and the auditor’s report prepared by the external
auditor on accounting matters and the major findings
during the audit;
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o it reviewed the interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the period ended 30 June 2022; and

o it reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management system
and procedures and the re-appointment of external
auditor. The Board did not have separate opinion on any
recommendation and suggestion by the Audit Committee in
relation to the selection, appointment, retirement or removal
of external auditor.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the
meetings is set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members EEHRH SHERE EHERE
Mr. ZHU Lin KIRELE 2/2
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung fAIRUAR S A& 2/2
Mr. YU Miao FEEE 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
GE Yi (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin, of
which Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director and Mr. HO Kenneth Kai
Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin are independent non- executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

1. to analyse the standards and procedures for selection
of Directors and senior management appointed by
the Board; review the structure, size, composition and
diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, -professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;
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2. to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated
for directorship. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Committee shall consider individuals on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

38 to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

4. to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually;

5y, to assess and review the candidates for director and senior
management to be potentially appointed by the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into the Company’s corporate strategy and
the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future; and

6. to examine the assessment standards for Directors and
senior management appointed by the Board, conduct the
relevant assessments and make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ NOMINATION CRITERIA AND
PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee has also followed certain selection
criteria and nomination procedures in relation to new appointments
and re-appointments of Directors. The selection criteria for
assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her educational
background and professional qualifications, experiences in the
industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions
to diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy.

In the case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee would take into account factors such as contribution
from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate is appointed
for the position of independent non-executive Director, the
Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence
with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules. In
appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first identify potential candidates. After the Nomination
Committee evaluated the candidates based on the selection
criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or more
qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board
will determine and agree on a preferred candidate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversity of Board composition
has many benefits to the performance of the Company. As
such, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure in designing the Board’'s composition, board diversity
will be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is summarized
as follows:

PURPOSE: Aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.
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POLICY STATEMENT: With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES: (1) the recruitment and selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; (2) the Nomination Committee will make
discussion annually, and, where necessary, make consensus on
measurable objectives for achieving board diversity. It will provide
its recommendation to the Board for adoption, which includes
at least one of the Directors having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and at least one Director having intensive experience
of the industry on which the business of the Group is engaged in;
(8) final decision will be made based on objective criteria and the
contribution to be brought by the selected candidate to the Board,
taking into consideration of the Company’s corporate strategies
and business operation; (4) the Board shall have at least one
Director of a different gender. Such Director shall possess the
skills, experience and talent necessary for the operation of the
Company; and (5) to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will recommend potential candidates for
the Board so as to realize gender diversity.

REVIEW POLICY: The Board will review this policy at least once a
year to ensure the effectiveness of this policy which is in line with
its missions.

The Board has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022, is of the view that such policy
has been effectively implemented.
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During the Review Year, when considering and approving
proposals on the appointment of new non-executive Director
and the re-appointment of incumbent Directors, the Nomination
Committee and the Board had fully considered the measurable
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy and assessed the
background and experience of candidates that can bring to the
Board diverse perspectives and contributions to board diversity.
The Company believes that these measurable objectives have
been basically achieved.

GENDER DIVERSITY

The Board is comprised of eight Directors, including seven male
Directors and one female Director. The Company believes that the
gender diversity of the Board has been basically achieved. The
Company will also be committed to promoting gender diversity
when suitable candidates are identified.

To achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the Nomination
Committee will recommend potential candidates for the Board
so as to realize gender diversify. Specifically, when selecting
potential candidates for the Board, the Nomination Committee and
the Board will, inter alia, (i) consider the current ability, diversity
and representation level of different gender in the Board and
senior management when making recommendation on nominees
and the succession plan of the Board and senior management;
(ii) take reference to the employment practical codes published
by Hong Kong Equal Opportunities Commission and the manuals
(if applicable) published by All-China Federation of Trade Unions
from time to time, so as to consider the standards in promoting
diversity.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness and voluntariness
in the recruitment procedures, and does not implement any
restriction on gender, ethnicity, nationality and territory. As at
31 December 2022, the employee indicator, including senior
management, of the Group is set out below:
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As at 31 December
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Number of employee Percentage
Indicator it BEAY EBEBDL
Male employee EHET 1,399 71.9%
Female employee ZHEET 548 28.1%
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The Company considers that gender diversity is achieved in its
workforce generally. The Group encourages gender diversity in
office, and strives to increase the proportion of female employee
at different levels including through promoting such an aim during
recruitment.

To achieve diversity in our employee team, the Group has
implemented appropriate recruitment and selection procedures
so as to consider diversified range of candidates. The Group has
also established the talent management and training programme
which provides career development guidance and promotion
opportunities, aiming to create an employee team possessing a
wide range of diversified skills and extensive experience.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are held by the same person, and believes
that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our
business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company;

&5 the Board Diversity Policy; and

4. to consider and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the appointment of a new non-executive
Director.

The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the
meeting is set out in the following table:

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

ARARAE TEBEDIREBERIR ST - A&
SEEHETHESHNLERZ T - TRARES
EREEBIHLP - OEEBEREBIZAEL
B -

AEETEMERERZ T  AEECEREE
WIBELEBIER - LEEZTEREEA - A&
B A BB RS  REBRERRIEE

EARE  UEERZEEZTEOREERERE
EREIHME -

RBEHA - REZESHBIT-AREEZESS

HEATBEERUTRR

1. BEFTe 8B AHRAEANX (BERE A
HANLEER)

2. FERITHBE M E A AR — A BT

B REMERMLAR - ABESAREZ
RERE B XEBRERRITEBRE

KSREE  BRRARREBISRER
3. EFEXEEZLILBR &
4. FRVNEFERRZTHIFNTES -
ERAZEENBLEZSEENBERENTR
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Name of members EEHE EHERE  EHERE
Mr. GE Yi K /i
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. YU Miao (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, and Mr. ZHU
Lin, all of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy according to standards including
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities concerned, and employment terms of
other positions within the Company and its subsidiaries;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

S8 to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

Y, to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibility and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;
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to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to the share plan
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Reporting Period,

the Remuneration Committee held

one meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1.

the 2022 and 2023 remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management;

the employee remuneration policies and structure of the
Group;

to consider and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the remuneration of a new non-executive
Director; and

to review and make recommendation to the Board in
respect of the approval of the revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

The attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings is set out in the following table:
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Mr. ZHU Lin KIRILE 1/1

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

145



146

ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee consists of five members, namely Ms. DUAN
Weihua (chairman of the committee, chief development officer
of the Group), Mr. DUAN Weidong (general manager of the
battery division), Mr. LIU Wei (general manager of the pigment
and new material division), Mr. YANG Fuguang (administrative
director of Dongguang manufacturing base) and Mr. ZHANG Jiye
(production director of Tsaker Dongao production base), all of
which are management members of the Company with relevant
environmental, social and governance knowledge and experience.

The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee are as

follows:

to identify related issues that have a significant impact
on the Group’s operations and/or the interests of other
important stakeholders in relation to environmental, social
and governance aspects;

to provide guidance for and review the Group’s
environmental, social and governance vision, goals and
strategies, and make recommendations to the Board to
approve relevant environmental, social and governance
initiatives;

to monitor and review emerging environmental, social and
governance trends and issues, provide guidance for the
development of the Group’s environmental, social and
governance vision based on relevant circumstances, and
provide advisory opinions on management of the current
and emerging issues that affect Group’s environmental,
social and governance;

to review and adopt risk assessment of the Group’s impact
on health, safety, environment and society;

to set the Group’s environmental, social and governance
goals, indicators, key performance indicators and
measures, monitor the implementation of relevant
measures, and evaluate the effectiveness of relevant
measures;
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10.

to adopt and update the policies on production safety,
environmental protection, social responsibility management
and corporate governance of the Group when necessary;

to assist the Board in preparing the annual environmental,
social and governance report in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(set forth in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules) for its
consideration, approval and disclosure;

to review and monitor the Group's environmental,
social and governance policies and practices to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and evaluate the performance and terms of
reference of the committee to ensure that the committee
operate at optimal efficacy and recommend changes that it
deems appropriate for the approval of the Board; and

other matters authorized by the Board related to health,
safety, environment, social responsibility and corporate
governance.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of senior management of the Company
(including three Directors, whose biographies are set out on page
90 of this annual report) during the Reporting Period falls under
the following bands:

Band of remuneration (RMB)

MEER (ARH)
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Further particulars of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group'’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 163 to 165 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
with the assistance of the Audit Committee on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
regulatory and corporate governance role in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
as well as financial and internal audit functions. Risk. management
and internal control systems can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or losses. They
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to
meet business objectives.
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Internal audit department

The Group has established an Internal Audit Department, whereby
such department plays an important role in monitoring the internal
governance of the Group. The major responsibilities of the
internal control department include standardizing and reviewing
operating risks, financial positions and internal control of the
Group, as well as conducting regular and comprehensive audits
of all subsidiaries and affiliates of the Group. The Internal Audit
Department reports to the Audit Committee at its annual meeting
in respect of the adequacy and effectiveness of its work in the
previous year and the work plan for the following year.

Risk management and internal control system

The Group adopted the three lines of defence model in the
management of risk. Operational management forms the core
of the first line of defence as they contact with the risk sources
in the first place. They are responsible for identifying, reporting
and preliminarily managing risks in their daily operations. Our
second line of defence is aimed to facilitate and monitor the
implementation of effective risk management practices by
operational management and assists risk owners in defining
risk exposures and reporting adequate risk-related information
throughout the Group. Our internal audit function is the core of the
third line of defence and mainly responsible for checking, auditing
and monitoring the work performed by the first and second lines
of defence.

The Group’s risks are identified from business processes in our
established enterprise-wide risk assessment methodologies.
We select key participants across the Group who are involved
in each of the business process as interviewees to identify the
risks to form our risk universe. Each risk within the risk universe
(including ESG risks) is assessed in terms of likelihood of
occurrence and the significance of impact, taken into account the
current internal controls in place to mitigate these risks. The risk
assessment results are reported to senior management, the Audit
Committee, the ESG Committee (the part related to ESG risks)
and the Board for the confirmation of our risk response strategies
and the development of our improvement measures, based on
their preferences towards risk, the available resources for risk
mitigation, and the current controls in place. The Board and the
Audit Committee and the ESG Committee assess and review the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (covering all key controls including strategy, finance,
operation, compliance controls and ESG risks) on an annual basis.
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Managing ESG Risks

ESG risks have multiple impacts on the sustainable development
of the company’s business and social development, and such
ESG risks should also be integrated into the Company’s risk
management framework to improve the effectiveness of risk
management.

In order to be consistent with other major risks, the Group adopts
the same risk management procedures to manage ESG risks,
including identifying ESG risks, formulating risk universe, risk
assessment and monitoring measures taken, as well as consulting
and reporting processes, etc.

For details of ESG and climate-related risk management measures,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
in this annual report.

During the Review Year, the Company reviewed the report
prepared by the Internal Audit Department containing the
investigation results and improvement suggestions as well as the
management letter prepared by the external auditor, and promptly
took appropriate improvement measures to mitigate the risks.

The Company’s internal control system is based on Internal
Control-Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and has
five components, namely Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Monitoring
Activities. The system intends to facilitate the design and
functioning of good control practices and reduce the likelihood
and impact of risks to an acceptably low level, in order for us to
achieve our objectives in operations, reporting, and compliance.

Any material internal control defects identified are timely
communicated and carefully evaluated for their potential impacts.
The departments or functions who are owners of these controls,
are required to propose corrective measures and obtain approval
from management before implementation. The implementation
status is monitored by both management and the Internal Audit
Department to ensure these control defects are properly resolved
in a timely manner.
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The Group has also established policies and internal control
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside
information, including “Material Information Internal Reporting
System of Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited” and “Information
Disclosure Management System of Tsaker New Energy Tech
Co., Limited”. The information or data to be disclosed should be
properly reviewed and approved by our compliance functions and
management to ensure its timeliness, accuracy, sufficiency and
effectiveness, and is closely monitored after disclosure.

During the Review Year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group including all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and considered that the design and implementation of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group are
effective and adequate in all material respects.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditor in respect of the audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting Period
is as follows:
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Amount (RMB’ 000)

Type of services BR A5 3E Al 2B (AR%TR)
Audit services ZEURTS 1,650
Non-audit services in relation to:  BIRIA THIIERZIR

Interim results reviewing FER AR 450
Total et 2,100
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

The executive Director Mr. BAlI Kun has been appointed as the
Joint Company Secretary and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engaged Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider)
(“TMF Hong Kong”) as the other joint company secretary to assist
Mr. BAI Kun to discharge her duties as one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Mr. BAI Kun is the primary contact
person of the Company.

With effect from 25 March 2022, Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun resigned as
the Joint Company Secretary due to other work arrangement, and
the Company appointed Ms. NG Ka Man who is a manager of the
Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong as the other Joint
Company Secretary on the same day. Mr. BAIl Kun, the executive
Director, remains as the primary contact person of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. BAl Kun and Ms.
NG Ka Man have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 30 November 2018, the Board approved and adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may distribute
dividends in (i) cash; (ii) Shares; or (iii)) a combination of cash or
Shares. When deciding whether to propose/declare dividends
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, amongst others, the general financial position,
operating results, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group, and the distribution shall be made in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations (including the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands) and subject to restrictions under the Articles
of Association.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information on the Company,
which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions. To promote effective communication, the
Company has been maintaining a Shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”), which
aims at establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Company and its Shareholders.

During the Review Year, the Board adopted the amended
Shareholders’ Communication Policy. Under the Shareholders’
Communication Policy, the Company will take steps to solicit and
understand the views of its Shareholders and other stakeholders
(including employees, customers, suppliers and investors).
Shareholders may direct questions and communicate their views
on various matters affecting the Company, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to
directors or management of the Company by mail to 31st Floor,
Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, by telephone (during business hours) at (86 10)
5979-6688, by fax at (86 10) 6552-8301 or by email to ir@tsaker.
com.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
Under normal circumstances, the Chairman and independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and the chairmen of the
Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the audit works, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

BERRNBERREERR

R SRBAR B

ARTRE - REEOHARFERYNBRREEBE
REREETRARBOEY RAREMFEHE
2 o ADR IR RERIHRB I REA A Y
BUAHBRERREEELOFRERENESE -
BRETHNER - ARE—HEKRIBARSE
(TRFERBE) - EERIARFRBENIEE
B RBE

REBEFA  EFGELRMACEITORIBMAK

o RBEBABE - AREHERRITBEEYL
THREARRIEMFNE (BEREE P #E

EREEE)NER - RRARFEARANTE
EERMARKREER  EREHTAHEMER I
FAAARESXEEEBRHELRER » Al
FEUERET (Mt ABHEMBENHMEEG 1%
BRESZE31E) - HE (R IEM) (86 10)
5979-6688 « fEE % (86 10) 6552-8301k BH =
ir@tsaker.com#E{T ©

AR RBFASRUBRESEHERBBOHE
€ ARAERF  BUFRTEFRARASES
EREEIRMERBATHRERIBAFASH
ERERIRMA o SRR AN TS R R RBAE RS

VREEBES T ZBEMBEENRELAR
FETBER R BEN B L 1R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R&E

153



154

The Company will appoint employees specifically responsible for
investor relation matters, including but not limited to providing
information to Shareholders in a timely and effective manner. Any
corporate communication issued or to be issued by the Company,
including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices
of general meetings, circulars and proxy forms, will be written
in plain language and provided to Shareholders in English and
Chinese version for easy understanding.

The capital market department of the Group strives to maintain the
investor relation of the Company through regular and extraordinary
exchanges with investment institutions, so as to ensure
timely communication and to understand the latest business
development of the Company and the views of investors on the
Company’s prospects. Research reports prepared by investment
institutions will be posted on the Company’s website for reference
of Shareholders and investors.

The Board will review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
annually so as to ensure its implementation and effectiveness. The
summary of annual review results will be disclosed in the annual
report and/or report of corporate governance of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of Shareholders’ Communication Policy in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022, and is of the view that the current
Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been effectively
implemented. The annual general meeting of the Company was
held on 10 May 2022. Except for one Director who was ill and was
absent, all Directors attended the meeting in person or via video
conference to answer any inquiries Shareholders might have. The
Company holds investor communication activities from time to time
to update Shareholders on the Company’s business development
and respond to Shareholders’ inquiries. The Company has also
received inquiries from Shareholders from time to time and such
inquiries have been properly resolved. Accordingly, the Company
considers its Shareholders’ Communication Policy to be effective.

The latest version of the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at
http://www.tsaker.com, where the up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, Shareholders may put
forward proposals for consideration at general meetings of the
Company. Any one or more member(s) of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board to convene such general meeting shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow article 12.3 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures are
set out in the section headed “CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS” in
this annual report.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the capital
market department of the Company at its headquarters through
email at ir@tsaker.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, in view of the change of the
Company’s name as elaborated in page 22 of this annual report
and the changes to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules, the Articles
of Association of the Company were revised, and the adoption of
the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company was approved by the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 10 May 2022.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated

25 March 2022, the circular dated 19 April 2022 and the poll
results announcement dated 10 May 2022.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay

e
EY:x

To the shareholders of Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 166 to 294, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Recognition of deferred tax
assets

Several of the Company’s
subsidiaries had accumulated
tax losses of RMB79 million
as at 31 December 2022.
The Group has recognized
deferred tax assets of RMB11
million against the tax losses to
the extent that the realization
of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits is
probable.

Recognition of deferred
tax assets requires critical
judgement from management
on the likelihood and
magnitude of creating future
taxable profits to offset the tax
losses, including expectations
for future prices of products,
expected sales volumes
and production costs, and
overall market and economic
conditions. Actual profits are
likely to be different from those
forecasts since anticipated
events frequently do not occur
as expected and unforeseen
events may arise, and their
impact on estimates and
forecasts may be material.

The Group’s accounting
policies and disclosures about
the deferred tax assets are
included in Note 2.4 Summary
of significant accounting
policies, Note 3 Significant
accounting judgements and
estimates and Note 28 Deferred
tax to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating
the assumptions used in
projecting the expected future
taxable profits such as future
prices of products, expected
sales volumes and production
costs, by comparing these key
inputs with the corresponding
entities’ historical data and
economic forecasts as well
as by reviewing supporting
documents for those
assumptions made such as
sale contracts and budget
prepared by management,
and assessing the income tax
rate applicable to the deferred
tax assets to be recognized.
We involved our tax experts to
assist us in the reconciliation
review of corporate income tax.
We also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax
assets.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Impairment of property, plant
and equipment

At 31 December 2022, the
Group’s property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”) amounted
to RMB1,762 million. The
Group is required to review
PPE for impairment whenever
events or changes in
circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Management
performed an impairment
assessment on such PPE by
determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") that the PPE
are allocated to. As a result of
the impairment assessment, an
impairment loss of RMB7 million
was recognized during the year
ended 31 December 2022 for
PPE.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding
of controls over the process of
impairment assessment on PPE.

For those PPE where value-in-
use is used as the recoverable
amount, we compared the
methodology used by the
Group, that is, recoverable
amount calculations based
on future discounted cash
flows, to industry practice,
and assessed the significant
assumptions used in the
calculations, which comprised,
amongst others, future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes, production costs and
discount rates, by comparing
them with the Group's historical
data as well as by reviewing
supporting documents for
those assumptions made
such as sale contracts. We
also analysed the historical
accuracy of management’s
estimates. In addition, we
involved our valuation specialist
to assist us in assessing
the valuation methodologies
and the assumptions used,
including the discount rates.
We performed a sensitivity
analysis of the significant
assumptions described above
to assess the changes to the
recoverable amounts of the
CGUs resulting from changes
in these assumptions.

R ARAF
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Key audit matters (continued)

Impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

Audit management’s
impairment assessment on
PPE was complex due to the
significant estimates and
judgements involved in the
projections of future cash
flows, including the future
prices of products, expected
sales volumes, production
costs, discount rates and
the expected disposal
consideration less cost of
disposal. These estimates and
judgements may be affected
by unexpected changes in
the future market or economic
conditions.

The Group’'s accounting
policies and disclosures about
the impairment assessment
on PPE are included in Note
2.4 Summary of significant
accounting policies, Note
3 Significant accounting
Judgements and estimates and
Note 13 Property, plant and
equipment to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter (continued)

For those PPE to be disposed
of where fair value less cost
of disposal is used as the
recoverable amount, we
assessed the significant
assumptions, such as expected
disposal consideration, and
disposal-related costs by
reviewing price quotes.

We also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
impairment assessment on PPE.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A &)
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A &)
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kwok Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBRERkH

fb = H W& 3R

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E_—F —E - —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
btaE AR¥T T ARBEFTT
REVENUE g ) 2,122,318 1,781,106
Cost of sales SHE RS (1,553,865) (1,240,810)
Gross profit EF 568,453 540,296
Other income and gains H bl A R M Es 5 9,725 27,675
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (50,578) (58,235)
Administrative expenses TERX (133,925) (143,847)
Other expenses HAnhA (7,983) (25,473)
Impairment losses on property, W - BB RFEAR
plant and equipment and B EEREBE
intangible assets (16,166) (6,283)
Finance costs BT R AN 6 (15,885) (28,276)
Share of loss of an associate oih — & R RIBE (119) (513)
Exchange (losses)/gains, net [N (18K), /s F 58 (18,788) 2,265
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT R 7 334,734 307,609
Income tax expense IR B 10 (80,502) (80,371)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR = PR A 254,232 207,238
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HfttZmEk=
Other comprehensive income that may AIsE R E B HIKEFH D EE
be reclassified to profit or loss in TEmE’JE’rﬁziﬁLﬁZm
subsequent periods (net of tax): (FOBRFRIA) :
Exchange differences on translation & FINERKIIEH =58
of foreign operations 24,302 (7,711)
Other comprehensive income that will R EZBE TS EHNHE
not be reclassified to profit or loss EamHEazmEmlis
in subsequent periods (net of tax): (MkR#E)
Equity investments designated BEERANEBEGTZEEE
at fair value through other sTAEMEEWE ([ERA R
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) BE=HEHEEZ ST AELM
FEMWE ) ZRERE (5,844) 15,773

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBRERAEMEEEER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-—F T —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR%TT AREET T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S RHEt2mEUk:E - HRHIE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 18,458 8,062
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZHEWHAE
FOR THE YEAR 272,690 235,300
Profit attributable to: THIATEEGER
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEFEPN 242,035 226,239
Non-controlling interests FEIERR I = 12,197 999
254,232 227,238
Total comprehensive income THATEEZEKEREE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZZ =N 260,493 234,301
Non-controlling interests AR 12,197 999
272,690 235,300
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERESEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EihERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (expressed in BEARREE (RER
RMB per share) ARBITYIR) 12 0.24 0.22

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#HK&E



168

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

31 December 2022
R+ ZHA=1+—H

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—==-= —E-—4F
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H”
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR% T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE K& 13 1,761,973 1,454,285
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 14(a) 89,806 87,447
Investment in an associate R—HEEERARWRE 15 868 987
Equity investments designated BERANBEFZEEE
at FVOC| FTAH MR E 2 RIERE 16 30,855 50,135
Financial assets at fair value through #E QA EBEEBEESH:TA
profit or loss (“FVPL") B ((RAREBEFEEHR
BB B ceRNEE 22 37,119 =
Intangible assets mHEE 17 7,571 17,319
Deferred tax assets RIETIR & 7 28 28,311 33,692
Other non-current assets HitvIEmeEE 50,826 12,122
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE 2,007,329 1,655,987
CURRENT ASSETS KB EE
Inventories Ea=¢ 18 272,759 260,863
Trade receivables =Y 3 E N 19 233,739 216,086
Notes receivable K= 20 421,045 85,802
Prepayments and other receivables B3 I8 & E b fE U FI8 21 59,596 139,069
Financial assets at FVPL BRAREBEFEEHEEEHTA
BRzeRMEE 22 4,621 28,613
Restricted cash ZREE 23 7,081 1,986
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 23 189,069 180,075
Total current assets MENEERE 1,187,910 912,494
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables ENE SFIBRENEE 24 384,084 195,713
Other payables and accruals Hith eI IB R FEETE A 25 363,347 84,586
Contract liabilities EH8E 4,458 6,485
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITREAER
other borrowings 26 247,094 278,000
Income tax payable FET PTG TR 20,792 48,180
Current portion of long-term RAEME BB ER S
borrowings 26 14,693 24,109
Total current liabilities MENE EERE 1,034,468 637,073

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A &)



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE M EIRR R

31 December 2022
o F+=ZA=+—H

31 December

2021
—E-—4F
+=—HA=+—8”
Notes RMB’000
k3 ARBT T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 153,442 275,421
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERABAS
LIABILITIES 2,160,771 1,931,408
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred income IEFEWA 27 10,449 20,473
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBAG 28 11,570 5,699
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITREAER
other borrowings 26 38,793 13,622
Lease liabilities HEESE 14(b) - 188
Total non-current liabilities SEmBN B B 60,812 39,982
Net assets EEFE 2,099,959 1,891,426
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AELER
of the parent
Share capital A&7 29 65,807 66,269
Treasury shares EFRGD (4,467) (5,893)
Reserves ] 30 1,976,131 1,815,114
2,037,471 1,875,490
Non-controlling interests eI IR HE a 62,488 15,936
Total equity T ARRE 2,099,959 1,891,426

Ge Yi
XX
Director

EF

Bai Kun
BE
Director

EZ
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2022
 E—E-—F+-A=1+—HIFE

At1 January 2022 R-E=2%-A-H

Profit for the year ERgh

Other comprehensive ~ EREH2ENE
income for the year

Total comprehensive ER2EYREE
income for the year

Repurchase of own shares  BEIEARA

Transfer of fair value HERLAEENEAR
reserve upon the g\ 2 AN
disposal of equity LRERELBRLL
ivestments at VO~ EfERE

Deregistration of TH-HNERA
a subsidiary

Dividend disrbuted to ~~ AEFRRMHS
sharcholders (Mote 717)  (Ki11)

Deemed disposal of partial K AHE—BHEAF
interest in a subsidiary” SR

Transfer to statutory reserve BEEATHRE

Appropriation to salety ~ EAZ24EES
production fund

Cancellation of own shares  =#EARD

At 31 December 2022 H=F==
t-A=1-8
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

Year ended 31 December 2022
 E - —F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

PN LN S
Fair value
reserve of
Safety financial Non-
Share  Treasury Share Capital  production  Statutory  assetsat  Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital shares  premium reserve fund reserve Fvocl reserve profits Total  interests equity
RAAEE
u*iﬁg
B3
ih2E
vk
BELAR
ke ERRD  RhEE  AREE RR4EE:  iRBE  EERE  ERRE  REEA B HrkiEs  EaEE
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB00  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTn  AREBTR
At 1 January 2021 R=F--F-f-A 66,713 - 421899 (105,894) 63,679 152,189 (5,004) 33244 1,052,466 1,679,292 - 167929
Profit for the year ERf] - - - - - - - - 26239 226239 99 20723
Other comprehensive EREtRENE
income for the year - - - - - - 16,773 (7.,711) - 8,062 - 8,062
Total comprehensive income A2 ERELE
for the year - - - - - - 15,773 (1711) 226,239 234,301 999 235,300
Repurchase of own shares  EEEERN - (13149) - - - - - - - (1314 - (13142)
Transfer of fair value HERAAEENEAL
reserve upon the YA NS
disposal of equity LREREHERNR
investments at VOCI ~ [EfEEE - - - - - - (11,3%) = 11,358 - = -
Disposal of partial interest in HEMBARSHER
a subsidiary - - - 15,063 - - - - - 15,063 14,937 30,000
Dividend distributedto ~~ EFHEARS
shareholders ote 1) (Wi11) = (40,024) = = = = - (40024) - (40.024)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERZHTRHE - - - = 7351 = = (7.351) - - -
Appropriation to safety ~ BAX2EEES
production fund - - - - 2,261 - - - (2,261) - - -
Conversion of a subsidiary  —FEHBAZES ARS
into a joint stock company EEM
with limited liability - - - 85,801 - (28,630) - - (57.171) - - -
Cancellation of own shares  HEEAERN (444) 7249 (6,805) - = - = = = - - -
At31December 2021 RIEZ-%
+ZA=t-H 66,269 (5893)  375,070* (5,030 65940*  130910° (589 25533 1223280" 1,875,490 15936 189142
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~ * EZ%E%{%HE\L%’illﬁ(‘ﬁ?é}ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂﬁw b=

RMB1,976,131,000 and RMB1,815,114,000 in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, respectively.

> Tsaker Technology, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, completed private placement to certain non-
controlling interests with proceeds of approximately
RMB51,000,000, in aggregate, in August 2022.

*%k

T —F+-_A=+—BAR=-_T=— ¢+
A=t+—Hz&KE&REAR1,976,131,0007T
B ARY1,815,114,0007T °

REFEEWMBRARIMEREN T - —F

)\Hnﬁ)‘cﬂ%?éﬁ Hxif%éﬁnmmﬁi‘é’é 55
& & HE 4 ARES51,000,0007T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEReRER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—_F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E—_= —EF-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MeE ARETT ARBETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEISRENE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 750 A g A 334,734 307,609
Adjustments for: B RB R IE L
Finance costs IR 30N 6 15,885 28,276
Exchange gains, net FE 5 W a3 58 (2,154) (592)
Interest income F B U A 5 (613) (500)
Dividend income from equity investments  {Z AL BEZTE B EE & A
at FVOCI and FVPL i mks Y RS E N
?ﬁ’&ﬂ?‘i{ﬁpﬁriﬂﬁi\ﬁ
FABRCZERMEELZ
iz 24 A 5] (118) (2,837)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BELZENEIR
plant and equipment 7 1,545 12,834
Loss on termination of a lease BRI E R EE = 611
Fair value losses of financial assets at Hz/“tff{ﬁp-l-gﬂ““ibp-l-)\
FVPL BazemEEZAREE
g 5 18,443 6,012
Depreciation of property, plant and M HENREITE
equipment 13 100,251 97,989
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14(a) 4,701 4,480
Amortisation of intangible assets A 17 1,824 2,321
Amortisation of deferred income B AE U A 2 5 (10,304) (2,684)
Share of loss of an associate S —RE A B E R 15 119 513
Impairment of trade receivables B S EW R IERE 19 1,410 4,229
Impairment of property, plant and M - WmENMERERE
equipment 18 7,163 6,283
Impairment of intangible assets W EERME 17 9,003 -
Write-down of inventories to FERB R 15 EE
net realizable value 7 1,969 -
483,858 464,544
Increase in inventories FEN (13,865) (83,076)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 EWGRIBE N (91,224) (160,337)
Decrease in prepayments and other TE A SR IE K H b EUGRIE R
receivables 41,842 23,186
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE [ 5 IBE 1N 81,580 57,509
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables and EfhEN BN ETER
accruals CRA),/ % (1,042) 693
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEaERD (2,027) (5,029)
Increase in restricted cash SR IR &N (5,095) (1,226)
Short-term loan to an associate HHERT—HEE AR - (204)
Cash generated from operations KEEENRE 494,027 296,060

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #gEREHLERA A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E—_= —ET—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥T T ARBETTT
Interest received 2 HF & 613 500
Interest paid BATFLE (18,656) (28,040)
Income tax paid EATFTEH (104,487) (33,082)
Net cash flows from operating activities KERE BRSNS 371,497 235,438
CASH FLOWS FROM BRETHMERESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from equity Bl ARBENEEEEEE
investments at FVOCI and FVPL AH 2o 2 IRIERE R
BRARBEFGEEEZEHTA
BRzemBEZRE 5 118 2,837
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HE&EZRAREETEHHEE 8
at FVPL ABRZ eREEMSKIEA 165,026 51,587

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at FVOCI

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Purchases of equity investments
designated at FVOCI

Proceeds from government grants
Prepaid land lease payment

Purchase of financial assets at FVPL

Investment in an associate

HERAREBEFEAEHE EJJ

FFAHMEERE . CREE

FiS 578 38,282 22,589
BEWE  BENMEKEEE

(279,380) (64,074)
BEELEE (310) (257)
HEYE - BELZEEE
Fri5 k@ 1,775 2,025
BEEETRAREESEAA
gErt AEe2mkaEy
R E (7,371) (7,364)
BT /B 1S 5k 18 280 1,982
TEfS L E IR (7,060) (809)
BEERARBENEEEZS
SFABRZEMEE (196,596) (84,783)
R—EEE A RINRE - (1,500)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREREBR

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_T__Ft+_A=1t—HLHFE

2022 2021
—E—_= —EF-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M et AR¥T T ARBETTT
Net cash flows used in investing activities K& /EBFTAR S REFHE (285,236) (77,767)
CASH FLOWS FROM METBAERESRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings FGIRITE R R H AL E K 31 414,103 314,065
Repurchase of own shares EAEl= HHX (6,871) (13,142)
Repayment of bank loans and other BRRITERRHEAMER
borrowings 31 (428,918) (368,827)
Principal portion of lease liabilities HERRZA®E S 31 (449) (1,500)
Dividend paid B A (108,286) (40,024)
Deemed disposal of partial interest in a BRELE—FHMB RTINS
subsidiary i 51,000 30,000
Net cash flows used in financing activities BE/EBFIAE S REFHE (79,421) (79,428)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESESEYEMEE
EQUIVALENTS 6,840 78,243
Cash and cash equivalents FURERBELFED
at beginning of year 23 180,075 101,240
Effect of foreign exchange rate RSB F LR
changes, net 2,154 592
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END §RESRELZEY
OF YEAR 23 189,069 180,075

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #gEREHLERA A



Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered address of the
Company is P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place, 103
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1106, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the
following principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of battery materials

o manufacture and sale of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates

o manufacture and sale of pigment intermediates and
new materials

o others

In the opinion of the Directors, the controller of the
Company is Mr. GE Yi.

B 15 ¥R R B =

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

AR RAEEER

AR/ —FZRASHSTMRINBRRD
7 o AARFEMHIEEP.O. Box 472, 2nd
Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman lIslands °
RABR—RKIREEZERDF - RER » AR
AINME AR EEREUTIES

. MR EENEE

. AR R RFRCE M R L E M
S
. BRI R R AT B R EE AN SH

. Hit

EERR AREEHNERKCELE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
e EL

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. DNAREKEEER (2)

176

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

FENEARESR
ARRETEMBRARNFBERINNT -

follows:
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered share  interest attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HREL/
it/ RISk A BRTERR/
£ BURTELE LY ShkE  AREREREAAL  TEER
%
Direct  Indirect
& B
Tsaker Chemical (Hongkong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD34,174,000 100 - Investment holding
(Tsaker Hongkong) 2 September 2010
RIS (FR)ERAR (FERE) (3 3417400057 100 - REBR
“2-TENACH
Tsaker Chemical Group Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB73,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Tsaker Chemical Group)* 28 September 2017
PR EEERRAT (VR EEE) hEL ARH73,000,0007 - 100 RERR
“2-tENAZTNE
Hebei Tsaker New Material Technology Co., Limited ~ Hebei, PRC RMB63 571,427 - 78 Production and sale of chemicals and new
(Tsaker Technology)™ 23 September 2005 materials
T EFHHRERABRAR (RERR) hE ARH635714277 - 18 ERREMHEENHE
“ERRENAZTER
Tsaker Huayu Chemical Co., Limited (Tsaker Huayu)™® Hebei, PRC RMB370,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
PVERER(EERAD (REEE) 7 May 2013
REL AR#370,000,0007 - 00 EREENHEE
“Z-ZENAEA
Shandong Tsaker New Material Co., Limited Shandong, PRC RMB250,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of battery materials
(Shandong TNM)** 20 May 2014
WRFEITHERAR (URFEHIH) hELR ARE250,000,0007 - 100 EHHHEENREE
T2-MERAZTA

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A &)



Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. DERFEEER (E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBATER (£)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABlEZMBARIMGEESHTIOT (&)
follows: (continued)
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered share  interest attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HREL/
HR/ ALK A BRAEER/
£R AURTELEHE AR ARERERERAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
E& [}
Tsaker Technology Development (Beiling) Co., Limited Beijing, PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Technology Development)**® 17 October 2013
HERMHE (R BRAR (FERITHE) -0 HELR ARE40,000,0007 - 100 fERHE
ZE-=E+RTtA
Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Limited Shandong, PRC RMB200,000,000 = 100 Production and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Dongao)™ 15 March 2004
WRPERRLBERAR (VERE)" REILR ARH200,000,0007 - 100 (BRtENEE
“ZIME=RTEA
Tsaker Chemical (Singapore) Private Co., Limited Singapore USD7,500 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Singapore) 8 July 2016
FRLZFEmRLABRAR (HEHR) i3 750057 - 100 {2aEE
“E-EtANR
Tsaker Huayu Technology (Tianjin) Co., Limited Tianjin, PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Huayu Tianjin)**® 5 February 2018
YRER (F2)NEERAT (FEEREE)0 hEXE ARH20,000,0007 - 100 {tBe#E
“2-\f-A1R
Hasun Group Limited British Virgin Islands USD10,000 100 - Investment holding
2 November 2017
EBRAES 10,000%7 100 - REBR
“T+E+-AZH
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Notes to Financial Statements
e EL

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. DERFEEER (E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABlEZMBARMGEESHTIOT (&)
follows: (continued)
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered share  interest attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HREL/
HR/ RIS RA BRAEER/
£R BURTEEEHE dhRE  ARERERERAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
E# [}
Tsaker Huayu Technology (Hainan) Co., Limited Hainan, PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Huayu Hainan)"® 19 November 2021
PRER(BR)HRARAR (VEEEER) hESH ARE5,0000007 - 100 fERHE
ZE-E+-AthA
Hainan Yangshuo Technology Co., Limited Hainan, PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100 Sale of chemicals
(Hainan Yangshuo)™ 18 November 2021
EEAERRARAR (BRER)" hESE AR5,000,0007 - 100 fERHE
“E-E+-ATNR
Chuangying Liancheng (Cangzhou) Enterprise Hebei, PRC RMB13,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Management Co., Limited 23 August 2016
(Chuangying Liancheng)** HELTIL ARE13,000,0007 = 100 KEER
SR CaM) L2 ERAR AR (8RB 2 ENAZT=R
Tsaker Chuangying Enterprise Management Beijing, PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Limited (Tsaker Chuangying)* 27 November 2017
VRUBLFERARLR (REAR) HELR ARE100,000,0007 - 100 REER
“2tET-AZTtA
Tsaker Investment Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 100 - Investment holding
(Tsaker Investment) 26 February 2020
PVERBARAA (WERE) B 10,0007 100 - REBMR

<y
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Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. DERFEEER (E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABlEZMBARIMGEESHTIOT (&)
follows: (continued)
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered share  interest attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
e/
HR/ ALK A BRAEER/
£R AURTELEHE AR ARERERERAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
E& [}
Beijing Hexu Environmental Technology Co., Limited ~ Beijing, PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Technical support and sales of chemicals
(Beiling Hexu)*@ 16 October 2019
IRaBRARRERAA (L RAMR) HELR ARE10,000,0007 - 100 REM2REE
“Z-NETATRE
Bright Innovation Global Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 = 100 Investment holding
8 September 2021
EERREE 50,000%7 - 100 KEER
“E--EnANR
Tsaker (Cangzhou) Enterprise Management Co, Limited Hebei, PRC RMB30,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
(Cangzhou Enterprise Management)™® 26 January 2022
YEOEMEXERARAR (RN EEE) ™ RETY ARE30,000,0007 - 100 RERR
"2 CE-A-tAH
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB50,000,000 = 100 Production and sale of battery materials
(Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy)™ 15 April 2022
BMFREARNA CRNFZE ) RETY ARH50,000,0007 - 100 EbHHEENREE
“Z-¥MATER
Hebei Chuangying Lianming Enterprise Management  Hebei, PRC RI\B5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) 20 September 2022
(Chuangying Lianming)*** E ARES5,000,0007C - 100 REER
MLERBECREREAAREE (BRAR) ZEZENAZTA

(8)BmsH )™
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Notes to Financial Statements
e EL

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. LQARAXEEER(#F)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBLARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABlEZMBARMEESHTIOT (&)
follows: (continued)
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered share  interest attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
e/
HR/ AL ERA BRAEER/
£ HURTELEHE iR ARERERERAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
ER [}
Beijing Chuangying Xinli Enterprise Management Beijing, PRC RMB51,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) 17 October 2022
(Chuangying Xinli)™*
IREBEUARERRHAH LR (BRAR) hER ARH51,000,0007 - 100 RERR
(BIBR) T2 CEATLA
Tsaker Dongao (Hainan) Technology Co., Limited Hainan, PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100 Sales of chemicals
(Tsaker Dongao Hainan) " 10 January 2023
PERR(E)HEERAR (VA REER) hEEE AE5,000,0007T _ 100 [tEpEE
ZRZZE-A1R
m Registered after the reporting period. m ¥E BRfa T -
@ Deregistered after the reporting period. @ e HTR Y o
@ Renamed after the reporting period. @ WEHRB TR o
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law

*%

Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

*ok ok

Registered as limited partnerships under PRC law

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for certain financial
assets and notes receivable which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

SRR MIEE

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

RARFEEER (&)

ERWBARER (&)
ARBEEMBRRNFEHIINOT : (&)

LRI ZAEEHBAR - DEERLY
REREBEEEATESBRAEEFEE
ZEZEHD  EERRIEHEMMERRZ
HEGTHEEHBRILE -

* RIEFBUEREMARIIEBELE

o RIFFBUEREMARER DA
RIEFBUEREMARERABLE

mAEE

AMBHmRDBRBEEGAMDAG((HES
R A g RGN T EMBREER ([FE
MEmEER ) (BREEBMBHREEL
ZEGEA([EEGFEN ) ERE)
BEAREHRARER R EMREIBEZ KR
REL - BRAABEFEZRESHEER
EEEEIN - BERERERIBE L KAME D
RELTME - AARE (TARB D2 fE
THESREOZEEREANTM  #5E
ERERI

BHEE
HERBRREBEARATAREMBE AR (5
BRIAEEDBEZE T -_—F+-_H=+
—BLEFENMBRS - MEABHEHAAL
AREERAHEEG CER (BEERLE
)  ZHRERASEEALERRSHE
BREHRNEFET O ZHIFEEE R - Wik
MBRBHEHREHSNEN (S AKER
FREMEEREH KRBT EER)
FEOBTHE -
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2.1

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

R ARAF

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

ISR MIEE

31 December 2022
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS
1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

2.2

SRR MIEE

31 December 2022
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

RELEE (F)
SOEE(E)

HAREBALEHHB AR Z &6 - BRI
RNEZWBEBRARZEE (RERE)RE
& ¢ (i) R FEIE AR IR R A 2 2 BRE (B R (iii)
RIES N2 Rt EH =25 RERN)E
WREZ AABE: (i) FIREEAMREZRD
REERGI)ESRPTMNELES 2 BHR
B8 - LREREMEERERNERZAE
EREGBHEFSEEBERREEF (W
HE) AERAEEEELEHEBEER
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B BRERRBEEZEE
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XA H]
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B G HER EREAA—ETTEHZHAE
FITHZIER]

BEYBHEEL BBV BREENEIR  BR
—E-)IFF WIS RERIEON - HAEH
—E-FF7 BREERF16HEN KBS
FREY# SERFE MR BT

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#HK&E

183



184

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued
in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS
3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability.
The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no business combinations during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from
selling any such items, and the cost of those items
as determined by HKAS 2 /nventories, in profit or
loss. The Group’s accounting treatment of proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management as well as the corresponding cost
in both of current and prior periods is consistent
with the amendments. No retrospective effect on the
opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January
2021.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A &)

Notes to Financial Statements

2.2

ISR MIEE

31 December 2022
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendment that is applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group
has applied the amendment prospectively from
1 January 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group's financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts'’

Insurance Contracts’ ®

Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS
9-Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
‘2020 Amendments”)?*

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In
addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option
relating to the classification overlay set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of
HKFRS 17
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognized in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in particular
the determination over whether an entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it
has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within

non-current. In addition,

12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognize a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognized as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related
to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments,
the Group will recognize deferred tax for all temporary
differences related to leases at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented. During the year,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of amendments to HKAS 12. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognizes its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as_part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments, certain
financial assets and notes receivable at fair value at the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

and is determined for an individual asset,

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

R ARAF
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%

Machinery and equipment 9% to 19%
Office equipment 18% to 32%
Motor vehicles 23% to 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognized in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognized is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, machinery
and equipment under construction or installation, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A &)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Technological know-how

Purchased technological know-how is stated at cost less
any impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for sh